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This Base Prospectus

This document (the "Base Prospectus”) constitutes a base prospectus in respect of Certificates issued
under the UK Certificate Programme of BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.") as issuer and BNP
Paribas ("BNPP") as guarantor (the "Programme™). Any Securities (as defined below) issued on or after
the date of this Base Prospectus are issued subject to the provisions herein.

This Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 8 of the UK Prospectus
Regulation. "UK Prospectus Regulation" means Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of 14 June 2017 as it forms
part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, the
"EUWA") and regulations made thereunder. This Base Prospectus will be valid for a period of one year
following the date of its approval and will expire on 30 June 2022. The obligation to supplement this
Base Prospectus in accordance with Article 23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation in the event of a
significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy does not apply when this Base Prospectus
is no longer valid.

This Base Prospectus has been approved by the Financial Conduct Authority of the United Kingdom (the
"FCA") as competent authority under the UK Prospectus Regulation. The FCA only approves this Base
Prospectus as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the
UK Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuer or
the Guarantor or of the quality of the Securities that are the subject of this Base Prospectus. Investors
should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Securities.

No application has been made for Securities issued under this Programme to be listed on the Official List
of the FCA and/or admitted to trading on any "UK regulated market" for the purposes of Regulation
(EU) No. 600/2014 on markets in financial instruments as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of
the EUWA and regulations made thereunder ("UK MiFIR").

The requirement to publish a prospectus under Section 85 of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 (as amended, the "FSMA") only applies to Securities which are to be admitted to trading on a UK
regulated market and/or offered to the public in the United Kingdom other than in circumstances where
an exemption is available under Article 1(4) and/or 3(2) of the UK Prospectus Regulation.
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The Issuer may issue Securities for which no prospectus is required to be published under the UK
Prospectus Regulation ("Exempt Securities™) under the programme memorandum contained herein (the
"Programme Memorandum™) on pages 105 to 133. See also "Exempt Securities" in the "Overview of
this Base Prospectus"” section below. The FCA has neither approved nor reviewed information
contained in the Programme Memorandum in connection with Exempt Securities.

This Base Prospectus has also been approved by the Luxembourg Stock Exchange as a prospectus for
the purposes of Part IV of the Luxembourg Act dated 16 July 2019 on prospectuses for securities, as
amended (the "Prospectus Act") for Securities (including Exempt Securities) issued under the
Programme to be admitted to the Official List and admitted to trading on the Euro MTF Market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the "Euro MTF") (including the professional segment of the Euro MTF)
during the twelve-month period after the date of approval by the Luxembourg Stock Exchange in respect
of this Base Prospectus. This Base Prospectus also constitutes a base listing particulars for the purpose
of the Prospectus Act. The Euro MTF is neither a "regulated market" for the purposes of Directive
2014/65/EU on markets in financial instruments, as amended, nor a "UK regulated market" for the
purposes of UK MiFIR.

References in this Base Prospectus to Securities being "listed" (and all related references) shall mean that
such Securities have been listed and admitted to trading on the Euro MTF or on such other or further
stock exchange(s) as the Issuer may decide. The Issuer may also issue unlisted Securities. The applicable
Final Terms (as defined below) will specify whether or not Securities are to be listed and admitted to
trading and, if so, the relevant exchange(s).

Other than in relation to the documents which are deemed to be incorporated by reference (see
"Documents Incorporated by Reference” below), the information on the websites to which this Base
Prospectus refers does not form part of this Base Prospectus unless that information is incorporated by
reference into the Base Prospectus and has not been scrutinised or approved by the FCA.

Capitalised terms used in this Base Prospectus shall, unless otherwise defined, have the meanings set
forth in the Conditions (as defined below).

Types of Securities and types of underlying asset(s)

Under the terms of the Programme, BNPP B.V. (the "Issuer™) may from time to time issue, inter alia,
certificates ("Certificates™ or "Securities") the return of which may be linked to:

(@  one or more specified indices, shares (including two or more shares which are attached to each
other so that they trade as a single unit ("Stapled Shares"), a global depositary receipt ("GDR")
or an American depositary receipt ("ADR")), commodities, commodity indices, fund shares or
units or fund indices (including any combination of such indices, shares, commaodities,
commaodity indices, fund shares or units or fund indices);

(b)  the preference shares issued by BNP Paribas Synergy Limited, a private company limited by
shares and incorporated in the United Kingdom. The performance of such preference shares will
in turn be linked to one or more specified indices or shares (including any combination of such
indices or shares).

Each issuance of Securities will entitle the holder thereof on the redemption date to receive a cash amount
(which may be zero) calculated in accordance with the relevant terms as set forth herein and in the
applicable Final Terms. The Securities will be governed by English law.

How to use the Base Prospectus

The Base Prospectus, together with the certain other documents which are incorporated by reference, is
intended to provide information which is necessary to enable investors to make an informed decision
regarding the financial position and prospects of the Issuer and the rights attaching to the Securities
before purchasing any Securities.

The contractual terms of any particular issuance of Securities will comprise the terms set out herein under
the section entitled "Terms and Conditions of the Securities” (the "Security Conditions" or the
"Conditions"), as completed by a separate Final Terms (as defined below) or Pricing Supplement (as



defined in the section entitled "Programme Memorandum") in respect of Exempt Securities, which is
specific to that issuance of Securities.

Worked examples of hypothetical Securities are set out in the section entitled "How the return on your
investment is calculated”, which explains how the calculations of the amount(s) payable under the
Conditions will be made.

The Base Prospectus also includes other general information such as the material risks relating to
investing in the Securities (see the section entitled "Risk Factors" on pages 17 to 34), information on
BNP Paribas Synergy Limited, the issuer of the specified preference shares and information on selling
and transfer restrictions.

Final Terms

The specific terms of each issuance of Securities other Exempt Securities, such as the aggregate nominal
amount or number, the type of the Securities, the issue date, the issue price and/or offer price, the
underlying asset(s) to which the Securities are linked, the redemption date, the applicable Conditions,
the exchange on which the Securities will be listed (if any) and certain other terms relating to the offering
and sale of the Securities will be set out in a final terms document (the "Final Terms").

Guarantee

The Securities are unsecured and will be guaranteed by BNPP (the "Guarantor™) pursuant to a Deed of
Guarantee (the "Guarantee™), the form of which is set out herein.

Substitution of the Issuer or Guarantor

Each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP has a right of substitution as set out herein. In the event that either BNPP
B.V. or BNPP exercises its right of substitution, a supplement to the Base Prospectus will be published
on the website of BNPP (https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/public/LegalDocs.aspx).

Risk factors

Prospective purchasers of Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant
Securities and the extent of their exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the
relevant Securities as an investment in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition.
Securities are complex financial instruments and involve a high degree of risk and potential
investors should be prepared to sustain a total loss of the purchase price of their Securities. There
are significant risks associated with holding Securities, including risks in relation to the
circumstances in which Securities may be written down or converted to ordinary shares and the
implications on prospective purchasers of Securities (such as a substantial loss). The circumstances
in which such prospective purchasers may suffer loss as a result of holding Securities are difficult
to predict and the quantum of any loss incurred by investors in such circumstances is also highly
uncertain. For more information, see the section entitled ""Risk Factors' on pages 17 to 34.

The Securities and the Guarantee have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "'Securities Act"), or any other applicable state securities
laws and trading in the Securities has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures
Trading Commission (the "CFTC") under the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as
amended (the ""Commodity Exchange Act'). The Issuer has not been registered as an investment
company pursuant to the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the
"Investment Company Act"). The Securities are being offered and sold in reliance on Regulation
S under the Securities Act (""Regulation S'). No Securities, or interests therein, may at any time
be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered,
directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, persons that are
(i) a ""U.S. person' as defined in Regulation S; or (ii) a person other than a "*Non-United States
person' as defined in Rule 4.7 under the Commodity Exchange Act; or (iii) a ""U.S. person™ as
defined (a) in the Interpretive Guidance and Policy Statement Regarding Compliance with Certain
Swap Regulations promulgated by the CFTC or (b) the final rule relating to Cross-Border
Application of the Registration Thresholds and Certain Requirements Applicable to Swap Dealers
and Major Swap Participants promulgated by the CFTC, in each case as amended, modified or
supplemented from time to time, pursuant to the Commaodity Exchange Act; or (iv) any other ""U.S.
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person' as such term may be defined in Regulation S or in regulations or guidance adopted under
the Commodity Exchange Act (each such person, a ""U.S. person'') Any offer, sale, resale, trade,
pledge, exercise, redemption, transfer or delivery made, directly or indirectly, within the United
States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person will not be recognised. No Securities
may be legally or beneficially owned at any time by any U.S. person and accordingly Securities will
only be offered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S
and pursuant to CFTC regulations and guidance.

Neither the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") nor any other applicable
state securities commission has approved or disapproved of any Securities or passed upon the accuracy
of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence.

BNPP's long-term credit ratings are A+ with a stable outlook (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited
("Standard & Poor's")), Aa3 with a stable outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd. ("Moody's")), AA-
with a negative outlook (Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited ("Fitch™)) (which is the long-term rating assigned
to BNPP's senior preferred debt by Fitch) and AA (low) with a stable outlook (DBRS Rating GmbH
("DBRS Morningstar™)) and BNPP's short-term credit ratings are A-1 (Standard & Poor's), P-1
(Moody's), F1+ (Fitch) and R-1 (middle) (DBRS Morningstar). BNPP B.V.'s long-term credit ratings are
A+ with a negative outlook (Standard & Poor's) and BNPP B.V.'s short term credit ratings are A-1
(Standard & Poor's). Each of Standard & Poor's, Fitch and DBRS Morningstar is established in the
European Union and is registered under the Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the "CRA
Regulation™). The ratings issued by Moody's have been endorsed by Moody's France SAS in accordance
with the CRA Regulation. Moody's France SAS is established in the European Union and registered
under the CRA Regulation. As such each of Standard & Poor's, Fitch, DBRS Morningstar and Moody's
France SAS is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and
Markets Authority on its website (at http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-
CRAGs) in accordance with the CRA Regulation. Moody's is established in the United Kingdom and is
registered in accordance with Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 as it forms part of UK domestic law by
virtue of the EUWA (the "UK CRA Regulation"). Moody’s is included in the list of credit rating
agencies published by the Financial Conduct Authority on its website (https://register.fca.org.uk) in
accordance with the UK CRA Regulation. None of Standard & Poor's, Fitch or DBRS Morningstar are
established in the United Kingdom, but each is part of a group in respect of which one of its undertakings
is (i) established in the United Kingdom, and (ii) is registered in accordance with the UK CRA
Regulation. As such, the ratings issued by Standard & Poor's, Fitch and DBRS Morningstar may be used
for regulatory purposes in the United Kingdom in accordance with the UK CRA Regulation until January
2022. Securities issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. A security rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time . Securities issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. A security rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal
at any time by the assigning rating agency.



IMPORTANT NOTICES
IMPORTANT — UK RETAIL INVESTORS

If the Final Terms in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors
— Legend" as applicable, the Securities are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available
to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the United
Kingdom. If the Final Terms in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail
Investors — Legend" as not applicable, the Securities may be offered, sold or otherwise made available
to any retail investor in the United Kingdom, provided that, where a key information document is
required pursuant to the UK PRIIPs Regulation (as defined below), the Securities may only be offered,
sold or otherwise made available to retail investors in the United Kingdom if a key information document
will be made available. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i)
a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of UK
domestic law by virtue of the EUWA, (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA
and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that
customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation
(EVU) No 600/2014 on markets in financial instruments as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of
the EUWA,; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation.
Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part
of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (as amended, the "UK PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or
selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the United Kingdom has
been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to any
retail investor in the United Kingdom may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.

IMPORTANT — EEA RETAIL INVESTORS

If the Final Terms in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors
— Legend" as applicable, the Securities are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available
to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA other
than in an EEA jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available. If the Final
Terms in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors — Legend"
as not applicable, the Securities may be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor
in the EEA, provided that, where a key information document is required pursuant to the EU PRIIPs
Regulation (as defined below), the Securities may only be offered, sold or otherwise made available to
retail investors in an EEA jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available.
For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined
in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MIiFID 11'); (ii) a customer within
the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the "Insurance Distribution Directive"), where that customer
would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not
aqualified investor as defined in EU Prospectus Regulation. Consequently, no key information document
required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the "EU PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the
Securities or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and
therefore offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in
the EEA may be unlawful under the EU PRIIPs Regulation.

UK BENCHMARKS REGULATION

Amounts payable under the Securities may be calculated or otherwise determined by reference to an
index or a combination of indices. Any such index may constitute a benchmark for the purposes of
Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA and regulations
made thereunder (the "UK Benchmarks Regulation™). If any such index does constitute such a
benchmark, the applicable Final Terms will indicate whether or not the benchmark is provided by an
administrator included in the register of administrators and benchmarks established and maintained by
the FCA pursuant to Article 36 of the UK Benchmarks Regulation. Not every index will fall within the
scope of the UK Benchmarks Regulation. Transitional provisions in the UK Benchmarks Regulation may
have the result that the administrator of a particular benchmark is not required to appear in the register
of administrators and benchmarks at the date of the applicable Final Terms. The registration status of
any administrator under the UK Benchmarks Regulation is a matter of public record and, save where
required by applicable law, the Issuer does not intend to update the Final Terms to reflect any change in
the registration status of the administrator.



UK MIFIR PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / TARGET MARKET

The Final Terms in respect of any Securities may include a legend entitled "UK MiFIR product
governance/target market assessment” which will outline the target market assessment in respect of the
Securities and which channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate. Any person subsequently
offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a "distributor") should take into consideration the
target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and
Product Governance Sourcebook (the "UK MIiFIR Product Governance Rules") is responsible for
undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining
the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the UK MiFIR
Product Governance Rules, any Manager subscribing for any Securities is a manufacturer in respect of
such Securities, but otherwise none of the Managers nor any of their respective affiliates will be a
manufacturer for the purpose of the UK MIFIR Product Governance Rules.

NO INVESTMENT ADVICE

Neither the Base Prospectus nor any Final Terms is or purports to be investment advice. Unless expressly
agreed otherwise with a particular investor, neither the Issuer nor any Manager is acting as an investment
adviser, providing advice of any other nature, or assuming any fiduciary obligation to any investor in
Securities.

BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES LUXEMBOURG BRANCH

BNP Paribas Securities Services Luxembourg Branch, being part of a financial group providing client
services with a worldwide network covering different time zones, may entrust parts of its operational
processes to other BNP Paribas Group (as defined below) entities and/or third parties, whilst keeping
ultimate accountability and responsibility in Luxembourg.

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS CONCERNING THE BNP PARIBAS GROUP

In this Base Prospectus, the terms "BNP Paribas" and "BNPP" shall refer to BNP Paribas SA, the parent
company of the BNP Paribas Group. The term "BNP Paribas Group" and "BNPP Group" shall refer
to BNP Paribas SA and its consolidated subsidiaries collectively.
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OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMME

The following overview does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its
entirety by, the remainder of this Base Prospectus and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any
particular issuance of Securities, the applicable Final Terms.

This overview constitutes a general description of the Programme for the purposes of Article 25(1) of
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 2019/980 of 14 March 2019 as it forms part of UK domestic
law by virtue of the EUWA and regulations made thereunder (the "UK PR Regulation”).

Words and expressions defined in the "Form of the Securities” and "Terms and Conditions of the
Securities" shall have the same meanings in this overview.

Issuer BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.")
Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48

Guarantor BNP Paribas ("BNPP" and, together with its consolidated
subsidiaries, the "Group").

Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): ROMUWSFPUSMPROB8K5P83

Form of Securities Certificates are represented by (i) a Permanent Global Certificate,
or (ii) certificates in registered form, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms. Except as provided in the limited circumstances set out
in the Conditions, no Certificates in definitive form will be issued.

Types of Securities Securities may be issued as:

@) Index Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on
and/or the amount payable, on redemption of the Securities
is determined by reference to an Index or a Basket of
Indices (or index futures or options contracts);

(b) Share Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on
and/or the amount payable, on redemption of the Securities
is determined by reference to a Share (or a Stapled Share)
or a Basket of Shares (which may be comprised of one or
more Stapled Shares);

(c) Commodity Securities, where the interest (if any) payable
on and/or the amount payable, on redemption of the
Securities is determined by reference to a Commodity or a
Commodity Index or a Basket of Commaodities or a Basket
of Commodity Indices;

(d) Fund Securities, where the interest (if any) payable on
and/or the amount payable, or assets deliverable, on
redemption of the Securities is determined by reference to
a Fund or a Basket of Funds or a Fund Index or a Basket of
Fund Indices; or

(e) Preference Share Certificates, where the amount payable
on redemption of the Securities is determined by reference
to a Preference Share issued by the Preference Share Issuer
linked to the performance of one or more underlying
asset(s).

Redemption The terms under which Securities may be redeemed (including the
redemption date and the amount payable on redemption as well as
any provisions relating to early redemption) will be determined by
the Issuer at the time of issue of the relevant Securities, specified in
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Interest

Payout methodology

the applicable Final Terms and, if applicable, summarised in the
relevant issue specific summary annexed to the applicable Final
Terms.

Securities may be redeemed early if the performance of the Issuer's
obligations under the Securities has become illegal or by reason of
force majeure or act of state it becomes impossible or impracticable
for the Issuer to perform its obligations under the Securities and/or
any related hedging arrangements. If specified in the applicable
Final Terms, Securities may be redeemed early at the option of the
Issuer at the Optional Redemption Amount specified in the
applicable Final Terms. The Optional Redemption Amount in
respect of each Security shall be the Notional Amount multiplied by
the percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Securities may also be redeemed early following the occurrence
of certain disruption, adjustment, extraordinary or other events.

The Securities may or may not bear or pay interest. Interest paying
Securities will either bear or pay interest determined by reference to
a rate calculated by reference to one or more underlying asset(s)
(each an "Underlying Reference").

The Interest Amount will be calculated and payable on such date or
dates as determined by the Issuer at the time of issue of the relevant
Securities specified in the applicable Final Terms and, if applicable,
summarised in the relevant issue specific summary annexed to the
applicable Final Terms.

The Interest Amount payable may be an amount either related or
unrelated to the performance of the Underlying Reference(s), if
certain conditions are met.

These rates and/or amounts of interest payable may be subject to a
maximum or a minimum.

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, each
Security entitles its holder to receive from the Issuer:

@) In respect of the Redemption Date, the Cash Settlement
Amount (see Security Condition 18 (Certain Definitions
Relating to Valuation and Redemption) and Payout
Conditions 1 and 3), being an amount equal to the Final
Payout specified in the applicable Final Terms (as
described under "Final Payouts" below).

(b) If Automatic Early Redemption is specified as applicable
in the applicable Final Terms and an Automatic Early
Redemption Event occurs, the Automatic Early
Redemption Amount (see Payout Condition 5.1 and as
described under "Automatic Early Redemption” below).

(c) If an Issuer Call Option is specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, the relevant Optional Redemption
Amount (see Payout Condition 4).

(d) In the case of interest paying Certificates, the interest
amount, (see 21(a)(iii) (Determination of Rate of Interest
and Calculation of Interest Amount) and Payout Condition
2, (and as described under "Interest" above).
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Final Payouts

Automatic Early Redemption

Taxation

The terms of a Series of Securities will comprise (i) the Conditions,
(ii) the Annex relevant to the relevant Underlying Reference(s), and
(iii) if selected in the applicable Final Terms, the Interest and/or
Payout(s) selected from "Annex 1 — Additional Terms and
Conditions for Payouts" to the Conditions (the "Payout Annex")
specified in the applicable Final Terms and the related variables
specified in the applicable Final Terms (including the relevant
valuation provisions) for such Interest and/or Payout(s) (as selected
from the Payout Annex).

Investors must review the Conditions, the Annex relevant to the
relevant Underlying Reference(s) and the Payout Annex,
together with the applicable Final Terms to ascertain the terms
and conditions applicable to the Securities.

Structured Products Securities (SPS) Final Payouts

(D) Reverse Convertible Securities (Reverse Convertible
Standard Securities): fixed term products which have a
return linked to both the performance of the Underlying
Reference(s) and a knock-in level. There is no capital
protection and these products pay coupons.

2) Auto-callable Securities (Autocall One Touch Securities
and Autocall Securities): fixed term products that include
an automatic early redemption feature. The return is linked
to the performance of the Underlying Reference(s). The
return is calculated by reference to various mechanisms
(including a knock-in feature). There may be total, partial
or no capital protection.

?3) Indexation Securities (Certi plus: Generic Knock-out
Securities): fixed term products which have a return linked
to the performance of the Underlying Reference(s). The
return is calculated by reference to various mechanisms
(including knock-in or knock-out features). There may be
total, partial or no capital protection.

Automatic Early Redemption Payout (SPS Automatic Early
Redemption Payout)

If an Automatic Early Redemption Event, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms, occurs, the Securities will be redeemed
early at the Automatic Early Redemption Amount on the Automatic
Early Redemption Date.

The Automatic Early Redemption Amount will be equal to the
Automatic Early Redemption Payout specified in the applicable
Final Terms or, if not set out, an amount equal to the product of (i)
the Notional Amount in respect of such Certificate and (ii) the sum
of the relevant Automatic Early Redemption Percentage and the
relevant AER Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms relating
to the Automatic Early Redemption Date.

The Issuer shall deduct all taxes that are required to be withheld
from amounts payable to Holders and can withhold certain taxes and
expenses not previously deducted from amounts paid or assets
delivered to Holders, as the Calculation Agent determines are
attributable to the Securities. The Issuer is not required to pay any
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Negative Pledge

Events of Default

Governing Law

Status

Guarantee

additional amounts or otherwise "gross up" the Holder for such
amounts.

Payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other laws
and regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment or other
laws and regulations to which the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Security
Agent and the Registrar (in the case of Registered Securities) are
subject, (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant
to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, any regulations or
agreements thereunder, any official interpretations thereof, or any
law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto, and (iii)
any withholding or deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m)
of the Code.

In addition, if the Securities are deemed to be "specified securities"
for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the Code, in determining the
amount of withholding or deduction required pursuant to Section
871(m) of the Code imposed with respect to any amounts to be paid
on the Securities, the Issuer shall be entitled to withhold on any
"dividend equivalent” payment (as defined for purposes of Section
871(m) of the Code) at a rate of 30 per cent.

Payments on the Securities that reference U.S. securities or an index
that includes U.S. securities may be calculated by reference to the
net dividends payable on such U.S. securities or net total returns of
the U.S. components of such index. In calculating the relevant
payment amount, the Issuer may withhold, and the holder may be
deemed to have received, 30 per cent. of any "dividend equivalent"
payments (as defined in Section 871(m) of the Code) in respect of
the relevant U.S. securities or U.S. dividend paying index
components, as the case may be. The Issuer will not pay any
additional amounts to the holder on account of the Section 871(m)
amount deemed withheld.

The terms of the Securities will not contain a negative pledge
provision.

The terms of the Securities will not contain events of default.

The Securities, the Agency Agreement (as amended or
supplemented from time to time), the Guarantee and any non-
contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the
Securities, the Agency Agreement (as amended or supplemented
from time to time) and the Guarantee will be governed by and shall
be construed in accordance with English law.

Securities will be issued on an unsecured basis and are
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank
pari passu among themselves.

The Securities will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed
by BNPP pursuant to a deed of guarantee executed by BNPP on or
around 25 June 2021. The obligations under the guarantee are senior
preferred obligations (within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-I-
3° of the French Code monétaire et financier) and unsecured
obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its other
present and future senior preferred and unsecured obligations,
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Ratings

Listing and Admission to
Trading

Selling Restrictions

Exempt Securities

subject to such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory
under French law.

In the event of a bail-in of BNPP but not BNPP B.V., the obligations
and/or amounts owed by BNPP under the guarantee shall be reduced
to reflect any such modification or reduction applied to liabilities of
BNPP resulting from the application of a bail-in of BNPP by any
relevant regulator (including in a situation where the guarantee itself
is not the subject of such bail-in).

BNPP B.V.'s long term credit rating is A+ with a negative outlook
(S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited) and BNPP B.V.'s short term
credit rating is A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited).

BNPP's long term credit ratings are A+ with a stable outlook (S&P
Global Ratings Europe Limited), Aa3 with a stable outlook
(Moody's Investors Service Ltd.), AA- with a negative outlook
(Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited) (which is the long-term rating
assigned to BNPP's senior preferred debt by Fitch) and AA (low)
with a stable outlook (DBRS Rating GmbH) and BNPP's short-term
credit ratings are A-1 (S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited), P-1
(Moody's Investors Service Ltd.), F1+ (Fitch Ratings Ireland
Limited) and R-1 (middle) (DBRS Rating GmbH).

Securities issued under the Base Prospectus will be unrated.

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

Securities issued under this Base Prospectus may be listed and
admitted to trading on the Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange or such other organised market, third country
market, SME market or other trading system specified in the
applicable Final Terms, or may be issued on an unlisted basis.

The Securities will be freely transferable, subject to the offering and
selling restrictions in the United States, the European Economic
Area, the United Kingdom and under the laws of any jurisdiction in
which the relevant Securities are offered or sold.

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the UK Prospectus
Regulation only applies to Securities which are to be admitted to
trading on a regulated market in the United Kingdom and/or offered
to the public in the United Kingdom other than in circumstances
where an exemption is available under Article 1(4) and/or Article
3(2) of the UK Prospectus Regulation. Under the Programme
Memorandum, the Issuer may issue Exempt Securities (being
Securities for which no prospectus is required to be published under
the UK Prospectus Regulation). In the case of Exempt Securities,
any terms and conditions not contained in Programme
Memorandum which are applicable to such Exempt Securities will
be set out in a pricing supplement document (the "Pricing
Supplement"). The form of Pricing Supplement for Exempt
Securities is set out in the Programme Memorandum herein (see the
schedule thereto entitled "Form of Pricing Supplement™). For the
purposes of any Exempt Securities, references herein to "Final
Terms" shall be deemed to be to "Pricing Supplement" and
references herein to "Base Prospectus” shall be construed instead to
be "Programme Memorandum". For the avoidance of doubt, the
Pricing Supplement does not constitute "final terms™ as such term is
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used under the UK Prospectus Regulation and the Programme
Memorandum does not constitute a base prospectus for the purposes
of Article 8 of the UK Prospectus Regulation. The FCA has neither
approved nor reviewed information contained in the
Programme Memorandum in connection with Exempt
Securities.
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RISK FACTORS

Prospective purchasers of the Securities offered hereby should consider carefully, among other things
and in light of their financial circumstances and investment objectives, all of the information in this Base
Prospectus and, in particular, the risks set forth below (which the Issuer, in its reasonable opinion,
believes represents or may represent the material risks known to it which may affect the Issuer's ability
to fulfil its obligations under the Securities) in making an investment decision.

The risks described below may be cumulative and/or may apply simultaneously, and it may not be
possible to predict the effect that any combination of risk factors may have on the value of and return on
the Securities. The effect of any one factor may be offset or magnified by the effect of another factor.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise defined have the meanings given to them in the relevant
Conditions.
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RISK FACTORS RELATING TO BNPP AND ITS INDUSTRY

See "Risk Factors" under Chapter 5 on pages 350 to 365 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document, which is incorporated by reference in this document.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO BNPP B.V.

The main risks described in the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document in relation to BNPP also
represent the main risks for BNPP B.V., either as an individual entity or a company of the BNP Paribas
Group.

Dependency Risk

BNPP B.V. is an operating company. The assets of BNPP B.V. consist of the obligations of other BNP
Paribas Group entities. In respect of securities it issues, the ability of BNPP B.V. to meet its obligations
under such securities depends on the receipt by it of payments under certain hedging agreements that it
enters with other BNP Paribas Group entities. Consequently, Holders of Securities issued by BNPP B.V.
will, subject to the provisions of the Guarantee issued by BNPP, be exposed to the ability of BNP Paribas
Group entities to perform their obligations under such hedging agreements and may suffer losses should
these entities fail to satisfy their obligations.

More generally, the creditworthiness of BNPP B.V. depends on the creditworthiness of BNPP. In the
case of bankruptcy proceedings of BNPP B.V. or any other similar proceedings affecting the Issuer,
Holders of securities will become creditors of BNPP pursuant to the relevant guarantee granted by BNPP.
Holders should also refer to risk factor 6.3 The BNP Paribas Group could experience an unfavourable
change in circumstances, causing it to become subject to a resolution proceeding: BNP Paribas Group
security holders could suffer losses as a result” in the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document for
a description of the impact of resolution on the BNP Paribas Group.
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Credit risk

BNPP B.V. has significant concentration of credit risks, as its issuances are hedged through OTC
transactions with its parent company, BNPP, and other BNPP Group entities. Such credit risks amount
to the total size of its balance sheet (EUR 69.6 billion as at 31 December 2020). Therefore, if BNPP or
any other BNPP Group entity fails to satisfy its obligations in respect of any such hedging transaction,
BNPP B.V. will not receive payment which is required by BNPP B.V. to meet its own payment
obligations under the Securities issued by it. Holders of Securities issued by BNPP B.V. may suffer
losses as a result.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO SECURITIES

A number of the risks described below may be relevant to a specific Series of Securities, depending on
the terms of those Securities. The effect of this compounding of risks is likely to increase the volatility
of the Securities and increase the possibility that a Holder loses some or all of their investment or does
not receive the anticipated return.

1. Risks Relating to the Structure of the Securities
1.1 Risks associated with SPS Products

The return on the Securities depends on the performance of the Underlying Reference(s) and
whether a knock-in, knock-out or other barrier feature applies. As a consequence, investors may
be exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

Where the Securities include a knock-in feature (for example, where any of the Final Payouts
named "Reverse Convertible Standard Securities”, "Autocall One Touch Securities"”, "Autocall
Securities” or "Certi plus: Generic Knock-out Securities" is applicable), the final return of the
Securities may be directly linked to the performance of the Underlying Reference or the worst-
performing Underlying Reference if the relevant level, price or value of such Underlying
Reference fails to meet the specified threshold or barrier. In this event, investors may lose some
or all of their investments.

Where the Securities include a barrier feature such as a knock-out feature or a final redemption
condition feature (for example, where any of the Final Payouts named "Autocall One Touch
Securities" or "Autocall Securities" is applicable), the final return of the Securities may be
directly linked to the performance of the Underlying Reference or the worst-performing
Underlying Reference if the relevant level, price or value of such Underlying Reference meets
the specified threshold or barrier. If the relevant level, price or value of such Underlying
Reference fails to meet the specified threshold or barrier, investors may be unable to participate
in any positive movement in such Underlying Reference and thus realise a lower return than
they would have if had invested directly in such Underlying Reference. In this event, investors
may lose some or all of their investments.

If the Securities include a 'digital' coupon feature (for example, where the coupon payout named
"Digital Coupon" is applicable), the higher pre-determined coupon amount is only paid if the
level, price or value of the Underlying Reference(s) on the relevant valuation date(s) meets the
performance criteria; otherwise the lower pre-determined coupon amount will be paid or no
coupon amount will be paid, as the case may be. If the Underlying Reference(s) never fulfils the
performance criteria for the higher coupon amount, investors may not receive any interest at all
for the lifetime of the Securities (regardless of whether a return is realised at maturity by
reference to the applicable payout terms).

If the Securities include a 'snowball' coupon feature (for example, where the coupon payout
named "Snowball Digital Coupon" is applicable), the Securities may be redeemed at par
together with a coupon amount which is only payable if the Underlying Reference(s) on the
relevant valuation date(s) meets certain performance criteria. If such performance criteria are
never met through the lifetime of the Securities, the Securities may be redeemed at par only. In
this event, investors may recover their investment, but may not achieve any appreciation of their
investment.

The payout in respect of the Securities may include an automatic early redemption mechanism
and the automatic early redemption amount may be payable instead of a cash settlement amount
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1.2

1.3

14

15

at maturity. Depending on the applicable formula, if an automatic early redemption event occurs
investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

The formulae, relevant variables and other related provisions of these products are more fully
described in "Annex 1 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Payouts". Please also refer to the
worked examples set out in the section entitled "How the Return on your Investment is
Calculated".

Securities subject to early redemption at the option of the Issuer, other early redemption
(including Automatic Early Redemption) and consequences of early redemption

An optional or other early redemption feature (including an Automatic Early Redemption
feature) is likely to limit the market value of the Securities. In the case of Securities with an
optional redemption feature, during any period when the Issuer may elect to redeem the relevant
Securities, the market value of those Securities generally will not rise substantially above the
price at which they can be redeemed. This may also be true prior to any redemption period. In
addition, the Final Terms may provide that the relevant Securities will be redeemed early in
specified circumstances, such as the occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event (as defined
in Security Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption
Events), an Optional Additional Disruption Event (as defined in Security Condition 15
(Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)) and/or an
Automatic Early Redemption Event (as defined in Payout Condition 5.1 (Definitions for SPS
Automatic Early Redemption)). Following an optional or other early redemption (including an
Automatic Early Redemption), a Holder generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption
proceeds (if any) at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the relevant Securities
being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. As a consequence,
the Holder may lose some or all of their investment. Investors should consider reinvestment risk
in light of other investments available at that time. In addition, in the case of Securities with an
Automatic Early Redemption feature, the value of the Securities and the amount that Holders
receive upon an Automatic Early Redemption may not correlate with the value of the
Underlying Reference, which may trigger such Automatic Early Redemption and Holders could
receive a significantly lower return than expected in relation to the change in value of the
Underlying Reference.

Cost of borrowing

Holders of Securities that are "short™ (or "put™) Securities should note that the price of such
Securities may include a premium charged to Holders which reflects the cost to the Issuer or its
Affiliates of borrowing the Underlying Reference(s). Holders will not receive a refund of this
premium if an Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs or upon the exercise of an Issuer Call
Option, and consequently may significantly reduce the return a Holder stands to receive on its
investment.

Minimum trading amount may affect a Holder's ability to transfer their Securities

If the Securities have a minimum trading amount, a Holder will not be permitted to transfer its
Securities prior to redemption without purchasing enough additional Securities to hold the
minimum trading amount. The Holder may not be able to purchase additional Securities, in
which case they will have to wait until redemption of the Securities to realise any value. If they
are able to purchase additional Securities, this may be at a price higher than their original
investment and is likely to adversely affect the overall return they achieve on their investment.

Certain specific information may not be known at the beginning of an offer period

Where an indicative range is specified in the Final Terms at the start of an offer period in respect
of the issue price, gearing, gearing up, gearing down, any constant percentage, barrier value or
level, floor percentage, knock-in level and/or knock-out level, in respect of any Securities,
prospective purchasers of such Securities should be aware that the actual price, rate, level or
percentage, as applicable, may only be determined at the end of the offer period based on the
prevailing market conditions at the time. The final price, rate, level or percentage may lower or
higher than another price, rate, level or percentage within the indicative range. Furthermore, the
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1.6

1.7

actual price, rate, level or percentage so selected may not be the optimum price, rate, level or
percentage at which the interest payable and/or final return on the Securities will be maximised,
or may reduce the return that a Holder may otherwise receive on its investment if another price,
rate, level or percentage within the indicative range had been selected.

Limited exposure to Underlying Reference(s)

If the applicable Final Terms provide that the exposure of the relevant Securities to one or more
Underlying References is limited or capped at a certain level or amount, the relevant Securities
will not benefit from any upside in the value of any such Underlying Reference(s) beyond such
limit or cap. In this case, Holders will not receive as much from their investment as they would
have done if they had invested directly in the Underlying Reference(s) or in alternative
Securities without such features. The likelihood of this occurring is dependent on the likelihood
of the Underlying Reference(s) performing such that the limit or cap affects the Securities.

In the case of Preference Share Certificates, the final return on such Securities will be directly
proportional to the upward or downward movement of the final value of the Underlying
Preference Share compared its initial value. The value of the Underlying Preference Share in
turn will be determined by its underlying reference(s) in accordance with the conditions of the
Underlying Preference Share. If the conditions of the Underlying Preference Share provide that
the exposure of such Underlying Preference Share to one or more underlying references is
limited or capped at a certain level or amount, such Underlying Preference Share will not benefit
from any upside in the value of any of its underlying reference(s) beyond such limit or cap. In
this case, the value of the Underlying Preference Share will not be as high as it would be without
any limit or cap. This will in turn result in a lower return on the Preference Share Certificates.

Risk of leveraged exposure

Securities including a leverage feature (such as a 'gearing’, 'gearing up' or 'gearing down' factor)
magnify gains and losses (for example, where any of the Final Payouts named "Autocall One
Touch Securities", "Autocall Securities" or "Certi plus: Generic Knock-out Securities" is
applicable). The exact leverage mechanism, including the relevant gearing, gearing up or
gearing down factor, will be specified in the relevant Final Terms. The leverage factor may be
greater than 100 per cent. (but the maximum leverage factor is not expected to exceed 200 per
cent.) which means that Holders may participate disproportionately in any positive performance
and/or may have a disproportionate exposure to any negative performance of the Underlying
References(s). If an Underlying Reference moves against expectations and results in a loss, any
resulting loss in the value of the Underlying Reference(s) will be magnified by such leverage
feature. Conversely, the leverage factor may be less than 100 per cent. (but the minimum
leverage factor is expected to be greater than zero) which means that Holders may not participate
fully in the positive performance of the Underlying Reference(s). Holders of Securities with
such leverage feature may therefore risk losing a greater proportion of their investment than
they would have if they had invested in a Security that is not leveraged.

Please also refer to the worked examples set out in the section entitled "How the Return on your
Investment is Calculated".

In the case of Preference Share Certificates, the final return on such Securities will be directly
proportional to the upward or downward movement of the final value of the Underlying
Preference Share compared its initial value. The value of the Underlying Preference Share in
turn will be determined by its underlying reference(s) in accordance with the conditions of the
Underlying Preference Share. An Underlying Preference Share including a leverage feature
(such as a 'gearing’, 'gearing up' or 'gearing down' factor) magnifies gains and losses. The exact
leverage mechanism, including the relevant gearing, gearing up or gearing down factor, will be
specified in the conditions of the Underlying Preference Share. If an underlying reference of
such Underlying Preference Share moves against expectations and results in a loss, any resulting
loss in the value of the underlying reference(s) will be magnified by such leverage feature. This
will in turn result in holders of Preference Share Certificates losing a greater proportion of their
investment than they would have if the Preference Share Certificates were linked to an
Underlying Preference Share that is not leveraged.
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Additional risks associated with Preference Share Certificates

The following risks are applicable in respect of Preference Share Certificates issued in
accordance with the provisions set out in "Annex 6 — Additional Terms and Conditions for
Preference Share Certificates".

(a)  Risks associated with the Preference Share Underlying(s)

The Issuer may issue Preference Share Certificates, as more fully described in "Annex 6
- Additional Terms and Conditions for Preference Share Certificates". If as a result of
the performance of the Preference Share Underlying(s), the performance of the
preference shares is negative, the value of the Preference Share Certificates will be
adversely affected. Purchasers of Preference Share Certificates risk losing all or a part of
their investment if the value of the preference shares does not move in the anticipated
direction.

(b)  Risks relating to an early redemption of the Preference Share Certificates

The Issuer will redeem the Preference Share Certificates in whole at the Early
Redemption Amount if, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, an illegality, force
majeure, Potential Adjustment Event, Additional Disruption Event, Optional Additional
Disruption Event or Extraordinary Event occurs or if the Preference Share Issuer delivers
a notice to the Issuer in respect of early redemption of the preference shares. The Early
Redemption Amount may be less (and in certain circumstances, significantly less) than
investors' initial investment and Holders will not benefit from any appreciation of the
preference shares that may occur following such redemption. Holders will also face this
risk if the Preference Share Certificates include an auto-call feature which triggers an
automatic early redemption of the Preference Share Certificates if the performance of the
Preference Share Underlying satisfies certain conditions.

(¢)  Risks relating to the Preference Share Issuer and the Preference Shares

Holders of Preference Share Certificates are exposed to the credit risk of the Preference
Share Issuer, as Preference Share Certificates are linked to the performance of the
relevant preference shares issued by the Preference Share Issuer. The Preference Share
Issuer is an operating company whose sole business activity is the issue of redeemable
preference shares and does not otherwise have any cashflows. As its own funds are
limited, a deterioration in the creditworthiness of or any misappropriation of funds or
other fraudulent action by the Preference Share Issuer (or person acting on its behalf)
could have a significant adverse effect on the value of the preference shares, and thus, a
significant adverse effect on the value of the Preference Share Certificates.

There are no events of default under the Securities

The Terms and Conditions of the Securities do not include events of default allowing for the
acceleration of the Securities if certain events occur. Accordingly, if the Issuer or the Guarantor
fail to meet any obligations under the Securities, including the payment of any interest or
bankruptcy proceedings are instituted, Holders will not be able to accelerate the payment of
principal. Upon a payment default, the sole remedy available to Holders for recovery of amounts
owing in respect of any payment of principal or interest on their Securities will be the institution
of proceedings to enforce such payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer or the
Guarantor will not, by virtue of the institution of any such proceedings, be obliged to pay any
sum or sums sooner than the same would otherwise have been payable by it, meaning investors
could lose all or part of their investment. As a result, the value of the Securities and/or their
liquidity in the secondary market could be negatively affected.

The terms of the Securities do not contain a negative pledge and the Issuer is entitled to incur
additional debt

There is no negative pledge in respect of the Securities and the Terms and Conditions of the
Securities place no restrictions on the incurrence by the Issuer or the Guarantor of additional
obligations that rank pari passu with, or senior to, the Securities. In addition, the Issuer or the
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Guarantor may pledge assets to secure other notes or debt instruments without granting an
equivalent pledge or security interest and status to the Securities. An increase of the outstanding
amount of such securities or other liabilities could reduce the amount (if any) recoverable by
the Holders on a winding-up of the Issuer, if the amount outstanding exceeds the assets of the
Issuer, Holders could suffer a loss of their entire investment if the Issuer becomes insolvent
(whether voluntarily or otherwise).

Risks Relating to the Underlying Reference(s) and Disruption and/or Adjustment
Mechanisms

Risks associated with Underlying Reference Securities

Securities issued under this Base Prospectus may be linked to the performance of one or more
Underlying Reference(s) (as further described in the "Investment Considerations™ section
below) (such Securities, "Underlying Reference Securities"). Depending on the terms of the
Underlying Reference Securities, the amount payable on redemption or in interest will be
determined by reference to the value of one or more Underlying References specified in the
applicable Final Terms. If an Underlying Reference does not perform as expected, this will have
a material adverse impact on the amounts (if any) that Holders will receive in respect of the
Securities and may also negatively affect the value of the Securities.

Absence of rights in respect of the Underlying Reference(s)

The Securities do not represent a claim against any Underlying Reference (or any issuer,
sponsor, manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference) and Holders
will not have any right of recourse under the Securities to any such Underlying Reference (or
any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference).
The Securities are not in any way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by any issuer, sponsor,
manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference. As such, such entities
are not required to take into account the interests of the Holders of Securities and may make
determinations and/or take actions which go against the interests of the Holders.

The value of Underlying References may be subject to market fluctuations

Depending on the Underlying Reference, the value of a Holder's investment in Underlying
Reference Securities, may be significantly adversely affected by the negative impact of market
fluctuations caused by economic and political developments, changes in interest rates and
perceived trends in the prices of securities.

Interest linked to an Underlying Reference

In the case of Linked Interest Securities (see Security Condition 21(a) (Interest on Linked
Interest Certificates), where the amount of interest payable is determined by reference to the
performance of an Underlying Reference or a basket of Underlying References, Holders are
subject to the following risks:

(a)  the market price of such Securities may be volatile, and so Holders may only be able to
sell their Securities in the secondary market at a loss (if they are able to sell at all);

(by  they may receive no interest;

(¢)  payment of interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected,
which could negatively affect the value of the Securities;

(dy  an Underlying Reference may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate
with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the yield may be less than
other comparable investments;

(e) if an Underlying Reference in a basket has a disproportionately greater weighting

compared to other basket components or a weighting greater than one or contains some
other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the value of such Underlying Reference on
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interest payable will be magnified and could magnify any loss of interest that Holders
would experience compared to an investment in Securities without such features; and

(f) interest may only be payable and/or calculated in respect of certain specified days and/or
periods on or during which the Underlying Reference or its value equals, exceeds and/or
is less than certain specified thresholds and if such conditions are not satisfied, Holders
may not receive any interest, thus negatively affecting the Holder's overall yield.

Investment decision based on publicly available information

Holders are required to make their investment decision on the basis of information that is
publicly available. Therefore, Holders are exposed to the risk that information that is
subsequently made public could adversely affect the trading price of the Underlying
Reference(s), which could have a significant adverse impact on the value of the Securities.

Risks associated with the occurrence of Additional Disruption Events and/or Optional
Additional Disruption Events

If an Additional Disruption Event occurs or any Optional Additional Disruption Event specified
in the applicable Final Terms occurs (each as defined in Security Condition 15 (Additional
Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)), the Securities may be subject
to adjustment (including, in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares,
adjustments to the Basket of Shares), early redemption or the amount payable on scheduled
redemption may be different from the amount expected to be paid at scheduled redemption. Any
of these consequences is likely to have a material adverse effect on the value and liquidity of
the Securities and/or the return a Holder can expect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence of a Disrupted Day may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the
Index Securities or Share Securities

If, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event as described in the
Index Security Conditions or Share Security Conditions, as the case may be, has occurred or the
relevant exchange has not opened on a date for valuation in respect of an issue of Index
Securities or Share Securities (a "Disrupted Day"), any consequential postponement of the
valuation date, or any alternative provisions for valuation provided in any Securities in respect
of an Underlying Reference (including any Underlying Reference included in a basket) may
have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities, particularly if the
Redemption Date of the Securities is postponed as a consequence.

Additional risks associated with Index Securities

Index Securities are linked to the performance of one or more underlying indices (each, an
"Index"), each of which may reference various asset classes such as equities, bonds, currency
exchange rates or property price data, or could reference a mixture of asset classes. Investors in
Index Securities face the risk of a broader set of circumstances that mean that the assets
underlying the Index do not perform as expected compared to an investment in conventional
debt securities. Accordingly, the return on an investment in Index Securities is more likely to
be adversely affected than an investment in conventional debt securities. The terms and
conditions relevant to Index Securities are set out in "Annex 2 — Additional Terms and
Conditions for Index Securities".

The occurrence of an Index Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders of Index Securities

The occurrence of an Index Modification, an Index Cancellation or an Index Disruption (each
being an "Index Adjustment Event", as more fully described in Index Security Condition 3.2
(Modification and Cessation of Calculation of an Index)) may lead to (i) changes in the
calculation of the relevant value or price (if the Calculation Agent determines such Index
Adjustment Event has a material effect on the Securities), (ii) early redemption of the Securities
or (iii) the amount payable on scheduled redemption of the Securities being different from the
amount expected to be paid at scheduled redemption. Any such adjustment or early redemption
of the Index Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities
and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.
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Additional risks associated with Share Securities

Unlike a direct investment in any Share(s) (including share(s), Stapled Share(s), GDR(s) and/or
ADR(s)), an investment in Share Securities does not entitle Holders to vote or receive dividends
or distributions (unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms). Accordingly, the return on Share
Securities will not be the same as a direct investment in the relevant Share(s) and Holders could
receive less than they would have done on a direct investment. The terms and conditions relevant
to Share Securities are set out in "Annex 3 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Share
Securities".

An adjustment to Share Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact
Holders

In the case of Share Securities, following the declaration by the Basket Company or Share
Company, as the case may be (or, in the case of Stapled Shares, an issuer of each constituent
share comprising the Stapled Shares), of the occurrence of any Potential Adjustment Event (as
more fully described in Share Security Condition 3 (Potential Adjustment Events)), the
Calculation Agent will, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner,
determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or concentrative effect on the
theoretical value of the Shares (or the Stapled Shares, as the case may be) and, if so, will make
the corresponding adjustment, if any, to any terms of the Securities as the Calculation Agent
acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner determines appropriate to account
for that diluting or concentrative effect (provided that no adjustments will be made to account
solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the
relevant Share (or the relevant Stapled Shares, as the case may be)). Such adjustment may have
an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share Securities and accordingly the
amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Extraordinary Events relating to Share Securities

Following the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event (as defined in Share Security Condition 4
(Extraordinary Events)) in relation to a Share, the terms of the Share Securities may be adjusted
(including, in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or
substitution of constituent shares of the Basket of Shares), the Share Securities may be redeemed
in whole or in part or the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment corresponding to
adjustments made by an Options Exchange.

An adjustment to the Share Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of
the affected Share Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their
investment. If the Share Securities are early redeemed, an investor generally would not be able
to reinvest the relevant proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the effective return on
the relevant Securities being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower
rate, and investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at
that time. Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in relation to a Share may
have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Securities and accordingly the amount
Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event relating to Commodity Securities may have an
adverse impact on Holders

If a Market Disruption Event (as defined in Commodity Security Condition 2 (Market
Disruption)) occurs or is continuing on a date for valuation in respect of Commaodity Securities,
then the Calculation Agent may make any relevant calculation in respect of the Commodity
Securities using an alternative value in lieu of the published price, the affected Commodity or
Commodity Index may be substituted or the Issuer will early redeem the Securities. Any such
adjustment or early redemption of the Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and
liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their
investment.

The occurrence of a Commodity Index Adjustment Event may adversely impact Holders of
Commodity Securities that reference a Commodity Index

24



2.15

2.16

2.17

The occurrence of a Commaodity Index Modification, Commaodity Index Cancellation or
Commodity Index Disruption (each being a "Commodity Index Adjustment Event", as more
fully described in Commodity Security Condition 4.2 (Modification and Cessation of
Calculation of Commodity Index)) may lead to (i) the Calculation Agent determining the
Relevant Price using, in lieu of a published level, the Commodity Fallback Value (if the
Calculation Agent determines such Commaodity Index Adjustment Event has a material effect
on the Securities), or (ii) early redemption of the Securities. Any such adjustment or early
redemption of the Commodity Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity
of such Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Additional risks associated with Commodity Securities valued by reference to Futures Contracts

Commodity Securities may be linked to the performance of a futures or options contract over
an underlying commodity (as more fully described in "Annex 6 — Additional Terms and
Conditions for Commodity Securities"). If such underlying futures or options contract does not
perform as expected, an investor in such types of Securities may receive a lower return (and
could receive a significantly lower return) than anticipated.

The performance of futures and options contracts can be affected by, among other things, the
liquidity of the futures or options exchange and events beyond the control of the futures or
options exchange. There may be significant differences between the value of spot markets and
the futures or options markets for the underlying commodity. Accordingly, an investment in
Securities referencing such futures contracts may perform worse than a comparable investment
in Commaodity Securities that do not reference a futures or options contract or even a direct
investment in the relevant underlying commaodity.

Additional risks associated with Commodity Securities that are Rolling Futures Contract
Securities

If the terms of the Commodity Securities contemplate that the underlying futures contract will
roll to maintain ongoing exposure to such underlying futures contract throughout the term of the
Commodity Securities, the value of the Commodity Securities and an investor's expected return
on the Commodity Securities will depend on the performance of the futures market. If the
market is in backwardation (where the price of the near-dated futures contract is greater than
the longer-dated futures contract), any loss in value that the Holder experiences in respect of the
Commodity Securities will be increased, as the Holder's synthetic exposure to the longer-dated
futures contract is greater. However, if the market is in contango (where the price of the near-
dated futures contract is less than the longer-dated futures contract), any gain in value that the
Holder experiences in respect of the Commodity Securities will be reduced, as the Holder's
synthetic exposure to the longer-dated futures contract is lower. The relevant provisions for
Rolling Futures Contract Securities will depend on the relevant Underlying Reference and are
more fully described in Commaodity Security Condition 6 (Rolling Futures Contract Securities).

Futures contracts will roll on a specified date (the "Futures Rollover Date"). At each Futures
Rollover Date there may be expenses incurred in replacing the futures contract which may have
an adverse effect on the return on the Commaodity Securities. Investors should be aware that in
respect of Rolling Futures Contract Securities, the price difference between the futures contracts
involved on each Futures Rollover Date may have a negative effect on the value of the Rolling
Futures Contract Securities and in the long term be higher than the positive performance of the
Underlying Reference and result in a total loss of a Holder's investment in the Rolling Futures
Contract Securities. The effect of this will be greater the longer the term of an investor's
investment in Rolling Futures Contract Securities.

Additional risks associated with Fund Securities

The value of underlying fund shares or units or the level of an underlying fund index in respect
of Fund Securities will be affected by the investment strategy of the relevant fund. The
investment strategy is often opaque and may not be publicly available. In addition, funds are
often illiquid and/or unregulated. If the investment strategy does not perform as expected, there
are limited methods by which direct investments in fund shares or units can be exited. The value
of the fund shares or units or the level of a fund index is also exposed to the performance of
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various fund service providers, in particular, the investment adviser. Taking these circumstances
into account, compared to other types of investment, there is a greater risk associated with an
investment in Fund Securities that the value of the Securities may be adversely affected (and
could fall to zero) and the return an investor can expect to receive may be less than expected
(and could fall to zero). The terms and conditions relevant to Fund Securities are set out in
"Annex 5 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund Securities".

The occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse impact on Holders

If an Extraordinary Fund Event (as further described in the "Investment Considerations" section
below and Fund Security Condition 2 (Extraordinary Fund Events)) occurs, the Issuer may, (i)
adjust the terms of the Fund Securities to reflect such event, (ii) substitute the relevant Fund
Shares, or (iii) early redeem the Fund Securities. Consequently, the occurrence of an
Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Securities
and the amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Date for redemption may be postponed if Hedge Provider does not receive redemption proceeds
from Fund Shares

In the event that redemption proceeds in respect of the underlying Fund Shares are not received
by the Hedge Provider on or prior to the scheduled date for redemption, the Redemption Date
of the Fund Securities may be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other
period as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms) in accordance with Fund Security
Condition 5 (Redemption Date/Automatic Early Redemption Date/Termination Date Extension)
and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay. Such delay could have a
significant adverse impact on the amount that the Holder would have otherwise received had
such date for redemption not been postponed.

Risks Relating to the Market
Certain factors affecting the value and trading price of Securities

The trading price of the Securities may be affected by a number of factors including, but not
limited to, the relevant price, value or level of the Underlying Reference(s), the time remaining
until the scheduled redemption date of the Securities, the actual or implied volatility associated
with the Underlying Reference(s) and the correlation risk of the relevant Underlying
Reference(s).

The possibility that the value and trading price of the Securities will fluctuate (either positively
or negatively) depends on a number of factors, which investors should consider carefully before
purchasing or selling Securities, including:

(a)  the trading price of the Securities;

(b)  depending on the applicable payout or coupon amount rates (if applicable), movements
in the value and/or volatility of the Underlying Reference may cause the value of the
Securities to either rise or fall;

(¢)  depending on the applicable payout or coupon amount rates (if applicable), the value of
the Securities may fluctuate as the time remaining until the scheduled redemption date
decreases;

(dy  the probable range of Cash Settlement Amounts;

(e¢)  depending on the applicable payout or coupon amount rates (if applicable), movements
in interest rates and/or dividends (if applicable) may cause the theoretical value of the
Securities to either rise or fall;

(f)  any change(s) in currency exchange rates;

(g} the depth of the market or liquidity of the Underlying Reference(s) as specified in the
applicable Final Terms; and
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(hy  any related transaction costs.

Such factors may mean that the trading price of the Securities is below the Cash Settlement
Amount and accordingly, Holders may receive an amount or an asset with a value significantly
lower than the amount that they invested to purchase the Securities.

A Security's purchase price may not reflect its inherent value

Prospective investors in the Securities should be aware that the purchase price of a Security does
not necessarily reflect its inherent value. Any difference between a Security's purchase price
and its inherent value may be due to a number of different factors including, without limitation,
prevailing market conditions and fees, discounts or commissions paid or accorded to the various
parties involved in structuring and/or distributing the Security. Any such difference in value
could negatively affect the return an investor may receive. For further information prospective
investors should refer to the party from whom they are purchasing the Securities. Prospective
investors may also wish to seek an independent valuation of Securities prior to their purchase.

Possible illiquidity of the Securities in the secondary market

For certain issues of Securities, BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. is required to act as market-
maker, in which case it will endeavour to maintain a secondary market throughout the life of
the Securities. However, during certain periods, it may be difficult, impractical or impossible
for BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. to quote bid and offer prices, and during such periods, it may
be difficult, impracticable or impossible to buy or sell these Securities. Adverse market
conditions, volatile prices or large price fluctuations, a large marketplace being closed or
restricted or experiencing technical problems such as an IT system failure or network disruption
could affect BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.'s ability to maintain a secondary market.

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase Securities at any price in the open
market or by tender or private offer/treaty. Any Manager may also be a market-maker for an
issue of Securities but it is not obliged to and may cease to do so at any time. Even if a Manager
is a market-maker for an issue of Securities (including where BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.
acts as market-maker), the secondary market for such Securities may be limited.

The only means through which a Holder can realise value from their Securities prior to its
Redemption Date is to sell them at the market price in an available secondary market, which
may be a lower price than a Holder's original investment. If there is no or a limited secondary
market for the Securities and the Holder is unable to sell its Securities they will have to wait
until redemption of the Securities to realise any value.

Effect of credit rating reduction

The value of the Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of
the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor. Such perceptions are generally influenced
by the ratings attributed to the outstanding securities of BNPP B.V. or BNPP by standard
statistical rating services, such as S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited, Fitch Ratings Ireland
Limited, Moody's France SAS and Moody's Investors Service Ltd. A reduction in the rating, if
any, attributed to outstanding debt securities of BNPP B.V. or BNPP by one of these rating
agencies could result in a reduction in the trading value of the Securities. Holders of Securities
who seek to realise gains on their investments by selling their Securities in the open market may
realise reduced gains, or may realise no gain, on their investments as a result.

Risks associated with Securities with a nexus to emerging markets

Where the value and return an investor can expect to receive in respect of the Securities depends
on the performance of one or more Underlying References issued by issuers located in, or
subject to regulation in, emerging or developing countries, denominated in the currency of, or
are traded in, emerging or developing countries or where the Securities are denominated in
currencies of emerging or developing countries, Holders are exposed to greater risks associated
with political and economic uncertainty, adverse governmental policies, restrictions on foreign
investment and currency convertibility, currency exchange rate fluctuations, possible lower
levels of disclosure and regulation, and uncertainties as to the status, interpretation and
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application of laws including, but not limited to, those relating to expropriation, nationalisation
and confiscation. Holders of Securities with such a nexus to emerging or developing countries
are exposed to the risk that such Securities may be less liquid and the prices of such Securities
more volatile, thus increasing the risk that such Holders may experience a loss on their
investment. In addition, settlement of trades in such markets may be slower and more likely to
be subject to failure than in markets in developed countries.

Investors in such Securities should also be aware that the probability of the occurrence of a
Hedging Disruption Event (or other Adjustment Event under the relevant terms of the Securities
as set out further in the Security Conditions) and consequently loss of investment or profit by
an investor may be higher for certain developing or emerging markets.

Exchange control risks

There is a risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Settlement Currency (as specified in
the applicable Final Terms) and/or the currency in which the Underlying Reference is
denominated, such as government and monetary authorities, may impose or modify (as some
have done in the past) exchange controls that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate
or the ability to transfer of funds in and out of the relevant country. Such exchange controls, if
imposed would have a negative impact on the amount a Holder is able to realise from Securities
denominated in an affected Settlement Currency or referencing an affected Underlying
Reference.

The imposition of exchange controls in respect of a Relevant Currency could significantly
increase the risk of an FX Settlement Disruption Event (as defined in Security Condition5(vi)
(Provisions Relating to FX Settlement Disruption in Respect of Securities) occurring. If an FX
Settlement Disruption Event occurs payments of principal and/or interest (if applicable) may (i)
occur at a different time than expected and that no additional amount of interest will be payable
in respect of any delay in payment of principal and/or interest amount and (ii) be made in USD.
The occurrence of an FX Settlement Disruption Event could have a significant adverse impact
on the amount a Holder receives in respect of the Securities and may mean that the Holder is
unable to receive payment in the desired currency. If the Holder receives payment in USD, it
may not be able to exchange the amount received into the relevant Settlement Currency or it
may only be able to do so at an exchange rate that significantly adversely impacts the amount
the Holder ultimately receives in the Settlement Currency.

Legal Risks
Meetings of Holders

The Terms and Conditions of the Securities contain provisions for calling meetings (including
by way of conference call or by use of a video conference platform) of Holders to consider
matters affecting their interests generally (see Security Condition 9.4 (Meetings of Holders)).
These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Holders, including Holders who did not
attend and vote at the relevant meeting, Holders who did not consent to the Written Resolutions
and Holders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority. General meetings or written
consultations may deliberate on any proposal relating to the modification of the conditions of
the Securities. While it is not possible to assess the likelihood that the Conditions will need to
be amended during the term of the Securities by a meeting of the Holders, if a decision is adopted
by a majority of Holders and such modifications impair or limit the rights of Holders, this may
negatively affect the market value of the Securities, although the probability of such a decision
being taken by Holders is considered to be low.

The Issuer or the Guarantor may be substituted by another entity

The conditions of the Securities provide that the Issuer may, following the occurrence of certain
events, without the consent of the Holders, agree to the substitution of another company as the
principal obligor under any Securities in place of the Issuer, subject to the conditions set out in
Security Condition 13 (Substitution of the Issuer or the Guarantor). In particular, where the
substitute is not BNPP, BNPP will guarantee the performance of the substitute's obligations
under the Securities.
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The conditions of the Securities also provide that the Issuer may, following the occurrence of
certain events, without the consent of the Holders agree to the substitution of another company
as the guarantor in respect of any Securities in place of BNPP, subject to the conditions set out
in Security Condition 13 (Substitution of the Issuer or the Guarantor). In particular, the
creditworthiness of the substitute guarantor must be at least equal to that of BNPP, as determined
by the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, by
reference to, inter alia, the long term senior debt ratings assigned by such rating agencies as the
Calculation Agent determines.

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor shall only exercise a substitution of the Issuer or the
Guarantor if (i) a Substitution Event has occurred and (ii) it has obtained from the Substitute
Issuer or Substitute Guarantor, as the case may be, an undertaking that the substitution would
not have a material impact on the interests of the Holders. Despite this, any such substitution
may negatively affect the value of the Securities.

The Issuer will give Holders notice of such substitution in accordance with Security Condition
10 (Notices).

Potential Conflicts of Interest

BNPP, BNPP B.V. and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents may engage in activities
or arrangements in a range of capacities that may result in conflicts of interest between their
own financial interests and those of any Holders, for example, by:

0] engaging in trading activities (including hedging activities) relating to the Underlying
Reference(s) and other instruments or derivative products based on or relating to the
Underlying Reference(s) of any Securities for their proprietary accounts or for other
accounts under their management;

(if)  underwriting future offerings of shares or other securities relating to an issue of Securities
or acting as financial adviser or in a commercial banking capacity to certain companies
or companies whose shares or other securities are included in a basket in respect of a
Series of Securities;

(iii)  acting in a number of different capacities in relation to an underlying Index or underlying
Preference Share, including, but not limited to, as issuer of the constituents of the Index,
index sponsor or calculation agent or as issuer or calculation agent of the underlying
Preference Share;

(iv)  engaging in business, such as investing in, extending loans to, providing advisory
services to, entering into financing or derivative transactions with a company that has
issued shares or a debt instrument or a fund that has issued fund shares or units which
are linked to the Securities;

(v)  receiving a fee for performing any services or entering into any transactions described
above;

(vi)  publishing research reports relating to any Underlying Reference, which express views
that are inconsistent with purchasing or holding the Securities;

(vii) making determinations regarding the occurrence of various events in respect of the
Securities and the applicable consequences in its role as Calculation Agent or Issuer, as
the case may be, of the Securities.

Any of the conflicts of interest described above could have a material adverse effect on the value
of the Securities and the return a Holder can expect to receive on their Securities, as none of
BNPP, BNPP B.V. and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents, acting in any capacity, is
required to have regard to the interests of the Holders. Investors should also refer to the
description of the role of the Calculation Agent in the "Investment Considerations” section
below.

Change of law including tax law
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The Terms and Conditions of Securities are based on English law in effect as at the date of this
Base Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision
or change to an administrative practice or change to English law after the date of this Base
Prospectus and any such change could materially adversely impact the value of any Securities
affected by it.

No assurance can be given as to how particular holders of Securities will be subject to tax on
any return they receive on their Securities. Relevant local tax authorities may change the law
or practice, possibly even so as to apply to Securities that have already been issued as at the date
of the announcement of any such change.

Termination of Securities in the event of illegality or impossibility

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the Securities has become
illegal, impossible or impracticable in whole or in part for any reason (including, without
limitation, if the performance of its obligations under the Securities has become unlawful or
contrary to any law, rule, regulation, judgement, order or other legal requirement), the Issuer
may redeem the Securities by paying to each Holder the Early Redemption Amount (as defined
in "Investment Considerations” below) specified in the applicable Final Terms. Such
redemption may result in an investor losing some or all of their investment in the Securities.

French Insolvency Law

As a société anonyme incorporated in France, French insolvency law applies to BNPP as
Guarantor.

French collective proceedings are safeguard procedure (procédure de sauvegarde), accelerated
safeguard (procédure de sauvegarde accélérée), accelerated financial safeguard procedure
(procédure de sauvegarde financiére accélérée), judicial reorganisation procedure (procédure
de redressement judiciaire), and liquidation proceedings (liquidation judiciaire).

A debtor which experiences difficulties that it is not able to overcome may, in its sole discretion,
initiate safeguard proceedings (procédure de sauvegarde), provided that it is not insolvent (a
debtor which is a credit institution is considered insolvent when it is unable to meet its payment
obligations either immediately or in the near future). If the debtor was subject to conciliation
proceedings, it may request the commencement of accelerated safeguard proceedings
(procédure de sauvegarde accélérée) or accelerated financial safeguard proceedings (procédure
de sauvegarde financiére accélérée).

Judicial reorganization (redressement judiciaire) or liquidation proceedings (liquidation
judiciaire) may be initiated against or by a debtor only if it is insolvent and, in the case of
liquidation proceedings only, if the debtor’s recovery is manifestly impossible. The debtor is
required to petition for judicial reorganization or liquidation proceedings within 45 days of
becoming insolvent.

The opening of collective proceedings will trigger an automatic stay preventing creditors from
pursuing any individual legal action against the debtor with respect to any claim arising prior to
the court decision commencing the proceedings, if the objective of such legal action is:

(i) to obtain an order for payment of a sum of money by the debtor to the creditor;
(if)  to terminate a contract for non-payment of amounts owed to the creditor; or
(iii)  to enforce the creditor’s rights against any assets of the debtor;

In case of collective proceedings opened towards BNPP (to the exclusion of judicial
liquidation), its creditors (including the Holders for the receivable they hold under the guaranty
granted by BNPP to secure the Securities) will have to be consulted on the manner in which
BNPP’s liabilities will be settled under the plan (debt forgiveness and payment terms) prior to
the plan being approved by the court. Depending on the size of the debtor, creditors may be
consulted either individually or through committee-based consultation.
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The creditors will therefore deliberate on the proposed safeguard plan (projet de plan de
sauvegarde), proposed accelerated safeguard (projet de plan de sauvegarde accélérée),
proposed accelerated financial safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde financiére
accélérée) or proposed judicial reorganisation plan (projet de plan de redressement) applicable
to BNPP and may further agree to:

() partially or totally reschedule payments which are due and/or write-off debts and/or
convert debts into equity; and/or

(i) establish an unequal treatment between holders of debt securities (including the Holders)
if it is justified by their difference in situation or in order to take into account
subordination agreements entered into by the creditors before the commencement of the
proceedings.

In case of consultation through committee-based consultation, decisions of the creditors will be
taken by a two-thirds majority (calculated as a proportion of the amount of debt securities held
by the holders expressing a vote) of each committee, in which case the decision will be binding
on dissenting creditors.

Please note that the above rules applicable to the consultation of creditors of a French debtor
may be impacted by the new legislation to be enacted in order to transpose the EU directive
2019/1023 on preventive restructuring frameworks, on discharge of debt and disqualifications,
and on measures to increase the efficiency of procedures concerning restructuring, insolvency
and discharge of debt and which provides to be transposed by the Member States before 17 July
2021.

The procedures described above (as may be amended from time to time) could have an adverse
impact on Holders seeking enforcement of the Guarantee in the event that BNPP were to become
insolvent.

The commencement of insolvency proceedings against BNPP would have a material adverse
effect on the market value of Securities guaranteed by BNPP.

The implementation of the EU Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive could materially affect
the Securities and their Holders

Directive 2014/59/EU, as amended by Directive (EU) 2019/879 of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 20 May 2019 (the "Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive" or "BRRD")
provides for the establishment of an EU-wide framework for the recovery and resolution of
credit institutions and investment firms. The BRRD has been implemented in France by several
legislative texts to provide relevant resolution authorities with, among other powers, a credible
set of tools (the "BRRD Resolution Tools") to intervene sufficiently early and quickly in an
unsound or failing institution so as to ensure the continuity of that institution's critical financial
and economic functions, while minimising the impact of its potential failure on the economy
and financial system.

Following a review of BRRD, Directive no. 2019/879/EU of the European Parliament and of
the Council of 20 May 2019 amending Directive 2014/59/EU as regards the loss-absorbing and
recapitalisation capacity of credit institutions and investment firms and Directive 98/26/EC
("BRRD 2") was adopted.

BRRD 2 was transposed into French law by Ordinance n°2020-1636 of 20 December 2020
relating to the resolution regime in the banking sector and Decree n°2020-1703 of 24 December
2020 relating to the resolution regime in the banking sector and took effect from 28 December
2020.

If BNPP is determined to be failing or likely to fail within the meaning of, and under the
conditions set by the BRRD, and the relevant resolution authority applies any, or a combination,
of the BRRD Resolution Tools (including, a sale of the business, the creation of a bridge
institution, asset separation or bail-in), any shortfall from the sale of BNPP’s assets may lead to
a partial reduction in the outstanding amounts of certain claims of unsecured creditors of BNPP
(including the Guarantee or the indemnity thereunder), or, in a worst case scenario, a reduction
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to zero. The unsecured debt claims against BNPP (including the Guarantee or the indemnity
thereunder) might also be converted into equity or other instruments of ownership, in
accordance with the hierarchy of claims in normal insolvency proceedings, which equity or
other instruments could also be subject to any future cancellation, transfer or dilution (such
reduction or cancellation being first on common equity tier one instruments, thereafter the
reduction, cancellation or conversion being on additional tier one instruments, then tier two
instruments and other subordinated debts, then other eligible liabilities). The relevant resolution
authority may also seek to amend the terms (such as varying the date for redemption) of any
outstanding unsecured debt securities (including, as the case may be, the Securities or the
Guarantee) (all as further described in Security Condition 25 (Recognition of Bail-in and Loss
Absorption)).

Public financial support to resolve the Guarantor where there is a risk of failure will only be
used as a last resort, after having assessed and applied the resolution tools above, including the
bail-in tool, to the maximum extent possible whilst maintaining financial stability.

The exercise of any power under the BRRD by the relevant resolution authority or any
suggestion that such powers may be exercised could materially adversely affect the rights of the
Holders of Securities, the price or value of their investment in the Securities and/or the ability
of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, to satisfy its obligations under the Securities
or the Guarantee, respectively. As a result, Holders of Securities could lose all or a substantial
part of their investment in the Securities.

The regulation and reform of "benchmarks" may adversely affect the value of Securities linked
to or referencing such "benchmarks"

A number of major interest rates, other rates, indices and other published values or benchmarks
are the subject of national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform.
These reforms may cause such benchmarks to perform differently than in the past, to disappear
entirely or have other consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could
have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on Securities linked to any such value
or benchmark.

The Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and
financial contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds (the "EU Benchmarks
Regulation™) and the EU Benchmarks Regulation as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue
of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, the "EUWA") and regulations
made thereunder (the "UK Benchmarks Regulation") together is a key element of ongoing
regulatory reform in the EU and the UK and has applied, subject to certain transitional
provisions, since 1 January 2018. In addition to so-called “critical benchmark™ indices, such as
the London Inter Bank Offered Rate ("LIBOR™) and the Euro Interbank Offered Rate
("EURIBOR"), other interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and indices, including equity,
commodity and "proprietary" indices or strategies, will in most cases be within scope of either
the EU Benchmarks Regulation or the UK Benchmarks Regulation as "benchmarks" where they
are used to determine the amount payable under, or the value of, certain financial instruments
(including securities listed on an EU or UK regulated market, EU or UK multilateral trading
facility ("MTF"), EU or UK organised trading facility ("OTF") or via a systematic internaliser).

The EU Benchmarks Regulation applies to the contribution of input data to a benchmark, the
administration of a benchmark, and the use of a benchmark in the EU. Amongst other things,
the EU Benchmarks Regulation requires EU benchmark administrators to be authorised or
registered as such and to comply with extensive requirements relating to benchmark
administration. It also prohibits (subject to certain transitional provisions) certain uses by EU
supervised entities (such as each of BNPP and BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. acting as
Calculation Agents) of (a) benchmarks provided by EU administrators which are not authorised
or registered in accordance with the EU Benchmarks Regulation and (b) benchmarks provided
by non-EU administrators where (i) the administrator's regulatory regime has not been
determined to be "equivalent"” to that of the EU, (ii) the administrator has not been recognised
in accordance with the EU Benchmarks Regulation, or (iii) the benchmark has not been endorsed
in accordance with the EU Benchmarks Regulation.
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The UK Benchmarks Regulation contains substantially the same provisions as the EU
Benchmarks Regulation; however it applies to the contribution of input data to a benchmark,
the administration of a benchmark, and the use of a benchmark in the United Kingdom. In-scope
entities include UK benchmark administrators and UK supervised entities.

The EU Benchmarks Regulation and the UK Benchmarks Regulation could have a material
adverse impact on any Securities for which a request for admission to trading on a trading venue
has been made, or which are traded on a trading venue or via a "systematic internaliser" linked
to, referencing or otherwise dependent (in whole or in part) upon a "benchmark" for the purposes
of either EU Benchmarks Regulation or the UK Benchmarks Regulation, or both.

Any of the above changes or any other consequential changes to any benchmark may result in:

. the level of the published rate or the level of the "benchmark™ or the volatility of the
published rate or level being adversely affected:;

. an increase in the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting
of a "benchmark™ and complying with such regulations or requirements;

. the "benchmark” (including certain currencies or tenors of benchmarks) being
discontinued or otherwise unavailable, which may result in the rate of interest in respect
of the Securities (if any) being determined based on any applicable fallback provisions;

. the methodology or other terms of the benchmark being changed in order to comply with
regulatory requirements;

. the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event (as further described under risk
factor 4.9 (Risks associated with the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event)
below); or

. have other adverse effects or unforeseen consequences.

Any such consequences could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any
Securities and/or could lead to the Securities being de-listed, adjusted, redeemed early following
the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event, subject to discretionary valuation or
adjustment by the Calculation Agent or otherwise impacted depending on the particular
"pbenchmark™ and the applicable terms of the Securities. This could also negatively affect the
liquidity of the Securities and a Holder's ability to sell their Securities in the secondary market.

The EU Benchmarks Regulation was further amended by Regulation (EU) 2021/168 of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 10 February 2021 which introduces a harmonised
approach to deal with the cessation or wind-down of certain benchmarks (such as EURIBOR or
LIBOR) by conferring the power to designate a statutory replacement for said benchmarks on
the Commission or the relevant national authority in certain circumstances, such replacement
being limited to contracts and financial instruments (such as certain Securities) which contain
no fallback provision or no suitable fallback provisions and where certain trigger events relating
to non-representativeness or cessation or wind down of the benchmark are met. In general,
parties can opt out of the statutory replacement where all parties, or the required majority of
parties, to a contract or financial instrument have agreed to apply a different replacement for a
benchmark before or after entry into force of the implementing act. A statutory replacement
benchmark could have a negative impact on the value or liquidity of, and return on, certain
Securities linked to or referencing such benchmark and may not operate as intended at the
relevant time or may perform differently from the discontinued or otherwise unavailable
benchmark.

In addition, Regulation (EU) 2021/168 is subject to further development through delegated
regulations and the transitional provisions applicable to third-country benchmarks are extended
until the end of 2023 (and the Commission is empowered to further extend this period until the
end of 2025, if necessary). There are therefore still details to be clarified in relation to the
potential impact of these legislative developments. Accordingly, there may be a risk that a
statutory replacement benchmark may designated if, for instance, a replacement benchmark
determined in accordance with the fallback provisions is deemed unsuitable as its application
no longer reflects or significantly diverges from the underlying market or the economic reality
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that the benchmark in cessation is intended to measure (and where certain other conditions are
satisfied, including one of the parties objecting to the contractually agreed fallback).

Risks associated with the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event

If specified as an Optional Additional Disruption Event in the applicable Final Terms, the
occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event (as defined in Security Condition 15
(Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events) and more fully
described in the "Investment Considerations" section below) may lead to redemption or
adjustment of the Securities. Any such adjustment or redemption of the Securities following the
occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event may have an adverse effect on the value and
liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount Holders can expect to receive on their
investment.

The relationship of the United Kingdom with the European Union may affect the business
(including the Securities) of the Issuer or the Guarantor in the United Kingdom

The United Kingdom ("UK") left the European Union ("EU") on 31 January 2020 at 11pm and
the transition period ended on 31 December 2020 at 11pm. Therefore, the Treaty on the
European Union and the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union have ceased to apply
to the UK. The European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended by the European Union
(Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020) and secondary legislation made under it ensure there is a
functioning statute book in the UK.

On 24 December 2020, an agreement in principle was reached in relation to the EU-UK Trade
and Cooperation Agreement (the "Trade and Cooperation Agreement"), to govern the future
relations between the EU and the UK following the end of the transition period. The Trade and
Cooperation Agreement was signed on 30 December 2020. The Trade and Cooperation
Agreement has provisional application until the EU and UK complete their ratification
procedures. The consent of the European Parliament is required before the Council of the
European Union can conclude the Trade and Cooperation Agreement. At the request of the EU,
the provisional application has been extended from 28 February 2021 to 30 April 2021 to allow
time for legal-linguistic revision. The Trade and Cooperation Agreement does not create a
detailed framework to govern the cross-border provision of regulated financial services from
the UK into the EU and from the EU into the UK.

Due to the on-going political uncertainty as regards the structure of the future relationship
between the UK and the EU, the precise impact on the business of the Issuer or the Guarantor
in the UK is difficult to determine. As such, no assurance can be given that such matters would
not adversely affect the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantor to satisfy its obligations under any
Series of Securities with a UK nexus and/or the market value and/or the liquidity of such
Securities in the secondary market.
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INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS
General investment considerations associated with the Securities
Securities are Unsecured Obligations

The Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and will rank pari
passu with themselves. Each issue of Securities will be guaranteed by BNPP pursuant to the
Guarantee. The obligations of BNPP under the Guarantee are senior preferred obligations within
the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier and unsecured
obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its other present and future senior
preferred and unsecured obligations, subject to such exceptions as may from time to time be
mandatory under French law.

Description of the role of the Calculation Agent (or in the case of Preference Share Certificates,
each of the issuer and calculation agent of the underlying Preference Shares)

(a)  The Calculation Agent may be an Affiliate of the Issuer and the Guarantor, or the
Calculation Agent may be the Guarantor itself. In the case of Preference Share
Certificates, each of the issuer and calculation agent of the underlying Preference Shares
will be an Affiliate of the Issuer and the Guarantor. The Calculation Agent (and, in the
case of Preference Share Certificates, each of the issuer and the calculation agent of the
underlying Preference Shares) is under no obligation to take into account the interests of
Holders of the Securities, including with respect to making certain determinations and
judgments, such as whether an event, including (in respect of the Securities) a Market
Disruption Event or a Settlement Disruption Event (each, as defined in the Conditions)
or (in the respect of the underlying Preference Shares) a disruption event or an adjustment
event as described in the terms and conditions of the underlying Preference Shares, has
occurred and, in some cases, the applicable consequences.

(by  Each of the Calculation Agent (and, in the case of Preference Share Certificates, each of
the issuer and the calculation agent of the underlying Preference Shares) is obliged to
carry out its duties and functions acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner.

Investors should also refer to risk factor 4.3 (Potential conflicts of interest) in the "Risk Factors"
section.

Certain specific information may not be known at the beginning of an offer period

In certain circumstances, at the commencement of an offer period in respect of Securities, but
prior to the issue date of such Securities certain specific information (specifically, the issue
price, minimum and/or maximum rate of interest payable, the Gearing applied to the final
payout, the Gearing Up or the Gearing Down applied to the final payout, (in the case of Autocall
One Touch Securities or Autocall Securities) the FR Exit Rate component of the final payout
(which will be payable if certain conditions are met, as set out in the Payout Conditions), (in the
case of Securities which include a Snowball Digital Coupon or Digital Coupon) the Rate
component of the coupon rate, the value of the barrier component of a final payout or coupon
rate, the AER Exit Rate used if an Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs, any Constant
Percentage (being any of Constant Percentage 1, Constant Percentage 2, Constant Percentage 3
or Constant Percentage 4) component of the final payout or coupon rate (which will be payable
if certain conditions are met, as set out in the Payout Conditions), the floor percentage
component of the final payout or coupon rate and/or the Knock-in Level and/or Knock-out Level
(used to ascertain whether a Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event, as applicable, has occurred))
may not be known. In these circumstances the Final Terms will specify in place of the relevant
price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, a minimum and/or maximum price, rate, level or
percentage, as applicable, or an indicative range of prices, rates, levels or percentages. The
actual price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, applicable to the Securities will be selected
by the Issuer from within the range or will not be higher than the maximum price, rate, level or
percentage, and/or will not be lower than the minimum price, rate, level or percentage, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms and will be notified to investors prior to the Issue Date.
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The actual price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, will be determined in accordance with
market conditions by the Issuer in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

Prospective purchasers of Securities will be required to make their investment decision based
on the minimum and/or maximum price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, or the indicative
range rather than the actual price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, which will only be
fixed after the investment decision is made but will apply to the Securities once issued.

Where a minimum and/or maximum price, rate, level or percentage, as applicable, or an
indicative range is specified in the Final Terms in respect of the Rate of Interest, Minimum Rate
of Interest, Maximum Rate of Interest, FR Exit Rate, Rate and/or AER EXit Rate, prospective
purchasers of Securities should, for the purposes of evaluating the risks and benefits of an
investment in the Securities, assume that the actual Rate of Interest, Minimum Rate of Interest,
Maximum Rate of Interest, FR Exit Rate, Rate and/or AER EXxit Rate, as applicable, which will
apply to the Securities will be the lowest rate specified in the range and make their decision to
invest in the Securities on that basis.

Recognition of English court judgments at the end of the United Kingdom’s Brexit Transition
Period

On 31 January 2020, the United Kingdom (the "UK") formally left the European Union.
Pursuant to a treaty entitled "the Agreement on the withdrawal of the United Kingdom of Great
Britain and Northern Ireland from the European Union and the European Atomic Energy
Community" (the "Withdrawal Agreement"), the UK and the EU agreed to an implementation
period, ending on 31 December 2020 (the "Transition Period"). The Withdrawal Agreement
was incorporated into English law by the European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020.

As a result of leaving the EU, the UK is no longer bound by the provisions of Regulation (EU)
No 1215/2012 (the "Brussels Recast"), a formal reciprocal regime between EU Member States
on the allocation of jurisdiction and the mutual recognition and enforcement of Member State
judgments. This regime is no longer applied by English courts, save in relation to legacy cases
(i.e. those cases where proceedings were initiated prior to the end of the Transition Period). As
a further consequence, English judgments will no longer be recognised and enforced in EU
Member State courts under this regime, again, save for legacy cases where English judgments
are issued in proceedings commenced prior to the end of the Transition Period.

Upon leaving the EU, the UK also ceased to be a member of another convention on the allocation
of jurisdiction and the mutual enforcement of contracting state court judgments, the Lugano
Convention 2007 (the "Lugano Convention"). The EU, Switzerland, Iceland and Norway are
members of the Lugano Convention and the UK has applied to re-join this convention. As of
the date of this Base Prospectus, the UK's application is pending. As the UK is no longer a
Lugano contracting state, English judgments cannot be enforced under this regime in other
contracting states, although Norway has put in place arrangements with the UK for the
reciprocal enforcement of judgments.

Investors should also note that on 1 January 2021 the UK re-joined the Hague Convention on
Choice of Court Agreements 2005 (the "Hague Convention") as a sovereign state. The Hague
Convention is another international convention on the jurisdiction and the reciprocal
enforcement of contracting state judgments. The Hague Convention requires contracting states
to respect exclusive jurisdiction clauses in favour of other contracting state courts and to enforce
resulting judgments. The EU, Mexico, Montenegro and Singapore are currently contracting
states.

Accordingly, English judgments issued by an English court pursuant to an exclusive jurisdiction
clause entered into after 1 January 2021 should be recognised and enforced in EU states (and
Mexico, Montenegro and Singapore) under the Hague Convention, subject to standard
exceptions. It is generally considered that the Hague Convention only covers exclusive
jurisdiction clauses and resulting judgments (although, investors should note that there are some
matters, such as certain company matters that are outside the scope of the Hague Convention).
There remains uncertainty as to whether the Hague Convention would be applied by Member
State courts in respect of exclusive jurisdiction clauses entered into between 1 October 2015
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(when the EU joined the Convention) and 31 December 2020. The UK has legislated to confirm
such clauses would be treated as being within the Hague Convention. Although the grounds
upon which enforcement may be refused under the Hague Convention are in substance similar
to those under the Brussels Recast, the Hague Convention is new and therefore there may be
some uncertainty as to how Member State courts apply these provisions, at least initially.

Where English jurisdiction clauses and judgments are not within the scope of the Hague
Convention, it will be necessary to consider the applicable national law rules.

Investment considerations associated with adjustment, disruption and related redemption
provisions in respect of the Securities

Description of Additional Disruption Event and Optional Additional Disruption Events

The Additional Disruption Events correspond to changes in law (including changes in tax or
regulatory capital requirements) and hedging disruptions in respect of any hedging transactions
relating to the Securities. The Optional Additional Disruption Events that may be specified in
the applicable Final Terms correspond to the occurrence of an event relating to benchmark
reform (including a material change, permanent cancellation or issue with any official
authorisation of the benchmark, administrator or sponsor) (an Administrator/Benchmark Event),
an issue converting or determining a rate for a currency (a Currency Event), a material hindrance
or delay to the performance of the Issuer's obligations under the Securities (an Extraordinary
External Event), a default by any hedging counterparty in respect of the Securities (a Hedging
Party Default), a materially increased cost of hedging (an Increased Cost of Hedging), an
increase in the rate to borrow any relevant share or any component of an Index (an Increased
Cost of Stock Borrow), circumstances where it is impracticable, illegal or impossible to
purchase, sell, hold or otherwise deal in the Underlying Reference (a Jurisdiction Event),
insolvency of the relevant Share Company or Basket Company (an Insolvency Filing), an
inability to borrow any relevant share (a Loss of Stock Borrow) and/or an event that is not
attributable to the Issuer that significantly alters the economics of the Securities (a Significant
Alteration Event). Each of the Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption
Events are both more fully set out in the Conditions.

Consequences of a Disrupted Day

The occurrence of a Disrupted Day may delay the determination of the final level, value, price
or amount of the relevant Underlying Reference which could also cause a delay in the payment
of any Cash Settlement Amount, as more fully set out in the Conditions.

Description of Early Redemption Amounts

The amount due to Holders on an early redemption of the Securities will be an amount calculated
by reference to the fair market value of such Securities (the "Early Redemption Amount™).

Any determination of the fair market value of the Securities will take into account the event or
circumstances that triggered the early redemption. The Final Terms may specify that any costs
incurred by the Issuer (or its affiliates) as a result of unwinding any hedging arrangements
associated with the Securities may not be taken into account when determining the amount
payable on early redemption.

If the Securities are early redeemed in part, the amount calculated as payable on such early
redemption will take into account that only a portion of the outstanding Securities are being
early redeemed.

Investment considerations associated with Securities linked to the performance of one or
more Underlying References

Additional investment considerations in respect of Index Securities

In respect of Index Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined
by reference to the value of the underlying index/indices and/or the Index Securities will pay
interest calculated by reference to the value of the underlying index/indices. Such underlying
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index may be a well-known and widely published index or an index which may not be widely
published or available. The index may reference, among other asset types, equities, bonds,
currency exchange rates, or other securities or it may be a property index referencing certain
property price data which will be subject to market price fluctuations, or reference a number of
different assets or indices. A property index may include valuations only and not actual
transactions and the property data sources used to compile the index may be subject to change.

If the Index specified in the Final Terms is replaced by a successor index with the same or a
substantially similar method for calculating that index or the original index sponsor is replaced
by a successor index sponsor acceptable to the Calculation Agent, the successor index or the
successor index sponsor will replace the original index or original index sponsor, as applicable.

Following a modification to the methodology of the Index (an Index Modification), a permanent
cancellation of the Index (an Index Cancellation) or if the Index Sponsor fails to calculate or
publish the level of the Index on a relevant date for valuation (an Index Disruption) (each, an
Index Adjustment Event), (i) the Calculation Agent may determine whether to (x) determine the
level of the Index itself, or (y) replace the Index, or (ii) the Issuer may redeem the Index
Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, if the published level of an Index is subsequently corrected, the corrected level will
be used if corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected level is
published less than three Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Share Securities

In respect of Share Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined
by reference to the value of the share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs and/or the Share
Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the value of the underlying share(s) or
Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs.

No issuer of the underlying shares will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final
Terms or in establishing the terms of the Share Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor
or any Manager will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with
respect to any information concerning any such issuer of shares contained in such Final Terms
or in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no
assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would
affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described in this
paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the share or
Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure
of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning
such an issuer of shares could affect the trading price of the share or Stapled Shares, GDRs
and/or ADRs.

Except as provided in the Conditions, Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive
dividends or distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant shares to which such
Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Event will occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the
Conditions that have a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the share(s).
The Calculation Agent may adjust the terms of the Share Securities as it determines appropriate
to take account of such Potential Adjustment Event.

An Extraordinary Event will occur upon a De-Listing, Insolvency, Merger Event,
Nationalisation, Stapling, Tender Offer (unless Tender Offer is specified as not applicable in
the applicable Final Terms) or (if specified in the applicable Final Terms), llliquidity, Listing
Change, Listing Suspension or CSR Event in respect of a share. If an Extraordinary Event
occurs:

(a)  the Calculation Agent may make adjustments to any of the terms of the Share Securities
(including, in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to
and/or substitution of constituent shares of the Basket of Shares);
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(b}  the Issuer may redeem the Share Securities in whole or (in the case of Share Securities
linked to a Basket of Shares) in part at the Early Redemption Amount; or

(¢)  the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment to any terms of the Share Securities by
reference to the corresponding adjustment(s) made by the relevant exchange(s) or
quotation system(s) on which options on the affected Shares are traded.

If the Stapled Shares become de-stapled such that one or more shares comprising the Stapled
Shares may be held, owned, sold, transferred, purchased and otherwise dealt with as an
individual share, the Issuer may elect to substitute the Stapled Shares with an alternative share
meeting certain criteria selected by the Calculation Agent.

If Hedging Liquidity Event is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer
may redeem the Share Securities in full at the Early Redemption Amount if the volume of Shares
held by the Issuer and/or any of its affiliates via hedging arrangements related to the Share
Securities exceeds a specified level.

In addition, if the published price of a Share is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will
be used if corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is
published less than three Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Commodity Securities

In respect of Commaodity Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption
determined by reference to the value of the underlying commodity, commodity index,
commodities and/or commodity indices and/or Commodity Securities will pay interest
calculated by reference to the value of the underlying commodity, commodity index,
commodities and/or commodity indices.

Where the Commodity Securities are linked to a commodity index, such commodity index may
be a well-known and widely available commodity index (such as the S&P GSCI®) or a
commodity index which may be less well known in which case information on the commodity
index may be less readily available. A commodity index may comprise futures contracts, mono-
indices, or other commodity indices. Pursuant to the operational rules of the relevant commodity
index, the commodity index is scheduled to be calculated on a periodic basis (for example on
each weekday). In the event that one of the levels, values or prices of a component included in
the commaodity index is not available for any reason on a relevant day of calculation including,
without limitation, (a) where it is a not a business day in respect of that commodity index
component or (b) that commaodity index component is subject to a market disruption event, then
the calculation agent of the commodity index may calculate the level of the commodity index
on a different basis (for example, by taking a value for the affected commodity index component
on the first day following the end of a specified maximum days of disruption based on the price
at which it is able to sell or otherwise realise any hedge position). Such an occurrence may
potentially result in a delay in the publication of the commodity index and the level of the
commodity index may be affected.

A Market Disruption Event will occur if there is a disruption in respect of a commaodity or a
commodity index (a) to the availability of any price source, (b) to the ability to trade, (c) (other
than in respect of Commaodity Securities referencing Gold, Silver, Platinum or Palladium)
caused by a change in composition, methodology or taxation or (d) (in respect of a commodity
index only) to the price source or calculation of a commaodity index component. If a Market
Disruption Event occurs:

(a)  the Calculation Agent may make any calculations in respect of the Commodity Securities
using a price, level or value that it has determined;

(b)y  the Calculation Agent may substitute any relevant commodity, reference price or
commodity index component (subject to adhering to the criteria set out in the
Conditions); or

(¢)  the Issuer may redeem the Commodity Securities in full at the Early Redemption
Amount.
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In the case of Commodity Securities that reference one or more commodity indices, if:

(a)  the commodity index is replaced by a successor commodity index with the same or a
substantially similar method for calculating that commodity index or the original
commodity index sponsor is replaced by a successor commodity index sponsor
acceptable to the Calculation Agent such successor commodity index or successor
commodity index sponsor will replace the original commodity index or the original
commodity index sponsor, as applicable; and

(by  following a modification to the methodology of the commodity index (a Commodity
Index Modification), a permanent cancellation of the commodity index (a Commodity
Index Cancellation) or if the commodity index sponsor fails to calculate or publish the
level of the commaodity index on a relevant date for valuation (a Commaodity Index
Disruption) (each, a Commodity Index Adjustment Event), (i) the Calculation Agent may
determine whether to (x) determine the level of the commaodity index itself, or (y) replace
the commaodity index, or (ii) the Issuer may redeem the Commodity Securities at the
Early Redemption Amount.

In addition, if the reference price of a commodity or commaodity index is subsequently corrected,
the corrected reference price will be used if corrected within 30 calendar days of the original
publication, provided that, if the corrected level is published less than three Commodity
Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies that the Commodity Securities are linked to the
performance of a futures contract in respect of a commaodity, the considerations described above
will apply to such futures contract by reference to the underlying commodity. If the applicable
Final Terms specify that the Commodity Securities are "Rolling Futures Contract Securities”,
the reference price of the commodity will be valued by reference to futures contracts with
delivery months that do not match the Redemption Date of the Commodity Securities. The
Calculation Agent will select a new futures contract on each Futures Rollover Date specified in
the applicable Final Terms. If it is impossible or materially impracticable to select a new futures
contract and/or hedge the Issuer's obligations in respect of the Commodity Securities, the
consequences of a Market Disruption Event or a Commodity Index Adjustment Event described
above will apply.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Fund Securities

In respect of Fund Securities, Holders will receive an amount (if any) on redemption determined
by reference to the value of fund shares or units in one or more funds (including hedge funds,
mutual funds or private equity funds) (each a "Fund"), the level of a fund index comprised of
such fund shares or units and/or Fund Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the
value of the fund shares or units or the level of the fund index. The value of fund shares or units
or the level of a fund index may be affected by the performance of the fund service providers,
and in particular the investment adviser.

Funds may trade and invest in a broad range of investments and financial instruments using
sophisticated investment techniques. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Calculation Agent
have any control over investments made by a Fund and therefore in no way guarantee the
performance of a Fund. Funds may often be illiquid and may only be traded on a monthly,
quarterly or even less frequent basis. The trading strategies of Funds are often opaque. Funds,
as well as the markets and instruments in which they invest, are often not subject to review by
governmental authorities, self-regulatory organisations or other supervisory authorities.

A Fund may be established as part of a master-feeder fund structure. Generally, a master-feeder
fund structure involves the incorporation of a "master” fund company into which separate and
distinct "feeder" funds invest. Active management of any investment strategy is, generally,
performed at the master fund level. In instances where the Fund(s) underlying the relevant Fund
Securities are "feeder" funds, the Extraordinary Fund Events described below extend to include
the "master" fund and its service providers. In conducting their own due diligence of the relevant
Fund(s), prospective investors should consider whether the relevant Fund(s) are established as
part of a master-feeder fund structure.
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No Fund Service Provider will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms
or in establishing the terms of the Fund Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any
Manager will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect
to any information concerning any such issuer of fund shares or units contained in such Final
Terms or in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can
be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that
would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described in
this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the fund
shares or units or the level of the fund index will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent
disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events
concerning such an issuer of fund shares or units could affect the trading price of the fund shares
or units or the level of the fund index and therefore the trading price of the Fund Securities.

Holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions or any other
rights with respect to the relevant fund shares or units or the relevant fund index to which such
Securities relate.

An Extraordinary Fund Event will occur as a result of events including (a) a merger of the Fund
or Fund Service Provider another entity, an entity obtaining a controlling stake in the Fund or
Fund Service Provider or the insolvency of the Fund or any Fund Service Provider (Global
Events), (b) material litigation or allegations of criminal or fraudulent activity in respect of the
Fund or Fund Service Provider (Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events), (c) the Fund Service
Provider or its key personnel ceasing to act and not being replaced (Fund Service Provider/Key
Person Events), (d) a material change to the Fund or the Fund Documents (Modification Events),
(e) a change to or suspension of the calculation of the NAV per Fund Share or a breach of the
AUM Level or NAV Trigger Percentage (NAV per Fund Share/AUM Level Events), (f) the
failure of the Fund or the Fund Service Provider to provide required information (Reporting
Events), (g) a change in tax law, revocation of any required licence or compulsory redemption
of the fund shares required by a competent authority (Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events),
(h) an issue affecting the hedging associated with the Fund Securities
(Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events), (i) a restriction or limitation on subscriptions
or redemptions of any fund shares (Dealing Events) and (j) other events such as an Extraordinary
Fund Event affecting a portion of the basket or Fund Index components, an issue with any rebate
agreements, segregation of Fund portfolios, security granted by the Fund or any Fund Service
Provider or a rating downgrade (Miscellaneous Events), each more fully described in the
Conditions. The Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms of the Fund
Securities to reflect such event, substitute the relevant Fund Shares or the Issuer may redeem
the Fund Securities at the Early Redemption Amount.

If the Fund Securities reference a fund index, a Fund Index Adjustment Event will occur
following a modification to the methodology of the fund index (a Fund Index Modification), a
permanent cancellation of the fund index (a Fund Index Cancellation) or if the fund index
sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of the fund index on a relevant date for valuation
(a Fund Index Disruption). Upon the occurrence of a Fund Index Adjustment Event, (i) the
Calculation Agent may determine whether to (x) determine the level of the fund index itself, or
(y) replace the fund index, or (ii) the Issuer may early redeem the Fund Securities at the Early
Redemption Amount.

The Hedge Provider may not receive the proceeds of redeeming any fund shares that they hold
on the date expected, for example, if redemption is delayed or suspended by the Fund. If this
occurs, the Redemption Date of the Fund Securities may be postponed for a period of up to two
calendar years (or such other period as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms) and no
additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Futures Price Valuation

A futures transaction constitutes the contractual obligation to buy or sell a certain amount or
number of the respective underlying at a fixed price and at a predetermined future point in time.
Futures contracts are traded on futures exchanges and standardised for this purpose with respect
to their contract size, the nature and quality of the underlying as well as delivery places and
dates, if any.
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If adjustments are made to the futures contract by the relevant exchange, the Calculation Agent
will make consequential adjustments to the Securities to account for such change. In addition,
if the published price of a futures contract is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be
used if it is corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is
published less than three Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Rolling Futures Contract Securities

Futures contracts have a predetermined expiration date. Holding a futures contract until
expiration will result in delivery of the physical underlying or the requirement to make or receive
a cash settlement amount. Rolling Futures Contract Securities are valued by reference to futures
contracts that have a delivery or expiry month that do not correspond with the term of the
Securities. Consequently the futures contracts are "rolled" which means that the futures contract
that is nearing expiration is sold before it expires and a futures contract that has an expiration
date further in the future is purchased, thus maintaining ongoing exposure to such underlying
futures contracts throughout the term of the Securities. The Calculation Agent will select a new
futures contract on each Futures Rollover Date specified in the applicable Final Terms. If it is
impossible or materially impracticable to select a new futures contract and/or (unless Related
Hedging is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms) hedge the Issuer's
obligations in respect of the Securities, the Issuer will redeem the Securities in full at the Early
Redemption Amount.
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USER'S GUIDE TO THE BASE PROSPECTUS
1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this section (the "User's Guide") is to provide potential investors with a tool to help them
navigate through the various documents relating to Securities issued under the Base Prospectus and the
various sections of the Base Prospectus.

2. DOCUMENTATION

For each issue of Securities under the Base Prospectus, the documents listed below will be available to
potential investors on an ongoing basis.

2.1 The Base Prospectus
This document:

. contains an overview of the contents of this Base Prospectus, the information relating to BNPP
(as Guarantor) and BNPP B.V. (as Issuer) and the risk factors;

. sets out the Terms and Conditions of the Securities (other than the specific commercial terms
and characteristics of a particular issue, in respect of which, see paragraph 2.3 below);

. sets out the possible specific characteristics of the Securities, including the payout formulae
used to calculate the amount(s) (if any) payable or assets deliverable to the investors on
redemption and the Underlying Reference(s); and

. set out the terms specific to each type of Underlying Reference linked Securities in the annexes
to the Terms and Conditions of the Securities.

2.2 The Supplement(s)

If a significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy relating to the information included
in the Base Prospectus, which is capable of affecting a potential investor's assessment of the Securities
arises, the Issuer and the Guarantor will publish a supplement to the Base Prospectus. The supplement
will be approved by the FCA in accordance with Article 23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation and
published on the website of BNPP (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/public/LegalDocs.aspx).

In accordance with Article 23(2) of the UK Prospectus Regulation and Rule 3.4.1 of the UK Prospectus
Regulation Rules, investors who have already agreed to purchase or subscribe for Securities before this
Base Prospectus is published have the right, exercisable within two working days after the publication
of this Base Prospectus, to withdraw their acceptances, provided that the significant new factor, material
mistake or material inaccuracy arose or was noted before the closing of the offer period or the delivery
of the Securities, whichever occurs first.

2.3 The Final Terms
The Final Terms will be prepared to document each specific issue of Securities. It will contain:

. the specific terms of the issue, including but not limited to, the number of Securities being
issued, the relevant identification codes and the currency of the Securities;

. the commercial terms of the issue, such as the payout formula for redemption, coupon
amount(s), any automatic early redemption provisions and the related definitions in respect of a
specific issue of Securities, as described in the Base Prospectus;

. the Underlying Reference(s) to which the Securities are linked;

. the relevant dates, such as the issue date, interest payment dates, valuation or averaging date(s)
and redemption date; and
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. if required, a duly completed summary specific to such issue of Securities (the "issue specific
summary").

3. HOW TO NAVIGATE THE BASE PROSPECTUS

All Securities issued under the Base Prospectus will be subject to the generic sections of the Base
Prospectus summarised above. Investors should note that depending on the specific terms of an issue
of Securities not all sections of the Base Prospectus will be relevant to each issuance.

The table below lists all of the sections of the Base Prospectus and their applicability to each issue of
Securities:

Sections which are applicable to all Securities

Sections which are only applicable to specific issues of Securities
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Contents of the Base Prospectus

OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMME

RISK FACTORS

INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS

USER'S GUIDE TO THE BASE PROSPECTUS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
HOW THE RETURN ON YOUR INVESTMENT IS
CALCULATED

FORM OF FINAL TERMS FOR CERTIFICATES

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES

Additional Terms and Conditions for Payouts

Additional Terms and Conditions for Index Securities
Additional Terms and Conditions for Share Securities
Additional Terms and Conditions for Commodity Securities
Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund Securities

Additional Terms and Conditions for Preference Share
Certificates

DESCRIPTION OF THE PREFERENCE SHARE ISSUER
AND THE PREFERENCE SHARES

USE OF PROCEEDS

FORM OF THE GUARANTEE
FORM OF THE SECURITIES
DESCRIPTION OF BNPP B.V.
DESCRIPTION OF BNPP

BOOK-ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS
TAXATION

OFFERING AND SALE

GENERAL INFORMATION
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

INDEX OF DEFINED TERMS

1. Sections providing general information on the Base
Prospectus, the Issuer, the Guarantor and the
Securities

2. Section setting out the general terms governing the
Securities

3. Section setting out the different payout formulae
that may be applicable to the Securities

4. Sections applicable to Securities depending on the
type of Underlying Reference(s). One or more
sections may apply depending on the type of
Underlying Reference(s)

5. Section providing general information on the
Preference Share Issuer and Preference Shares

6. Sections relating to the Issuer, the Guarantor and
the Guarantee

7. Sections providing additional general information
in respect of the Securities

8. Section listing the relevant defined terms

4,

HOW TO READ THE FINAL TERMS

The applicable Final Terms are divided in three parts:

. Part A, titled "CONTRACTUAL TERMS", which sets out the specific payout terms and
additional terms applicable to the Securities, including the specific contractual terms of the
Securities;

. Part B, titled "OTHER INFORMATION", which sets out other information specific to the

Securities; and

. In the case of Securities where an issue specific summary is required, an issue specific summary
of the Securities will be appended to the Final Terms.

Exhaustive information on the characteristics of the Securities as set out in Parts A and B of the applicable
Final Terms is available in the Base Prospectus. The following diagram indicates the links between the
various clauses of Parts A and B of the applicable Final Terms and the corresponding sections of the
Base Prospectus set out above.
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Information linked to sections from the Base Prospectus

1. Sections providing general information on the
Base Prospectus, the Issuer, the Guarantorand
the Securities

TITLE
Issuer and Guarantor of the Securities

Description and definitions
relating to the Securities

Payout Formula

PART A: [ p| 3. Section detailing the different payoutformulae
CONTRACTUAL .

TERMS

Description and definitions in
respect of the Underlying
Reference(s)

Information relating to
settlement/delivery on
redemption

S. Section listing the rel t defined terms

Information specific to the Securities

Listing and admission to
trading and rating information

. Information on performance of
FART B Underlying Reference(s) and,
OTHER otherinformation relating to

INFORMATION the Underlying Reference(s) H
Public Offer information (if i -

ailh:ablz)

8. Sections providing additional I
information in respect of the Securities

ISSUE SPECIFIC SUMMARY (if applicable)

v
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The documents incorporated by reference (such sections being the "BNP Paribas Disclosure™) contain
forward-looking statements. BNP Paribas, BNPP B.V. and the BNP Paribas Group (being BNP Paribas
together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group') may also make forward-looking statements in
their offering circulars, in press releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by their
officers, directors or employees to third parties. Statements that are not historical facts, including
statements about BNPP, BNPP B.V. or the Group's beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking
statements. These statements are based on current plans, estimates and projections, and therefore undue
reliance should not be placed on them. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are
made. Save as required by the UK Prospectus Regulation Rules, the Listing Rules and the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules as set out in the Financial Conduct Authority's Handbook, BNPP, BNPP B.V.
and the Group undertake no obligation to update publicly any of them in light of new information or
future events.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Most of the financial data presented, or incorporated by reference, in this Base Prospectus are presented
in euros.

The audited consolidated financial statements of BNPP for the years ended 31 December 2018, 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2020 have been prepared in accordance with international financial
reporting standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union. IFRS differs in certain significant
respects from generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("U.S. GAAP"). The Group
has made no attempt to quantify the impact of those differences. In making an investment decision,
investors must rely upon their own examination of the BNP Paribas Group, the terms of an offering and
the financial information. Potential investors should consult their own professional advisors for an
understanding of the differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP, and how those differences might affect
the information herein. The Group's fiscal year ends on 31 December and references in the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document and any amendment to the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in each case, as defined in "Documents Incorporated by Reference" below and incorporated
by reference herein) to any specific fiscal year are to the 12-month period ended 31 December of such
year.

BNPP B.V.'s financial information is consolidated into BNPP's audited consolidated financial statements
accordingly.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents which
have been previously published or are published simultaneously with this Base Prospectus and shall be
incorporated in, and form part of, this Base Prospectus:

€)] BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2018 et rapport financier
annuel in English including the consolidated, financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the statutory auditors' report thereon, other than the sections entitled
"Person Responsible for the Universal Registration Document" and the "Table of Concordance"
(the "BNPP 2018 Universal Registration Document (in English)"); and

(b) BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 et rapport financier
annuel in English including the consolidated, financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the statutory auditors' report thereon, other than the sections entitled
"Person Responsible for the Universal Registration Document™ and the "Table of Concordance"
(the "BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)"); and

(© BNPP's Universal Registration Document in English including the consolidated, financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the statutory auditors' report thereon and
the first quarter 2021 results, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the
Universal Registration Document” and the "Cross-Reference Table" (the "BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document"),

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by
reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Base Prospectus
to the extent that such statement is inconsistent with a statement contained in this Base Prospectus or any
supplement to this Base Prospectus.

Any non-incorporated parts of a document referred to herein (which, for the avoidance of doubt,
means any parts not listed in the cross-reference list below) are either deemed not relevant for an
investor or are otherwise covered elsewhere in this Base Prospectus.

The information incorporated by reference above is available as follows:

Information Incorporated by Reference Reference

BNP PARIBAS

BNPP 2018 Universal Registration Document (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 | Page 152 of the BNPP 2018 Universal

December 2018 Registration Document (in English)
Statement of net income and changes in assets and | Page 153 of the BNPP 2018 Universal
liabilities recognised directly in equity Registration Document (in English)
Balance sheet at 31 December 2018 Page 154 of the BNPP 2018 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 | Page 155 of the BNPP 2018 Universal
December 2018 Registration Document (in English)

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity | Pages 156 and 157 of the BNPP 2018 Universal
between 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2018 Registration Document (in English)
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https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 158 to 269 of the BNPP 2018 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

Statutory Auditors' report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2018

Pages 270 to 276 of the BNPP 2018 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

In relation to financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the auditors have
emphasised certain matter which described in
fuller detail in explanatory notes on Note 1.a.1.
This is in relation to the description of the impact
on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 of the changes in
presentation and the application of IFRS 9
"Financial instruments” and IFRS 15 "Revenue
from contracts with customers".

Pages 158 to 159 of the BNPP 2018 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

In relation to financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the auditors have
emphasised certain matter which described in
fuller detail in explanatory notes on Note 2. This is
in relation to the description of the impact on the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 of the changes in
presentation and the application of IFRS 9
"Financial instruments” and IFRS 15 "Revenue
from contracts with customers".

Pages 177 to 187 of the BNPP 2018 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

BNPP 2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2019 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31
December 2019

Page 152 of the BNPP 2019
Registration Document (in English)

Universal

Statement of net income and changes in assets and
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 153 of the BNPP 2019
Registration Document (in English)

Universal

Balance sheet at 31 December 2019

Page 154 of the BNPP 2019
Registration Document (in English)

Universal

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31
December 2019

Page 155 of the BNPP 2019
Registration Document (in English)

Universal

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity
between 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2019

Pages 156 and 157 of the BNPP 2019 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 158 to 258 of the BNPP 2019 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

Statutory Auditors' report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2019

Pages 259 to 264 of the BNPP 2019 Universal

Registration Document (in English)
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https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

In relation to financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019, the auditors have
emphasised certain matter which described in
fuller detail in explanatory notes on Note 1.a.1.
This is in relation to the description of the impact
on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 of the application of
IFRS 16 "Leases"

Pages 158 to 159 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

In relation to financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019, the auditors have
emphasised certain matter which described in
fuller detail in explanatory notes on Note 2. This is
in relation to the description of the impact on the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 of the application of
IFRS 16 "Leases"

Pages 178 to 179 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document

https://rates-globalmarkets.cib.echonet/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Headings as listed by Annex 1 of Regulation (EC) No. 2017/1129

1. Persons Responsible

11 Person responsible for the Universal

Registration Document

Page 776 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document

1.2 Statement of the person responsible for | Page 776 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
the Universal Registration Document Registration Document

1.3 Approval from a competent authority Page 6 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document

2. Statutory auditors Page 775 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document

3. Risk factors Pages 350 to 365 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document

4. Information about the issuer Pages 6 to 9, 766 to 767 and 877 of the BNPP
2020 Universal Registration Document

5. Business overview

5.1 Principal activities Pages 9 to 22, 226 to 231, 743 to 764 and 777 to
786 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document

5.2 Principal markets Pages 9 to 22, 226 to 231, 743 to 764 and 777 to
786 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document

5.3 History and development of the issuer Page 8 to 9 of the BNPP 2020 Universal

Registration Document
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Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

5.4 Strategy and objectives Pages 161 to 163, 645, 643 to 726 and 727 to
728 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document
55 Possible dependency Page 742 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
5.6 Basis for any statements made by the | Pages 9 to 22, 138 to 154 and 777 to 786 of the
issuer regarding its competitive position | BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
5.7 Investments Pages 161 to 163, 645, 643 to 726 and 727 to
728 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document
6. Organisational structure
6.1 Brief description Pages 7, 9, 304 and 727 to 728 of the BNPP
2020 Universal Registration Document
6.2 List of significant subsidiaries Pages 305 to 331, 621 to 633, 743 to 764 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
7. Operating and financial review
7.1 Financial situation Pages 163, 179, 181 to 182, 583 to 585, 777 to
837 and 840 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
7.2 Operating results Pages 138 to 154, 160 to 161, 166 to 176, 179,
227 to 228, 584 and 827 to 837 of the BNPP
2020 Universal Registration Document
8. Capital resources
8.1 Issuer’s capital resources Pages 184 to 189, 615 to 616, 821, 840 and 842
to 847 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document
8.2 Sources and amounts of cash flows Page 182 to 183 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
8.3 Borrowing requirements and funding | Pages 163, 528 to 546 and 786 of the BNPP
structure 2020 Universal Registration Document
8.4 Information regarding any restrictions on | N/A
the use of capital resources that have
materially affected, or could materially
affect, the issuer’s operations.
8.5 Anticipated sources of funds N/A
9. Regulatory environment Pages 340 and 347 to 350 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document
10. Trend information Page 161 to 163 and 742 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document
11. Profit forecasts or estimates N/A
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Information Incorporated by Reference Reference
12. Administrative, management, and
supervisory  bodies, and senior
management
12.1  Administrative and management bodies Pages 38 to 53 and 120-122 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document
12.2 Administrative and management bodies’ | Pages 57 to 59, 61 and 75 to 77 of the BNPP
conflicts of interest 2020 Universal Registration Document
13. Remuneration and benefits
13.1  Amount of remuneration paid and | Pages 88 to 114, 277 to 288, 300 to 301 and 848
benefits in kind granted to 867 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document
13.2 Total amounts set aside or accrued by the | Pages 88 to 114, 277 to 288, 300 to 301 and 848
issuer or its subsidiaries to provide | to 867 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
pension, retirement, or similar benefits Document
14. Board practices
14.1 Date of expiry of the current terms of | Pages 38 to 53 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
office Registration Document
14.2 Information about members of the | N/A
administrative bodies’ service contracts
with the issuer
14.3 Information about the audit committee | Pages 62 to 71 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
and remuneration committee Registration Document
14.4  Corporate governance regime in force in | Pages 54 to 60 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
the issuer’s country of incorporation Registration Document
14.5  Potential material impacts on the | Pages 38 to 53 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
corporate governance Registration Document
15. Employees
15.1  Number of employees Pages 7, 675 to 676 and 727 of the BNPP 20120
Universal Registration Document
15.2  Shareholdings and stock options Pages 88 to 114, 210 to 211 and 681 to 683 of
the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document
16. Major shareholders
16.1  Shareholders owning more than 5% of the | Pages 23 and 25 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
issuer’s capital or voting rights Registration Document
16.2 Existence of different voting rights Page 23 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
16.3  Control of the issuer Pages 23 and 25 of the BNPP 2020 Universal

Registration Document
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Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

16.4  Description of any arrangements, known | Page 25 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
to the issuer, the operation of which may | Registration Document
at a subsequent date result in a change of
control of the issuer
17. Related party transactions Pages 88 to 114, 301 to 303 and 773 to 774 of
the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document
18. Financial information concerning the
issuer’s assets and liabilities, financial
position, and profits and losses
18.1 Historical financial information Pages 7, 28, 138 to 333, 583 to 634, 827 to 837
and 840 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
18.2 Interim and other financial information Pages 827 to 837 and 840 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document
18.3  Auditing of historical annual financial | Pages 333 to 339 and 635 to 641 of the BNPP
information 2020 Universal Registration Document
184 Pro forma financial information N/A
18.5 Dividend policy Pages 28, 32, 139, 163, 619 and 728 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
18.6 Legal and arbitration proceedings Pages 291 and 292 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
18.7 Significant change in the issuer’s | Page 742 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
financial or trading position Registration Document
19. Additional information
19.1  Share capital Pages 23, 181 to 182, 288 to 291 and 767 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
19.2 Memorandum and articles of association | Pages 766 to 773 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
20. Material contracts Page 742 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
20.1 Documents on display Page 742 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
2020 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 | Page 179 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
December 2020 Registration Document
Statement of net income and changes in assets and | Page 180 of the BNPP 2020 Universal

liabilities recognised directly in equity

Registration Document

Balance sheet at 31 December 2020

Pages 181 to 182 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document
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Information Incorporated by Reference Reference

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 | Pages 182 to 183 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
December 2020 Registration Document

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity | Pages 184 to 189 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
between 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2020 Registration Document

Notes to the financial statements prepared in | Pages 190 to 333 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
accordance with International Financial Reporting | Registration Document
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated | Pages 333 to 339 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year | Registration Document
ended 31 December 2020

Information contained in the documents incorporated by reference other than information listed in the
tables above is for information purposes only.

Each of the documents incorporated by reference in (a) to (c) above will only be made available by the
Issuer or the Guarantor to which such document relates. Written or oral requests for such documents
should be directed to the Issuer or the Guarantor at their principal offices set out at the end of this Base
Prospectus.
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HOW THE RETURN ON YOUR INVESTMENT IS CALCULATED
PART 1 - RETURNS ON SECURITIES THAT ARE PREFERENCE SHARE CERTIFICATES

THE WORKED EXAMPLES PRESENTED BELOW ARE FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES
ONLY AND ARE IN NO WAY REPRESENTATIVE OF ACTUAL PRICING. THE WORKED
EXAMPLES ARE INTENDED TO DEMONSTRATE HOW AMOUNTS PAYABLE UNDER
THE SECURITIES ARE CALCULATED UNDER A VARIETY OF SCENARIOS. THE
ACTUAL AMOUNTS PAYABLE (IF ANY) WILL BE CALCULATED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE TERMS OF YOUR SECURITIES AS SET OUT IN THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES SECTION (AND THE RELEVANT ANNEX THERETO)
OF THIS DOCUMENT.

For the purposes of the scenarios below, the nominal amount per Security is assumed to be GBP 1
and the issue price is assumed to be 100% of the nominal amount.

Securities that are Preference Share Certificates issued pursuant to the Base Prospectus will, upon
maturity, pay a cash settlement amount that is linked to the change in value of the specified preference
shares which may fluctuate up or down depending on the performance of one or more underlying assets
referenced by the preference shares.

The examples below in this Part 1 demonstrate how the return on your investment in Preference Share
Certificates will be calculated depending on the changes in value of the specified preference shares.

The amount you may expect to receive on the redemption date for each Security that you hold will be
the issue price multiplied by the value of the preference shares on the final valuation date divided by the
value of the preference shares on the initial valuation date.

The Securities may be redeemed early, for example, if an automatic early redemption event occurs in
respect of the preference shares referenced by the Securities. The amount you may expect to receive on
the early redemption date for each Security that you hold will be the issue price multiplied by the value
of the preference shares on the relevant early redemption valuation date divided by the value of the
preference shares on the initial valuation date.

The following examples demonstrate the way in which the performance of the underlying
preference shares could result in a positive, neutral and negative return on the Securities. Upon
maturity or early redemption due to the occurrence of an automatic early redemption event of the
preference shares, the Securities will pay a cash settlement amount, determined in accordance with
Preference Share Condition 6 (Final Payout) or Preference Share Condition 5 (Early Redemption),
as applicable. The cash settlement amount may be less than the issue price or nominal amount per
Security, or may be equal to zero.

WORKED EXAMPLE 1

Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

. the Securities are redeemed early due to the occurrence of an automatic early redemption event
of the preference shares

. the value of the preference shares on the initial valuation date is GBP 1
. the value of the preference shares on the relevant early redemption valuation date is GBP 1.10
. the amount the holder of the Security will receive for each Security will be GBP 1.10 which is

calculated by dividing the value of the preference shares on the relevant early redemption
valuation date (being GBP 1.10) by the value of the preference shares on the initial valuation
date (being GBP 1) and multiplying by the nominal amount of the Security (being GBP 1) or,
expressed mathematically:

GBP 1.10

GBP |
* TGBP 1
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WORKED EXAMPLE 2

Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

the Securities are redeemed at maturity
the value of the preference shares on the initial valuation date is GBP 1
the value of the preference shares on the final valuation date is GBP 1

the amount the holder of the Security will receive for each Security will be GBP 1 which is
calculated by dividing the value of the preference shares on the final valuation date (being GBP
1) by the value of the preference shares on the initial valuation date (being GBP 1) and
multiplying by the nominal amount of the Security (being GBP 1) or, expressed mathematically:

GBP 1

BP 1
GBP 1% &5BP1

WORKED EXAMPLE 3

Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

the Securities are redeemed at maturity
the value of the preference shares on the initial valuation date is GBP 1
the value of the preference shares on the final valuation date is GBP 0.80

the amount the holder of the Security will receive for each Security will be GBP 0.80 which is
calculated by dividing the value of the preference shares on the final valuation date (being GBP
0.80) by the value of the preference shares on the initial valuation date (being GBP 1) and
multiplying by the nominal amount of the Security (being GBP 1) or, expressed mathematically:

GBP 0.80

GBP I x — >
* TGBP 1
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PART 2 - RETURNS ON SECURITIES THAT ARE NOT PREFERENCE SHARE
CERTIFICATES

THE WORKED EXAMPLES PRESENTED BELOW ARE FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES
ONLY AND ARE IN NO WAY REPRESENTATIVE OF ACTUAL PRICING. THE WORKED
EXAMPLES ARE INTENDED TO DEMONSTRATE HOW AMOUNTS PAYABLE UNDER
THE SECURITIES ARE CALCULATED UNDER A VARIETY OF SCENARIOS. THE
ACTUAL AMOUNTS PAYABLE (IF ANY) WILL BE CALCULATED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE TERMS OF YOUR SECURITIES AS SET OUT IN THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES SECTION (AND THE RELEVANT ANNEX THERETO)
OF THIS DOCUMENT.

Securities that are not Preference Share Certificates issued pursuant to the Base Prospectus will, upon
maturity, pay a cash settlement amount that is linked to the change in value of one or more underlying
assets which may fluctuate up or down. Such Securities may pay coupons during the life of the product
and may have automatic early redemption features.

The examples below in this Part 2 demonstrate how the return on your investment in the Securities will
be calculated depending on the changes in value of the underlying asset or underlying assets referenced
by such Securities.

Unless your Securities are redeemed early or are adjusted, the amount you will receive on the redemption
date for each Security that you hold will be an amount determined by the calculation agent in accordance
with the payout applicable to the terms of your Securities. The cash settlement amount may be less than
the nominal amount per Security, or even be equal to zero.

Key assumptions made for each of the worked examples below (unless otherwise specified in the
relevant example):

. the nominal amount per Security (""NA") is assumed to be GBP 1,000 and the issue price
is assumed to be 100% of the NA,;

. if the Securities are linked to a single underlying asset, the initial level/price/value of the
underlying asset or the basket of underlying assets is GBP 100;

. if the Securities are linked to a basket of underlying assets, the initial level/price/value of
the basket of underlying assets is 100%; and

. any (a) automatic early redemption level, (b) barrier level, (c) snowball level, (d) knock-in
level, (e) knock-out level, (f) final redemption condition level, (g) automatic early
redemption value, (h) digital coupon barrier value, (i) snowball barrier value, (j) knock-
in value, (k) knock-out value, (I) final redemption barrier value, or (m) other applicable
level or value is expressed as a percentage in respect of the initial level/price/value of the
relevant underlying asset or basket of underlying assets.

1. SPS AUTOMATIC EARLY REDEMPTION PAYOUT
1.1 SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payout

The automatic early redemption amount shall be calculated in accordance with the following
formula. The terms used herein for the purposes of calculating the automatic early redemption
amount shall have the same meaning as the defined terms used in the Payout Conditions.

NA x (AER Redemption Percentage + AER Exit Rate)
Description of the Payout

Depending on the terms of the Securities, an automatic early redemption event may be triggered
if the performance of the underlying asset(s) reaches or crosses or does not reach or cross the
automatic early redemption level for a relevant valuation date. On the first relevant valuation
date that an automatic early redemption event is deemed to have occurred, the automatic early
redemption amount will become payable and such automatic early redemption amount will be
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calculated by reference to the sum of a redemption percentage and a fixed rate corresponding
to the relevant valuation date in respect of which an automatic early redemption event is deemed
to have occurred that may be multiplied by an applicable day count fraction.

After payment of the automatic early redemption amount on the relevant redemption date, no
further payment shall be payable under the Securities.

WORKED EXAMPLE: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

The Securities are linked to a basket of underlying assets

The Final Terms specify that "Single Standard Automatic Early Redemption” is
applicable and an Automatic Early Redemption Event will occur if on any SPS ER
Valuation Date the SPS AER Value is greater than or equal to the Automatic Early
Redemption Level corresponding to such SPS ER Valuation Date

The AER Redemption Percentage is 105% (expressed as 1.05)
AER Exit Rate means either AER Rate or AER CSN Rate

AER CSN means the product of (a) the relevant AER Rate multiplied by (b) the
applicable AER Day Count Fraction

AER Day Count Fraction means the quotient of (i) the actual number of days from (but
excluding) the initial valuation date to (and including) the relevant SPS ER Valuation
Date in respect of which an Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs divided by (ii)
365. For the purposes of this example, the initial valuation date is 28 January 2021 and
there are 1,095 days between such initial valuation date and the third SPS ER Valuation
Date (in respect of which an Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs)

SPS ER Valuation SPS AER Value, Automatic AER Rate
Date being the Worst Early

Value (i.e. the Redemption

underlying asset in | Level

the basket of

underlying assets
with the lowest
Underlying
Reference Value)

1 28 January 2022 90% 100% 5% (expressed
as 0.05)
2 28 January 2023 95% 97.50% 10% (expressed
as 0.10)
3 28 January 2024 100% 95% 15% (expressed
as 0.15)
4 28 January 2025 N/A. The Securities | 92.50% 20% (expressed
have been as 0.20)

redeemed early and
no further valuation
is taken.

THEN: because an Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs in respect of the third SPS ER
Valuation Date,

0]

if AER Exit Rate means AER Rate, the Securities will be early redeemed on the
corresponding redemption date and the investor will receive GBP 1,200, which is

59



2.1

calculated by the product of (a) NA multiplied by (b) the sum of (i) the AER Redemption
Percentage plus (ii) the relevant AER Rate; or

(i) if AER Exit Rate means AER CSN Rate, the Securities will be early redeemed on the
corresponding redemption date and the investor will receive GBP 1,500, which is
calculated by the product of (a) NA multiplied by (b) the sum of (i) the AER Redemption
Percentage plus (ii) the AER CSN Rate (being, 45% (expressed as 0.45)).

SPS COUPON RATES

Digital coupon

The coupon amount shall be calculated as the product of NA and a rate calculated in accordance
with the following formulae, as applicable. The terms used herein for the purposes of calculating
the coupon amount shall have the same meaning as the defined terms used in the Payout
Conditions.

() If the Digital Coupon Condition is satisfied in respect of SPS Coupon Valuation Dateg
or SPS Coupon Valuation Periodg;, as applicable:

Rate; or

(i) If the Digital Coupon Condition is not satisfied in respect of SPS Coupon Valuation
Date or SPS Coupon Valuation Periodg; as applicable:

zero.
Description of the Payout

A Digital Coupon provides that the Securities bear or pay interest at a specified rate for the
relevant period if a specified condition is met. If the condition is not met then the Securities will
pay no interest for that period.

WORKED EXAMPLE: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

. The Securities are linked to a basket of underlying assets

. The Digital Coupon Condition will be satisfied if the DC Barrier Value for the relevant
SPS Coupon Valuation Date is equal to or greater than the relevant Barrier Level

i SPS Coupon DC Barrier Barrier Level Rate
Valuation Date) | Value, being the
Worst Value (i.e.
the underlying
asset in the
basket of
underlying assets
with the lowest
Underlying
Reference Value)

1 28 January 2022 60% 100% 2% (expressed as
0.02)

2 28 January 2023 100% 100% 3% (expressed as
0.03)

3 28 January 2024 105% 100% 4% (expressed as
0.04)
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2.2

THEN: because the Digital Coupon Condition is satisfied in respect of the second and third SPS
Coupon Valuation Dates, the investor will receive GBP 30 on the interest payment date
corresponding to the second SPS Coupon Valuation Date and GBP 40 on the interest payment
date corresponding to the third SPS Coupon Valuation Date. No coupon amount is payable in
respect of the first SPS Coupon Valuation Date as the Digital Coupon Condition is not satisfied.

Snowball Digital Coupon

The coupon amount shall be calculated as the product of NA and a rate calculated in accordance
with the following formulae, as applicable. The terms used herein for the purposes of calculating
the coupon amount shall have the same meaning as the defined terms used in the Payout
Conditions.

() if the Snowball Digital Coupon Condition is satisfied in respect of SPS Coupon
Valuation Dateg or SPS Coupon Valuation Period, as applicable:

Rate() + SumRate;

(if)  if the Snowball Digital Coupon Condition is not satisfied in respect of SPS Coupon
Valuation Dateg or SPS Coupon Valuation Period, as applicable:

zero.
Description of the Payout
A Snowball Digital Coupon provides that the Securities bear or pay interest on the basis of a
Digital Coupon Condition but with a memory effect. Any interest not paid in respect of a period
may be paid at a later date if certain conditions are met.
WORKED EXAMPLE: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:
. The Securities are linked to a single underlying asset
. The Snowball Digital Coupon Condition will be satisfied if the Snowball Barrier Value

for the relevant SPS Coupon Valuation Period is equal to or greater than the relevant
Snowball Level

SPS Coupon Snowball Barrier | Snowball Level Rateq
Valuation Period | Value, being the

highest

Underlying

Reference Value
(i.e. the closing
level/price/value)
of the underlying
asset for all the

SPS Valuation
Dates in such
SPS Valuation
Period
1 28 January 2021 80% 75% 6% (expressed as
to 28 January 0.06)
2022
2 29 January 2022 85% 85% 6% (expressed as
to 28 January 0.06)
2023
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3.1

3 29 January 2023 90% 95% 6% (expressed as
to 28 January 0.06)
2024

4 29 January 2024 110% 105% 6% (expressed as
to 28 January 0.06)
2025

THEN: because,

0]

(ii)

(iii)

the Snowball Digital Coupon Condition is satisfied in respect of the first SPS Coupon
Valuation Period, the investor will receive GBP 60 on the corresponding interest
payment date, which is calculated as the sum of (a) the relevant Rate plus (b) the sum
of each Rateg; in the period from (but excluding) the Issue Date to (but excluding) this
first SPS Coupon Valuation Period (in this case, being 0);

the Snowball Digital Coupon Condition is satisfied in respect of the second SPS Coupon
Valuation Period, the investor will receive GBP 60 on the corresponding interest
payment date, which is calculated as the sum of (a) the relevant Rate plus (b) the sum
of each Rateg) in the period from (but excluding) the last day of the SPS Coupon
Valuation Period in which the Snowball Digital Coupon Condition was last satisfied (i.e.
from (but excluding) the first SPS Coupon Valuation Period) to (but excluding) this
second SPS Coupon Valuation Period (in this case, being 0); and

the Snowball Digital Coupon Condition is satisfied in respect of the final SPS Coupon
Valuation Period, the investor will receive GBP 120 on the corresponding interest
payment date, which is calculated as the sum of (a) the relevant Rateg plus (b) the sum
of each Rateg) in the period from (but excluding) the last day of the SPS Coupon
Valuation Period in which the Snowball Digital Coupon Condition was last satisfied (i.e.
from (but excluding) the second SPS Coupon Valuation Period) to (but excluding) this
final SPS Coupon Valuation Period (in this case, being 6%).

SPS FINAL PAYOUTS

Reverse Convertible Standard Securities

The cash settlement amount shall be calculated as the product of NA and a rate calculated in
accordance with the following formulae, as applicable. The terms used herein for the purposes
of calculating the cash settlement amount shall have the same meaning as the defined terms used
in the Payout Conditions.

(M)

(i)

If no Knock-in Event has occurred:
100%; or
If a Knock-in Event has occurred:

Min (100%, Final Redemption Value).

Description of the Payout

The terms of the Securities provide that (a) if no Knock-in Event has occurred, the cash
settlement amount will equal 100 per cent. of NA, or (b) if a Knock-in Event has occurred, the
cash settlement amount will be the lower of 100 per cent. of NA and indexation to the value of
the underlying asset(s).

WORKED EXAMPLE 1: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

The Securities are linked to a basket of underlying assets
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3.2

. A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is equal to or less than the Knock-in
Level in respect of a Knock-in Determination Day

Knock-in Knock-in Value, being | Knock-in Level
Determination Day the Best Value (i.e. the
underlying asset in the
basket of underlying

assets with the highest
Underlying Reference

Value)
1 28 January 2021 100% (i.e. GBP 100) 95% (i.e. GBP 95)
2 28 January 2022 110% (i.e. GBP 110) 95% (i.e. GBP 95)
3 28 January 2023 105% (i.e. GBP 105) 95% (i.e. GBP 95)

THEN: because no Knock-In Event has occurred, the investor will receive GBP 1,000, which is
calculated by the product of (a) 100% multiplied by (b) NA.

WORKED EXAMPLE 2: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:
. The Securities are linked to a basket of reference assets

. A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is equal to or less than the Knock-in
Level in respect of a Knock-in Determination Day

. Final Redemption Value means the Worst Value (i.e. the underlying asset in the basket
of underlying assets with the lowest Underlying Reference Value)

Knock-in Knock-in Value, being | Knock-in Level
Determination Day the Worst Value (i.e.
the underlying asset in
the basket of
underlying assets with
the lowest Underlying
Reference Value)

1 28 January 2023 (also 70% 95%
the "SPS Valuation
Date")

THEN: because a Knock-In Event has occurred in respect of the Knock-in Determination Day
(being the SPS Valuation Date in respect of the redemption date), the investor will receive GBP
700, which is calculated by the product of (a) lesser of (i) 100% and (ii) the Final Redemption
Value (i.e. 70%), multiplied by (b) NA.

Autocall One Touch Securities

The cash settlement amount shall be calculated as the product of NA and a rate calculated in
accordance with the following formulae, as applicable. The terms used herein for the purposes
of calculating the cash settlement amount shall have the same meaning as the defined terms used
in the Payout Conditions.

(i) If the Final Redemption Condition is satisfied:
Constant Percentage 1 + FR Rate;

(i) If the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and a Knock-out Event has occurred:
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(iii)

(iv)

Constant Percentage 2 + Coupon Airbag Percentage 1; or

If the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied, no Knock-out Event has occurred and
no Knock-in Event has occurred:

Constant Percentage 3 + Coupon Airbag Percentage 2; or

If the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied, and if no Knock-out Event has
occurred but a Knock-in Event has occurred:

Max (Constant Percentage 4 + Gearing x Forward; 0%)

Description of the Payout

The terms of the Securities provide that the cash settlement amount payable shall be:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

if the Final Redemption Condition is satisfied, a fixed percentage plus a final rate;

if the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and a Knock-Out Event has occurred,
a fixed percentage (that may differ from the fixed percentage mentioned in (i));

if the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and no Knock-Out Event and no
Knock-In Event has occurred, a fixed percentage (that may differ from the previously
mentioned fixed percentages in (i) and (ii)); or

if the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and no Knock-Out Event has occurred
but a Knock-In Event has occurred, no fixed percentage and indexation to the value of
the Underlying Reference(s), which shall not be less than a specified fixed percentage
(which may be zero).

WORKED EXAMPLE 1: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

The Securities are linked to a basket of underlying assets

The Final Redemption Condition will be satisfied if the FR Barrier Value in respect of
the SPS FR Barrier Valuation Date is greater than the Final Redemption Condition
Level

A Knock-out Event will occur if the Knock-out Value is greater than the Knock-out
Level in respect of the Knock-out Determination Day, but will not be considered if the
Final Redemption Condition is satisfied

A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in
respect of the Knock-in Determination Day, but will not be considered if the Final
Redemption Condition is satisfied or a Knock-out Event has occurred

The Constant Percentage 1 is 100%(expressed as 1.00)

The FR Rate is 59.20%(expressed as 0.5920)

Knock-in Knock-in Knock-in Knock-out |Knock-out |FR Barrier |Final
Determinati |Value, being | Level Value, being | Level Value, being | Redemption
on Day /|the Best the Worst the Worst | Condition
Knock-out |Value (i.e. Value (i.e. Value (i.e.|Level
Determinati |the the the
on Day underlying underlying underlying

asset in the asset in the asset in the

basket  of basket  of basket  of

underlying underlying underlying

assets with assets with assets with

the highest the lowest the lowest

Underlying Underlying Underlying
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1 |28 January|90% 60% 85% 70% 85% 80%
2023 (also the
"SPS FR
Barrier
Valuation
Date" and the
"SPS
Valuation
Date")

THEN: because the Final Redemption Condition is satisfied (i.e. the FR Barrier Value is greater
than the Final Redemption Condition Level), the investor will receive GBP 1,592, which is
calculated by the product of (a) the sum of (i) the Constant Percentage 1 plus (ii) the FR Rate,
multiplied by (b) NA.

WORKED EXAMPLE 2: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

. The Securities are linked to a basket of underlying assets

. The Final Redemption Condition will be satisfied if the FR Barrier Value in respect of
the SPS FR Barrier Valuation Date is greater than the Final Redemption Condition
Level

. A Knock-out Event will occur if the Knock-out Value is greater than the Knock-out

Level in respect of the Knock-out Determination Day, but will not be considered if the
Final Redemption Condition is satisfied

. A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in
respect of the Knock-in Determination Day, but will not be considered if the Final
Redemption Condition is satisfied or a Knock-out Event has occurred

. The Constant Percentage 2 is 100% (expressed as 1.00)

. The Coupon Airbag Percentage 1 is 10% (expressed as 0.10)

28  January | 90% 60% 75% 70% 75% 80%
2023 (also the
"SPS FR
Barrier
Valuation
Date" and the
"SPS
Valuation
Date")
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THEN: because a Knock-out Event has occurred but the Final Redemption Condition is not
satisfied (i.e. the Knock-out Value is greater than the Knock-out Level but not the Final
Redemption Condition Level), the investor will receive GBP 1,100, which is calculated by the
product of (a) the sum of (i) the Constant Percentage 2 plus (ii) the Coupon Airbag Percentage
1, multiplied by (b) NA.

WORKED EXAMPLE 3: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

The Securities are linked to a basket of underlying assets

The Final Redemption Condition will be satisfied if the FR Barrier Value in respect of
the SPS FR Barrier Valuation Date is greater than the Final Redemption Condition

Level

A Knock-out Event will occur if the Knock-out Value is greater than the Knock-out
Level in respect of the Knock-out Determination Day, but will not be considered if the
Final Redemption Condition is satisfied

A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in
respect of the Knock-in Determination Day, but will not be considered if the Final
Redemption Condition is satisfied or a Knock-out Event has occurred

The Constant Percentage 3 is 100% (expressed as 1.00)

The Coupon Airbag Percentage 2 is zero

Knock-in Knock-in Knock-in Knock-out Knock-out FR Barrier | Final
Determination | Value, being | Level Value, being | Level Value, being | Redemption
Day / Knock- | the Best the Worst the Worst | Condition
out Value (i.e. the Value (i.e. the Value (i.e. the | Level
Determination | underlying underlying underlying
Day asset in the asset in the asset in the
basket of basket of basket of
underlying underlying underlying
assets  with assets  with assets  with
the  highest the lowest the lowest
Underlying Underlying Underlying
Reference Reference Reference
Value) Value) Value)
28 January | 78% 60% 50% 70% 50% 80%
2023 (also the
"SPS FR
Barrier
Valuation
Date" and the
"SPS
Valuation
Date")

THEN: because the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied, no Knock-out Event has
occurred and no Knock-in Event has occurred (i.e. the Knock-out Value is less than the Knock-
out Level but the Knock-in Value is greater than the Knock-in Level), the investor will receive
GBP 1,000, which is calculated by the product of (a) the sum of (i) the Constant Percentage 3
plus (ii) the Coupon Airbag Percentage 2, multiplied by (b) NA.

WORKED EXAMPLE 4: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

The Securities are linked to a basket of underlying assets

The Final Redemption Condition will be satisfied if the FR Barrier Value in respect of
the SPS FR Barrier Valuation Date is greater than the Final Redemption Condition

Level
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3.3

A Knock-out Event will occur if the Knock-out Value is greater than the Knock-out
Level in respect of the Knock-out Determination Day, but will not be considered if the
Final Redemption Condition is satisfied

A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in
respect of the Knock-in Determination Day, but will not be considered if the Final
Redemption Condition is satisfied or a Knock-out Event has occurred

The Constant Percentage 4 is zero
Gearing is 100% (expressed as 1.00)

Forward means the difference between (a) the Final Redemption Value minus (b) the
Strike Percentage

Final Redemption Value means the Worst Value (i.e. the underlying asset in the basket
of underlying assets with the lowest Underlying Reference Value)

Strike Percentage is zero

Knock-in Knock-in Knock-in Knock-out Knock-out FR Barrier Final
Determination | Value, being | Level Value, being | Level Value, being | Redemption
Day / Knock- | the Best the Worst the Worst Condition
out Value (i.e. the Value (i.e. the Value (i.e. the | Level
Determination | underlying underlying underlying
Day asset in the asset in the asset in the
basket of basket of basket of
underlying underlying underlying
assets  with assets with assets with
the  highest the lowest the lowest
Underlying Underlying Underlying
Reference Reference Reference
Value) Value) Value)
1 |28 January | 40% 60% 30% 70% 30% 80%
2023 (also the
"SPS FR
Barrier
Valuation
Date" and the
"SPS
Valuation
Date")

THEN: because the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied, no Knock-out Event has
occurred but a Knock-in Event has occurred (i.e. the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in
Level), the investor will receive GBP 300, which is calculated by the product of (a) the greater
of (i) the sum of (x) product of (1) the Gearing multiplied by (1) Forward (i.e. 30%), plus (y)
Constant Percentage 4 and (ii) zero, multiplied by (b) NA.

Autocall Securities

The cash settlement amount shall be calculated as the product of NA and a rate calculated in
accordance with the following formulae, as applicable. The terms used herein for the purposes
of calculating the cash settlement amount shall have the same meaning as the defined terms used
in the Payout Conditions.

0]

(i)

(iii)

if the Final Redemption Condition is satisfied:

Constant Percentage 1 + FR Exit Rate; or

if the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and no Knock-in Event has occurred:

Constant Percentage 2 + Coupon Airbag Percentage; or

if the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and a Knock-in Event has occurred:




Max [Constant Percentage 3 + (Gearing x Option); 0%]
Description of the Payout

The terms of the Securities provide that the cash settlement amount payable shall be:

Q) if the Final Redemption Condition is satisfied, a fixed percentage plus a final exit rate;

(if)  if the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and no Knock-In Event has occurred,
a fixed percentage (that may differ from the above fixed percentage);

(iii)  if the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied, a Knock-In Event has occurred and
Option is Put or Put Spread, no fixed percentage and indexation to the value of the
underlying asset(s) below the Strike Percentage; or

(iv) if the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied, a Knock-in Event has occurred and

Option is Forward, no fixed percentage and indexation to the value of the underlying

asset(s).

WORKED EXAMPLE 1: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

. The Securities are linked to a single underlying asset

. The Final Redemption Condition will be satisfied if the FR Barrier Value in respect of
the SPS FR Barrier Valuation Date is greater than the Final Redemption Condition
Level

. A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in

respect of the Knock-in Determination Days, but will not be considered if the Final

Redemption Condition is satisfied

. Constant Percentage 1 is 100% (expressed as 1.00)

. FR Exit Rate means either FR Rate or FR CSN Rate

. FR Rate means 63% (expressed as 0.63)

. FR CSN Rate means the product of (a) the FR Rate multiplied by (b) the applicable FR
Day Count Fraction

. FR Day Count Fraction means the quotient of (i) the actual number of days from (and

including) the issue date to (but excluding) the SPS Redemption Valuation Date
divided by (ii) 365. For the purposes of this example, the issue date is 28 January 2021

and there are 730 days between such issue date and the SPS Redemption Valuation
Date
Knock-in Knock-in  Value, | Knock-in Level FR Barrier Value, | Final Redemption
Determination being the Average being the | Condition Level
Days during the | Underlying Underlying
SPS Valuation | Reference Value Reference  Value
Period (i.e. the arithmetic (i.e. the closing
average of the level/price/value)
Underlying of the underlying

Reference Values
of the underlying
asset in respect of
the SPS Valuation
Dates in the SPS
Valuation Period)

asset

26 January 2023, 27
January 2023, 28
January 2023 (each
such date, an "SPS
Valuation Date")

100%

70%

110%

90%
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The valuation date
falling on 28
January 2023 shall
also be the SPS FR
Barrier  Valuation
Date and the SPS
Redemption
Valuation Date

THEN: because the Final Redemption Condition is satisfied,

(i)

(i)

if FR Exit Rate means FR Rate, the investor will receive GBP 1,630, which is calculated
by the product of (a) the sum of (i) the Constant Percentage 1 plus (ii) the FR Rate,
multiplied by (b) NA; or

if FR Exit Rate means FR CSN Rate, the investor will receive GBP 2,260, which is
calculated by the product of (a) the sum of (i) the Constant Percentage 1 plus (ii) the FR
CSN Rate (being 126% (expressed as 1.26)) , multiplied by (b) NA.

WORKED EXAMPLE 2: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

The Securities are linked to a single underlying asset

The Final Redemption Condition will be satisfied if the FR Barrier Value in respect of
the SPS FR Barrier Valuation Date is greater than the Final Redemption Condition
Level

A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in
respect of the Knock-in Determination Days, but will not be considered if the Final
Redemption Condition is satisfied

Constant Percentage 2 is 100% (expressed as 1.00)

Coupon Airbag Percentage is zero

26 January 2023, 27 | 75% 70% 80% 90%
January 2023, 28

January 2023 (each

such date, an "SPS

Valuation Date")
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The valuation date
falling on 28
January 2023 shall
also be the SPS FR
Barrier  Valuation
Date

THEN: because the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and no Knock-in Event has
occurred, the investor will receive GBP 1,000, which is calculated by the product of (a) the sum
of (i) the Constant Percentage 2 plus (ii) the Coupon Airbag Percentage, multiplied by (b) NA.

WORKED EXAMPLE 3: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:

The Securities are linked to a single underlying asset

The Final Redemption Condition will be satisfied if the FR Barrier Value in respect of
the SPS FR Barrier Valuation Date is greater than the Final Redemption Condition
Level

A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in
respect of the Knock-in Determination Day, but will not be considered if the Final
Redemption Condition is satisfied

Constant Percentage 3 is 20% (expressed as 0.20)
Gearing is 110% (expressed as 1.10)
Option means either Put, Put Spread or Forward

Put means 50%, being the greater of (a) the difference between (i) the Strike Percentage
minus (ii) the Final Redemption Value, and (b) zero

Put Spread means 40%, being the lesser of (a) the greater of (i) the difference between
(A) the Strike Percentage minus (B) the Final Redemption Value, and (ii) zero, and (b)
the Cap Percentage

Forward means -50% (expressed as -0.5), being the difference between (a) the Final
Redemption Value minus (b) the Strike Percentage

Strike Percentage is 100% (expressed as 1.00)
Cap Percentage is 40% (expressed as 0.40)
Final Redemption Value means the Average Underlying Reference Value (i.e. 50%,

being the arithmetic average of the Underlying Reference Values of the underlying
asset in respect of the SPS Valuation Dates in the SPS Valuation Period)

Knock-in Knock-in  Value, | Knock-in Level FR Barrier Value, | Final Redemption
Determination being the Average being the | Condition Level
Days during the | Underlying Underlying
SPS Valuation | Reference Value Reference  Value
Period (i.e. the arithmetic (i.e. the closing

average of the level/price/value)

Underlying of the underlying

Reference Values asset

of the underlying
asset in respect of
the SPS Valuation
Dates in the SPS
Valuation Period)

26 January 2023, 27 | 50% 70% 45% 90%
January 2023, 28
January 2023 (each
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3.4

Knock-in
Determination
Days during the
SPS Valuation
Period

Knock-in  Value,
being the Average
Underlying

Reference  Value
(i.e. the arithmetic
average of the
Underlying

Reference Values

Knock-in Level

FR Barrier Value,

being the
Underlying

Reference  Value
(i.e. the closing

level/price/value)
of the underlying
asset

Final Redemption
Condition Level

of the underlying
asset in respect of
the SPS Valuation
Dates in the SPS
Valuation Period)

such date, an "SPS
Valuation Date")

The valuation date
falling on 28
January 2023 shall
also be the SPS FR
Barrier  Valuation
Date

THEN: because the Final Redemption Condition is not satisfied and a Knock-in Event has
occurred,

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

if Option means Put, the investor will receive GBP 750, which is calculated by the
product of (a) the greater of (i) the sum of (A) the Constant Percentage 3 plus (B) the
product of (1) the Gearing multiplied by (I1) the Option (i.e. 50%), and (ii) 0%, multiplied
by (b) NA;

if Option means Put Spread, the investor will receive GBP 640, which is calculated by
the product of (a) the greater of (i) the sum of (A) the Constant Percentage 3 plus (B) the
product of (1) the Gearing multiplied by (11) the Option (i.e. 40%), and (ii) 0%, multiplied
by (b) NA; or

if Option means Forward, the investor will receive GBP 0, which is calculated by the
product of (a) the greater of (i) the sum of (A) the Constant Percentage 3 plus (B) the
product of (I) the Gearing multiplied by (I1) the Option (i.e. -50%), and (ii) 0%,
multiplied by (b) NA.

Certi plus: Generic Knock-out Securities

The cash settlement amount shall be calculated as the product of NA and a rate calculated in
accordance with the following formulae, as applicable. The terms used herein for the purposes
of calculating the cash settlement amount shall have the same meaning as the defined terms used
in the Payout Conditions.

0]

(i)

If no Knock-in Event has occurred:
Constant Percentage 1 + Gearing Up x Up Call; or
If a Knock-in Event has occurred:

Constant Percentage 2 + Gearing Down x Down Forward

Description of the Payout

The terms of the Securities provide that the cash settlement amount payable shall be:

0]

if no Knock-in Event occurs, a fixed percentage and indexation to the value of the
underlying asset(s) through the Up Call which may be subject to a maximum level; or
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(if)  if a Knock-in Event occurs, a fixed percentage and indexation to the value of the
underlying asset (s) (this value may differ from the value above) through the Down
Forward.

WORKED EXAMPLE 1: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:
. The Securities are linked to a single underlying asset

. A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in
respect of the Knock-in Determination Day

. Constant Percentage 1 is 100% (expressed as 1.00)
. Gearing Up is 200% (expressed as 2.00)
. Up Call means the greater of (a) the difference between (i) Up Final Redemption Value

minus (ii) Up Strike Percentage and (b) Up Floor Percentage

. Up Final Redemption Value means the Underlying Reference Value (i.e. the closing
level/price/value) of the underlying asset

. Up Strike Percentage is 100% (expressed as 1.00)
. Up Floor Percentage is zero
Knock-in Knock-in Value, being | Knock-in Level
Determination Days the Underlying
Reference Value (i.e. the
closing

level/price/value) of the
underlying asset

1 28 January 2023 (such | 90% 70%
date, an "SPS Valuation
Date™)

THEN: because no Knock-in Event has occurred, the investor will receive GBP 1,000, which is
calculated by the product of (a) the sum of (i) the product of (x) Gearing Up multiplied by (y)
Up Call (i.e. 0%) plus (ii) the Constant Percentage 1, multiplied by (b) NA.

WORKED EXAMPLE 2: Assuming, for the purpose of this worked example only, that:
. The Securities are linked to a single underlying asset

. A Knock-in Event will occur if the Knock-in Value is less than the Knock-in Level in
respect of the Knock-in Determination Day

. Constant Percentage 2 is zero
. Gearing Down is 100 per cent (expressed as 1.00)
. Down Forward means the difference between (a) Down Final Redemption Value minus

(b) Down Strike Percentage

. Down Final Redemption Value means the Underlying Reference Value (i.e. the closing
level/price/value) of the underlying asset

. Down Strike Percentage is zero
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1 28 January 2023 (such | 60% 70%
date, an "SPS Valuation
Date")

THEN: because a Knock-in Event has occurred, the investor will receive GBP 600, which is
calculated by the product of (a) the sum of (i) the product of (x) Gearing Down multiplied by
(y) Down Forward (i.e. 60%) plus (ii) the Constant Percentage 2, multiplied by (b) NA.
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FORM OF FINAL TERMS FOR CERTIFICATES

[The Issuer accepts responsibility for this document in PDF dated [date] and confirms that it is
the final version (*'[Series Number] — Final'") of the Final Terms relating to the Certificates with
ISIN [ISIN] for the issuance [and listing] of the Certificates described herein.]

[The Base Prospectus expires on 30 June 2022 [and the Issuer intends that the Base Prospectus
will be updated before expiry]. The updated base prospectus will be available on [https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx].]*

FINAL TERMS DATED [@®]
[BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]

(incorporated in The Netherlands)
(as Issuer)
Legal entity identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48

BNP Paribas

(incorporated in France)
(as Guarantor)

Legal entity identifier (LEI): ROMUWSFPU8SMPRO8K5P83
[insert title of Securities]

under the UK Certificate Programme
of BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. and BNP Paribas

[[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.]/[BNP Paribas]
(as Manager)]

[Any person making or intending to make an offer of the Securities may only do so[:

0] provided such person is [a Manager or] an Authorised Offeror (as such term is defined in the
Base Prospectus) and that the offer is made during the Offer Period specified in paragraph 34
below and that any conditions relevant to the use of the Base Prospectus are complied with; or

(i) otherwise]? in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer, the Guarantor or any
Manager to publish a prospectus pursuant to section 85 of the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 ("FSMA") or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 23 of the UK Prospectus
Regulation (as defined below), in each case, in relation to such offer.

[Neither][None of] the Issuer [nor], the Guarantor [or] [any Manager] has authorised, nor do they
authorise, the making of any offer of Securities in any other circumstances.]?

[Investors should note that if a supplement to or an updated version of the Base Prospectus referred to
below is published at any time during the Offer Period (as defined below), such supplement or updated
base prospectus, as the case may be, will be published and made available in accordance with the
arrangements applied to the original publication of these Final Terms.] Any investors who have indicated
acceptances of the Offer [(as defined below)] prior to the date of publication of such supplement or
updated version of the Base Prospectus, as the case may be (the "Publication Date"), have the right
within two working days of the Publication Date to withdraw their acceptances, provided that the

t Include in respect of an issue of Certificates for which the public offer period spans an update to the Base Prospectus or the Issue Date
occurs after an update to the Base Prospectus where the public offer period concludes prior to the update to the Base Prospectus.

2 Include this wording where a non-exempt offer of Securities is anticipated.

3 Do not include if "Prohibition of Sales UK Retail Investors — Legend" and the related selling restrictions apply at all times.
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significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy arose or was noted before the closing of
the offer period or the delivery of the Securities, whichever occurs first.]*

[Investors who, before the Base Prospectus is published, have already agreed to purchase or subscribe
for the Securities which are the subject of the Non-exempt Offer, where the Securities have not yet been
delivered to such investors, have the right, exercisable within the period of two working days after the
publication of the Base Prospectus to withdraw their acceptances. This right to withdraw shall expire by
close of business on [@].]

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

[Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in
the Base Prospectus dated 30 June 2021], [the][each] Supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus published
and approved on or before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described
below) and any other Supplement to the Base Prospectus which may have been published and approved
before the issue of any additional amount of Securities (the "Supplements") (provided that to the extent
any such Supplement (i) is published and approved after the date of these Final Terms and (ii) provides
for any change to the Conditions of the Securities such changes shall have no effect with respect to the
Conditions of the Securities to which these Final Terms relate)] which [together] constitute[s] a base
prospectus for the purposes of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue
of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, the "EUWA") and regulations made
thereunder (as amended, the "UK Prospectus Regulation™) (the "Base Prospectus”). This document
constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities described herein for the purposes of the UK Prospectus
Regulation and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus to obtain all the relevant
information. [A summary of the Securities is annexed to these Final Terms.] [The Base Prospectus
[[and][,] any Supplement(s) to the Base Prospectus] [and these Final Terms]?® [is/are] available for
viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained free of charge at the specified
offices of the Security Agents.]]

[The following alternative language applies in respect of issues of Securities (a) where the public offer
period spans a supplement to the Base Prospectus or an update to the Base Prospectus or (b) where the
public offer period concludes prior to the publication of a supplement to the Base Prospectus or an
update to the Base Prospectus, but the Issue Date of the Securities occurs after such publication.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the
"Conditions") set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [date][,][and][the][each] Supplement][s] to the Base
Prospectus published and approved on or before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are
available as described below)] [notwithstanding the publication and approval of any [other] Supplement
to the 2021 Base Prospectus (each a "2021 Future Supplement") which may have been published and
approved after the date of these Final Terms and before the [issue] [end of the public offer period] of the
Securities to which these Final Terms relate)] ([together,] the "2021 Base Prospectus")] [and/or] [an
updated Base Prospectus (and any Supplement(s) thereto, each a 2022 Future Supplement"), which
will replace the 2021 Base Prospectus (the 2022 Base Prospectus")] (the date of any such publication
and approval, each a "Publication Date"). This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities
described herein for the purposes of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of UK domestic law by
virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, the "EUWA") and regulations made
thereunder (as amended, the "UK Prospectus Regulation™) and [(i) prior to any Publication Date, must
be read in conjunction with the 2021 Base Prospectus, or (ii)] on and after any Publication Date must be
read in conjunction with [the 2021 Base Prospectus, as supplemented by any 2021 Future Supplement as
at such date] [or, as applicable,] [the 2022 Base Prospectus, as supplemented by any 2022 Future
Supplement as at such date],] save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the 2021 Base
Prospectus to obtain all the relevant information. The 2021 Base Prospectus, as supplemented,
constitutes[, and the 2022 Base Prospectus will constitute,] a base prospectus for the purposes of the UK
Prospectus Regulation. [The Issuer has in the 2021 Base Prospectus given consent to the use of the 2021
Base Prospectus in connection with the offer of the Securities. Such consent will be valid until the date
that is twelve months following the date of the 2021 Base Prospectus. The Issuer will in the 2022 Base
Prospectus give consent to the use of the 2022 Base Prospectus in connection with the offer of the

4 Include in respect of issues of Securities where the public offer period spans a supplement to the Base Prospectus or an update to the
Base Prospectus.

5 Include in respect of issues of Securities that are listed.
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Securities.] [A summary of the Securities is annexed to these Final Terms.] The 2021 Base Prospectus],
as supplemented,] [and] [these Final Terms]® [is/are] available[, and the 2022 Base Prospectus will
be available] for viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained from [address].

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not applicable". Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even if "Not applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub
paragraphs (in which case the sub-paragraphs of the paragraphs which are not applicable can be
deleted). Italics denote directions for completing the Final Terms. However, such numbering may change
where individual paragraphs or sub-paragraphs are removed.]

References herein to numbered Conditions are to the terms and conditions of the relevant series of
Securities and words and expressions defined in such terms and conditions shall bear the same meaning
in these Final Terms in so far as they relate to such series of Securities, save as where otherwise expressly
provided.

[When completing any final terms consideration should be given as to whether such terms or information
constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the Base
Prospectus under Article 23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation.]

These Final Terms relate to the series of Securities as set out in "Specific Provisions for each Series"
below. References herein to "Securities" shall be deemed to be references to the relevant Securities that
are the subject of these Final Terms and references to "Security" shall be construed accordingly.

SPECIFIC PROVISIONS FOR EACH SERIES

SERIES [TRANCHE  NO.OF NO OF ISIN/[ ] [COMMON  [CFI [FISN [TYPE OF
NUMBER NUMBER SECURITIES SECURITIES CODE INDEX
ISSUED
(@ (9] [ (9] (9] [9] (9] d d
[®] (9] (9] (9] g [®] g (@] (@]
SERIES TRADING ISSUE PRICE’ [[SCHEDULED]] [RELEVANT [PARITY SPECIFIED [Insert other
NUMBER METHOD PER SECURITY REDEMPTION JURISDICTION SECURITIES identifier code or
DATE PURSUANT TO variable]
SECTION
871(m)°
(9] [Nominal] [Units] [[insert currency] [ [®] (9] [®] [Yes/No] [®]
©])/[[®]% of the
Notional Amount]
(9] [[insert currency] [ ['®] (9] [®] [Yes/No] [®]
©])/[[®]% of the

Notional Amount]

(Where the Final Terms cover more than one series of Securities, the table above should be completed
for all variables which will differ across the different series of Securities. If a column is not relevant it
may be deleted and the table may be presented as a single set of rows, rather than split into two sections,
as above. The relevant line item for any such variable in the General Provisions below should include
the following language: "See the Specific Provisions for each Series above™.)

Include in respect of issues of Securities that are listed.
For Preference Share Certificates, the Issue Price is required to be par.

8 Specify "Yes" if the Securities are Specified Securities for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986.
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GENERAL PROVISIONS

The following terms apply to each series of Securities:

1.

2.

[Issuer:
[Guarantor:
Trade Date:

Issue Date [and Interest Commencement
Date] °:

Consolidation:

Type of Securities:

Form of Securities:

Business Day Centre(s):

[Settlement:

Rounding Convention for Cash Settlement
Amount:

In the case of Certificates which bear interest.

BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]

BNP Paribas]

[specify]

[specify]

(N.B. For Preference Share Certificates, the

relevant Preference Shares should be in issue on or
prior to the Issue Date)

The Securities are to be consolidated and form a
single series with the [insert title of relevant series
of Securities] issued on [insert issue date]/[Not
applicable]

@) Certificates

(b) The Securities are [Index Securities/Share
Securities/Commodity  Securities/Fund
Securities/Preference Share

Certificates/Hybrid Securities].

[The provisions of Annex 2 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Index Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 3 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Share Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 4 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Commaodity Securities) shall apply.]
[The provisions of Annex 5 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Fund Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 6 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Preference Share Certificates) shall

apply.]

[Unwind Costs: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]]
[(N.B. Not applicable for Preference Share
Certificates)]

[Waiver of Set-Off: Not applicable]

[Clearing System Global Security]/[Registered
Global Security]

The applicable Business Day Centre[s] for the
purposes of the definition of “"Business Day" in
Condition 1 [is/are] [®].

Settlement will be by way of cash payment.]

[Rounding Convention 2]/[Not applicable]
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1.

18.

19.
PRODUCT SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

20.

Final Payout

[SPS Payouts

[Exchange Rate

Settlement Currency:

Syndication:

Minimum Trading Size:

Principal Security Agent:

Registrar:

Calculation Agent:

[Governing law:

Hybrid Securities:

1

[Preference Share Certificate Condition 6 applies]

[Reverse Convertible Securities:
[Reverse Convertible Standard Securities:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Payout Conditions.]]]

[Auto-Callable Products:
[Autocall Securities:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Payout Conditions.]]

[Autocall One Touch Securities:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Payout Conditions.]]]

[Indexation Products:
[Certi Plus: Generic Knock-out Securities:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Conditions.]]]

Not applicable.]

The settlement currency for the payment of the
Cash Settlement Amount is [@].

The Securities will be distributed on a [non-
]syndicated basis.

[if syndicated, specify names of the Managers]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

[BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg
Branch]/ [BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.]/[specify

other]*°

[BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg
Branch] [address][Not applicable]*!

[BNP Paribas]/[BNP Paribas Arbitrage
S.N.C.}/[specify other][address].

English law]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
[If applicable:

Any local agent shall be specified in Part B of the Final Terms.

Include in the case of Registered Securities.
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21.

(@) The Securities are linked to each of the
types of Underlying Reference (each a
"Type of Underlying Reference") set out
in the table below. The terms and
conditions of the Securities will be
construed on the basis that in respect of
each separate Type of Underlying
Reference, the relevant terms applicable to
each such separate Type of Underlying
Reference will apply, as the context
admits, separately and independently in
respect of the relevant Type of Underlying
Reference[, subject as provided in (b)
below].

[Include each Type of Underlying
Reference]

Type of Underlying Reference
[®] [See item [®]]
[®] [See item [®]]
[®] [See item [®]]

(b) Hybrid Business Day [Applicable/Not
applicable]

[if applicable:

"Hybrid Business Day" means a day
which is a Scheduled Trading Day (as
defined in the relevant Annex and
completed in the applicable Final Terms)
for each Type of Underlying Reference
specified in the applicable Final Terms

[If Hybrid Business Day is applicable,
each date for valuation (e.g. valuation
date, averaging date, observation date
etc.) which is the subject of the Hybrid
Securities provisions should be expressed
to be "[ @] or if that is not a Hybrid
Business Day the immediately
[succeeding/preceding] Hybrid Business

Day"]]
Index Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]
@) Index/Basket of Indices/Index [specify name of Index/Indices]
Sponsor(s):

[specify name of Index Sponsor(s)]
[The [®] Index is a [Component Security]/[Multi-
Exchange] Index.]*?

(b) Index Currency: [specify]

Specify each Component Security Index and/or Multi-Exchange Index (if any).
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22.

(c) Exchange(s):
(d) Related Exchange(s):

(e) Exchange Business Day:

f Scheduled Trading Day:

(9) Weighting:

(h) Settlement Price:

0] Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

{)) Valuation Time:

(k) Index Correction Period:

Share Securities:

@ Share(s)/Share Company/Basket
Company/GDR/ADR:

[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[All Exchanges]/[Not applicable]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index
Basis]/[Not applicable]

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index
Basis]/[Not applicable]

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

(must match election made for Exchange Business
Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Indices to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [®]. Each such Weighting shall
be subject to adjustment in accordance with Annex
2]/[specify other].]/[Not applicable] (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Securities relating to a
Basket of Indices)

[Official ~ opening  level]/[Official  closing
level]/[level at the Valuation Time]

[As defined in Condition 1]/[[specify] Scheduled
Trading Days]/[Not applicable]

[Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the
relevant time on the relevant Settlement Price Date
or Averaging Date, as the case may be, is [the
Valuation Time] each as defined in Condition 1.]

[specify].]

(N.B. If no Valuation Time is specified, the
Valuation Time will be the Scheduled Closing Time
as defined in Condition 1).

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(In the case of Hybrid Securities which are Share
Securities, repeat sub-paragraphs (a) to (t) below

for Share Securities)

[insert type of Share(s) and Share Company/Basket
Companies]

[GDR/ADR applicable]
[Insert details of GDR/ADR]™

[Stapled Shares applicable]

Specify each GDR or ADR (if any). In the case of Share Securities relating to a GDR/ADR, complete Share Securities Final Terms as

applicable for GDR/ADR reference asset(s).
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[Insert details of Stapled Shares and Stapled Share
Constituents]*

(b) Relative Performance Basket: [Not applicable/specify]

(c) Share Currency: [specify]

(d) ISIN of Share(s): [specify]

(e) Exchange(s): [specify]

f Related Exchange(s): [specify]/[All Exchanges]

(9) Exchange Business Day: [Single Share Basis/All Shares Basis/Per Share
Basis]

(h) Scheduled Trading Day: LSin_gie Share Basis/All Shares Basis/Per Share

asis

(must match election made for Exchange Business
Day)

() Weighting: [The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Shares to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [®]. Each such Weighting shall
be subject to adjustment [in accordance with Annex
3/[specify other].]/[Not applicable] (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Securities relating to a

Basket of Shares)]
{)) Settlement Price: [Official closing price]/[price at the Valuation
Time]]
(k) Specified Maximum Days of [As defined in Condition 1]/[[specify] Scheduled
Disruption: Trading Days].
() Valuation Time: [Continuous monitoring] / [specify other] and the

relevant time on the relevant Settlement Price Date
or Averaging Date, as the case may be, is the
Scheduled Closing Time as defined in Condition 1.]
[specify] (N.B. If no Valuation Time is specified, the
Valuation Time will be the Scheduled Closing Time
as defined in Condition 1)]

(m) Share Correction Period [As per Conditions/specify]

(n) [Dividend Payment: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(0) Listing Change: [Applicable/Not applicable]

(p) Listing Suspension: [Applicable/Not applicable]

(a) liquidity: [Applicable/Not applicable]

) Tender Offer: [Applicable/Not applicable]*®
(s) [CSR Event: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

“ Specify each Stapled Share Constituent comprising the Stapled Shares. In the case of Share Securities relating to Stapled Shares,

complete Share Securities Final Terms as applicable for Stapled Shares reference asset(s).

’ Only to be disapplied for Tokyo EQD Securities.
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(®)

Hedging Liquidity Event:

23.  Commodity Securities:

(@)

(b)
(©
(d)
()

()
(9)
(h)
(i)
@)
(k)
0

(m)

(n)

(0)

Commodity/Commaodities/
Commodity  Index/Commaodity
Indices:

Pricing Date(s):
Initial Pricing Date:
Final Pricing Date:

Commodity Reference Price:

Delivery Date:

Nearby Month:

Specified Price:

Exchange:

Disruption Fallback(s):

Valuation Time:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

Weighting:

Rolling Futures Contract
Securities:

Futures Rollover [Date/Period]:

24. Fund Securities:

@) Fund/Fund Basket/Fund
Index/Fund Indices:
6 Delete if using automated Commodity Reference Prices.

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Maximum Hedging Liquidity Level: [[ ®] per
cent.]/[As per Conditions]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
[specify Commaodity/Commodities/Commodity

Index/Commaoadity Indices]

[The Sponsor[s] of the Commodity [Index/Indices]
[is/are] [®]]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

The Price Source is/are [®]¢
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[As per Conditions]

[Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the
relevant time on [insert relevant date(s)].]/[specify]

[specify] [[®] Commodity Business Days]'’ /[As
per Conditions]

[The Weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the  Commodity  Basket s
[specify]]/[Not applicable]

[Yes/No]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[Dislocation Event: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]
Dislocation Level: [specify]/[As per Conditions]]
[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify Fund/Fund Basket/Fund Index/Fund
Indices]

w Only applicable in respect of Commodity Securities linked to a single Commaodity.
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(b)
(©
(d)

()
®
(9)
(h)

0)
(k)
0
(m)
(n)

(0)
(p)

(a)
n
(s)

(®)
(u)

Fund Share(s):
Fund Documents:

Fund Business Day:

Maximum Days of Disruption:
Fund Service Provider:
Calculation Date(s):

Initial Calculation Date:

Final Calculation Date:
Hedging Date:

AUM Level:

NAYV Trigger Percentage:
NAV Trigger Period:

Number
Days:

Basket Trigger Level:

Termination Amount:

Simple Interest Spread:
Termination Date:

Delayed Redemption

Occurrence of an Extraordinary

Fund Event:

Delayed Payment Cut-off Date:

[Weighting:

of NAV Publication

[The Fund Index Sponsor[s] of the Fund
[Index/Indices] [is/are] [®]]

[Strike Rate: [[specify set exchange rate],
expressed as the number of units (or part units) of
the Subject Currency for which one unit of the Base
Currency can be exchanged]]

[Fund Index Currency: [specify]]

[The [®] Fund is a Mutual Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Hedge Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Private Equity Fund]

[SC/FM Fund Events: Applicable]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[All Fund Share Basis/Per Fund Share Basis/Single
Fund Share Basis]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[Non-
Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[Specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

The Weighting to be applied to each Fund Share
comprising the Fund Basket is [specify]]

83



25.

26.

27.

v)

[Protected Amount:

Preference Share Certificates:

@) Preference Share:

Preference  Share
Valuation Date:

(b)

Redemption
Illegality (Security Condition 7.1) and

Force Majeure (Security Condition 7.2):

Additional Disruption Events and Optional
Additional Disruption Events:

[If Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Fund Event and Principal Protected
Termination Amount are applicable: [specify] per
cent. of the Notional Amount]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[insert class, series number, ISIN and description
of preference shares]

[specify]
Illegality: redemption in accordance with Security
Condition 7.1

Force Majeure: redemption in accordance with
Security Condition 7.2

@) Additional Disruption Events:
[Applicable/Not applicable]/[[Change in
Law/Hedging Disruption] does not apply
to the Securities]

[Change in Law — Hedge Maintenance Cost: Not
applicable]

(b) [The following Optional Additional

Disruption Events apply to the Securities:
(Specify each of the following which
applies. N.B. Optional Additional
Disruption Events are applicable to

certain Index Securities, Share Securities
and Commodity Securities)

[Not applicable]
[Administrator/Benchmark Event]
[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]
[Insolvency Filing]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Share
Securities)

[Loss of Stock Borrow]

[Currency Event]

[Extraordinary External Event]
[Jurisdiction Event

Hedging Arrangements: Not applicable]

[Significant Alteration Event]
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28.

29.

Knock-in Event:18

@) SPS Knock-in Valuation:

(b) Knock-in Level:
(c) Knock-in Period Beginning Date:

(d) Knock-in Period Beginning Date
Day Convention:

(e) Knock-in Determination Period:

f Knock-in Determination Day(s):

(9) Knock-in Period Ending Date:

(h) Knock-in Period Ending Date Day

Convention:
(i) Knock-in Valuation Time:
) Disruption Consequences:

Knock-out Event:1®

19

(c) [The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in
respect of [specify in relation to each
relevant Share/Security] is [®].

(N.B. Only applicable if Loss of Stock
Borrow is applicable)]

[The Initial Stock Loan rate in respect of
[specify in relation to each relevant
Share/Security] is [@®].

(N.B. Only applicable if Increased Cost of
Stock Borrow is applicable)]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
[If applicable:

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal
to"/"less than"/"less than or equal to"/"within"]]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

Applicable

[If applicable insert relevant provisions from
Conditions]

[specify]
[specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Payout Condition 5.3]
[specify]/[Each  [Scheduled  Trading Day/

Commodity Business Day] in the Knock-in
Determination Period]

[specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable]
[specify/See definition in Payout Condition

5.3)/[Valuation Time]/[Any time on a Knock-in
Determination Day]/[Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[If applicable:

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities and Commodity Securities.

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities and Commodity Securities.
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30.

(@)

(b)
(©

(d)

()

®

)
(h)

)

SPS Knock-out Valuation:

Knock-out Level:

Knock-out Period Beginning

Date:

Knock-out Period Beginning Date
Day Convention:

Knock-out Determination Period:

Knock-out Determination Day(s):

Knock-out Period Ending Date:

Knock-out Period Ending Date
Day Convention:

Knock-out Valuation Time:

Disruption Consequences:

VALUATION AND REDEMPTION

(@)

(b)

Notional Amount of each
Certificate:

Interest:

(i)
(i)

Interest Period(s):

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal
to"/"less than"/"less than or equal
to"]/["within"]/[[Knock-out Corridor Range]]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

Applicable

[If applicable insert relevant provisions from
Conditions]

[specify]
[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Payout Condition 5.3]
[specify]/[Each  [Scheduled  Trading Day/

Commodity Business Day] in the Knock-out
Determination Period]

[specify]
[Not applicable/Applicable]
[specify]/[See definition in Payout Condition 5.3]

[Any time on a Knock-out Determination
Day]/[Valuation Time]/[Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[[currency][amount]/[Not applicable]].
[Redenomination: Not applicable]

[FX Settlement Disruption Event Determination:
Applicable] [(N.B. Must not be specified as
applicable for Preference Share Certificates)]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs under this paragraph)

[insert relevant provisions from Conditions]

[Linked Interest: [Digital Coupon]/[Snowball
Digital Coupon] (see items [specify] below)]

[specify]

Interest ~ Period  End [specify]
Date(s):
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(©

(d)

(iii)

Business Day Convention [Following/Modified
for Interest Period End Following/Preceding/FRN/None/Not applicable]
Date(s):

(iv) Interest Payment Date(s): [specify]
(v) Business Day Convention [Following/Modified
for Interest  Payment Following/Preceding/FRN/None/Not applicable]
Date(s):
(If a Business Day Convention is specified for
Interest Period End Date(s), unless Interest
Payment Date(s) is (are) expressed to be a number
of Business Days after the relevant Interest Period
End Final Date, Interest Payment Date(s) must be
subject to the same Business Day Convention)
(vi) Party  responsible  for [specify]
calculating the Rate(s) of
Interest and  Interest
Amount(s) (if not the
Calculation Agent):
(vii) Minimum Interest Rate:  [[specify] per cent. per annum/As per the
Conditions]
(viii)  Maximum Interest Rate: [[specify] per cent. per annum/Not applicable]
(ix) Day Count Fraction: [specify]/[unadjusted]
x) Accrual to Redemption:  [Applicable/Not applicable]
(xi) Rate of Interest: Linked Interest
(xii) Coupon Rate: [Applicable/Not applicable]
(Include one or more of [Digital Coupon applicable:
the following if
applicable): [Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other
related provisions from Payout Conditions.]]
[Snowball Digital Coupon applicable:
[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other
related provisions from Payout Conditions.]]
[Rate: [[®] per cent. [per annum]
(If more than one fixed rate is to be determined,
specify each such rate)]
Linked Interest Certificates: [Applicable — see [Index/Share/Commodity/Fund]
Linked Interest Certificates below/Not applicable]
Index Linked [Interest] [Applicable/Not applicable]

Certificates:

(i)

Index/Basket of [Specify name of Index/Indices]
Indices/Index
Sponsor(s): [specify name of Index Sponsor(s)]
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
(x)
(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Averaging:

[Interest] Valuation
Time:

[Interest] Valuation
Date(s):

Index Correction Period

Observation Dates:

Observation Period:

Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

Exchange(s):
Related Exchange(s):

Exchange Business Day:

Scheduled Trading Day:

Settlement Price:

Weighting:

20

[The [®] Index is a [Component Security]/[Multi-
Exchange] Index]?°

Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The
Averaging Dates are [@®].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted
Day [Omission/  Postponement/  Modified
Postponement] [the provisions of Annex 2] will

apply.]
[specify]

[specify]

[As per Conditions/specify]
[specify]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a
Disrupted Day [Omission/  Postponement/
Modified Postponement] [the provisions of Annex
2] will apply.] [Observation Day Disruption
Consequences are not applicable.]

[specify]

[[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] [Scheduled
Trading Days]]

[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[All Exchanges]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index
Basis]

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index
Basis]

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

(must match election made for Exchange Business
Day)

[Official  opening level]/[Official  closing
level]/[level at the Valuation Time]

[The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Indices to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [®]. Each such Weighting shall
be subject to adjustment in accordance with Annex
2 [specify other]. (N.B. Only applicable in relation
to Securities relating to a Basket of Indices)/Not
applicable]

Specify each Component Security Index and/or Multi-Exchange Index (if any).
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(e) Share Linked [Interest]
Certificates:

M Share(s)/Share
Company/Basket
Company/GDR/ADR:

(ii) Relative  Performance
Basket:

(iii) Averaging:

(iv) [Interest] Valuation
Time:

(v) [Interest] Valuation
Date(s):

(vi) Observation Dates:

(vii) Observation Period:

(viii)  Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

(ix) Exchange(s):
(x) Related Exchange(s):

(xi) Exchange Business Day:

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(In the case of Hybrid Securities which are Share
Securities, repeat sub-paragraphs (i) to (xxii)
below for Share Securities)

[insert type of Share(s) and Share Company/Basket
Companies]

[ISIN][Screen Page][Exchange Code]
[GDR/ADR applicable]

[insert GDR/ADR]%

[Stapled Shares applicable]

[Insert details of Stapled Shares and Stapled Share
Constituents]®

[Not applicable/specify]]
Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The
Averaging Dates are [®].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted

Day [Omission/Postponement/Modified
Postponement] will apply.]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a
Disrupted Day [Omission/Postponement/Modified
Postponement] will apply.] [Observation Day
Disruption Consequences are not applicable.]

[specify]

[[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] [Scheduled
Trading Days]]

[specify]
[specify]/[All Exchanges]

[Single Share Basis/All Shares Basis/Per Share
Basis]

In the case of Share Linked Interest Certificates relating to a GDR/ADR, complete Share Linked Interest Certificates Final Terms as

applicable for GDR/ADR references asset(s).

Specify each Stapled Share Constituent comprising the Stapled Shares. In the case of Share Securities relating to Stapled Shares,
complete Share Securities Final Terms as applicable for Stapled Shares reference asset(s).
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)
(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)
(xix)
(xx)
(xxi)

(xxii)

) Commodity Linked

Scheduled Trading Day:

Settlement Price:

Weighting:

Share Correction Period
[Dividend Payment:
Listing Change:

Listing Suspension:
Iliquidity:

Tender Offer:

[CSR Event:

Hedging
Event:

Liquidity

[Interest]

Certificates:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Commodity/
Commodities/Commodit
y Index/Commodity
Indices:

[Interest]
Date(s):

Pricing
Initial [Interest] Pricing
Date:

Final [Interest] Pricing
Date:

Commodity  Reference
Price:

Delivery Date:

24

Only to be disapplied for Tokyo EQD Securities.

Delete if using automated Commaodity Reference Prices

[Single Share Basis/All Shares Basis/Per Share
Basis]

(must match election made for Exchange Business
Day)

[Official closing price] /[price at the Valuation
Time]

[The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Shares to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [specify]. Each such Weighting
shall be subject to adjustment in accordance with
Annex 3/[specify other].]/[Not Applicable] (N.B.
Only applicable in relation to Securities relating to
a Basket of Shares)

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]?

[Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Maximum Hedging Liquidity Level: [[ ®] per
cent.]/[As per Conditions]]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify Commaodity/Commodities/Commodity
Index/Commaodity Indices] [The Sponsor[s] of the
Commodity Index/Indices is [®]]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]
The Price Source is/are [®]%

[specify]/[Not applicable]
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(9)

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Fund

Nearby Month:
Specified Price:
Exchange:

Disruption Fallback(s):
[Interest] Valuation
Time:

Specified Maximum

Days of Disruption:
Weighting:

Rolling Futures Contract
Securities:

Futures Rollover

[Date/Period]:

Linked [Interest]

Certificates:

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Fund/Fund Basket/Fund
Index/Fund Indices:

Fund Share(s):

Fund Documents:

Fund Business Day:
Maximum  Days of
Disruption:

Fund Service Provider:

[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify]?®

[The Weighting to be applied to each item
comprising  the  Commodity  Basket s
[specify]]/[Not applicable]

[Yes/No]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[Dislocation Event: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]
Dislocation Level: [specify]/[As per Conditions]]

[Not applicable]/[specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable]
[specify Fund/Fund Basket/Fund Index/Fund

Indices]

[The Fund Index Sponsor[s] of the Fund
[Index/Indices] [is/are] [®]]

[Fund Index Currency: [specify]]

[The [@®] Fund is a Mutual Fund]

[The [®@] Fund is a Hedge Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Private Equity Fund]
[SC/FM Fund Events: Applicable]
[specify]

[As per Conditions][specify]

[All Fund share Basis] [Per Fund share
Basis][Single Fund share Basis]

[As per Conditions] [specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

Only applicable in respect of Commodity Securities linked to a single Commaodity.
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(h)

(vii)

(viii)
(ix)
()
(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)
(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

[Interest] Valuation
Date:

Calculation Date(s):
Initial Calculation Date:
Final Calculation Date:
Hedging Date:

AUM Level:

NAV Trigger
Percentage:

NAV Trigger Period:

Number of NAV
Publication Days:

Basket Trigger Level:

Termination Amount:

Simple Interest Spread:
Termination Date:

Weighting:

Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Fund
Event:

Delayed Payment Cut-
off Date:

[Protected Amount:

[Issuer Call Option:]

(i)

(i)

Optional ~ Redemption
Date(s):

Optional ~ Redemption
Valuation Date(s):

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[Non-
Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[The Weighting to be applied to each Fund Share
comprising the Fund/Fund Basket is [specify]]/[Not
applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[If Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Fund Event and Principal Protected
Termination Amount are applicable: [specify] per
cent. of the Notional Amount]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[specify]

[The day falling [five] Business Days following the
Optional Redemption Valuation Date]

[specify]

[The date designated as the Optional Redemption
Valuation Date by the Issuer in the notice of
redemption, being the day falling [15] Business
Days after the notice referred to in Payout
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(iii) Optional ~ Redemption
Amount(s):

(iv) Minimum Notice Period:

(v) Maximum Notice
Period:

(i) [Automatic Early Redemption:®

(i Automatic Early
Redemption Event:

(ii) Automatic Early
Redemption Payoult:

(iii) Automatic Early
Redemption Date(s):

(iv) SPS AER Valuation:

(v) Automatic Early
Redemption Level:

(vi) Automatic Early
Redemption Percentage:

(vii) AER Exit Rate:

(viii)  Automatic Early

Redemption  Valuation
Date(s)/Period(s):

{)) [Strike Date:]

26

Condition 4 has been delivered to the Holders in
accordance with Security Condition 10]

[NA x [®] per cent.]

[specify]
[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

Single Standard Automatic Early Redemption:
"greater than"/"greater than or equal to"/"less
than"/"less than or equal to"

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Conditions.]

[SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payoult:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and related
provisions from Payout Conditions]]

[specify]

Applicable:
[SPS AER Value:

[insert relevant value(s) and related provisions
from Payout Conditions]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[[®] per cent.]/[Not applicable]

[Not applicable]

[AER Rate]

[Insert relevant provisions from Conditions]
[AER CSN Rate]

[Insert relevant provisions from Conditions]

[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities and Commodity Securities.
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32.

(k)
0]
(m)

(n)

(0)
(p)

[Strike Price:]
[Redemption Valuation Date:]

[Averaging:]

[Observation Dates:]

[Observation Period:]

Identification information  of
Holders as provided by Condition
20:

DISTRIBUTION AND U.S. SALES
ELIGIBILITY

U.S. Selling Restrictions:

Additional U.S. Federal income tax
considerations:

[specify] / [see item [®] above] / [Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the
Securities. [The Averaging Dates are [specify].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted
Day [Omission/Postponement/Modified
Postponement] (as defined in Condition 18) will
apply.] (N.B. Not applicable to Commodity
Securities)

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a
Disrupted Day [Omission/Postponement/Modified
Postponement] will apply.] [Observation Day
Disruption Consequences are not applicable.] (N.B.
Not applicable to Commodity Securities)

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Applicable / Not applicable]

The Securities may not be legally or beneficially
owned by or transferred to any U.S. person at any
time

[The Securities are [not] Specified Securities for the
purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986.] [The Securities may be
Specified Securities for the purpose of Section
871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as stated in "Specific Provisions for each Series"
above. If the Securities are Specified Securities,
then the following provisions will apply.]
[Additional information regarding the application
of Section 871(m) to the Securities will be available
at [give name(s) and address(es) of Issuer contact].
[The Issuer will arrange for withholding under
Section 871(m) to be imposed on any dividend
equivalent payment at a rate of 30 per cent.]]

(If the Securities are Specified Securities, include
the "Additional information" sentence and provide
the appropriate contact information at the Issuer.
N.B. Include the option above, completed as
appropriate, where (a) the Securities do not
reference any U.S. equity or any index that contains
any component U.S. equity or otherwise provide
direct or indirect exposure to U.S. equities or (b)
the Section 871(m) determination has been made by
the time the Final Terms are finalised (in which
case, the determination will have been made either
(i) on the pricing date, if this falls 14 days or fewer
before the issue date or (ii) on the issue date, if the
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pricing date falls more than 14 days before the
issue date. Otherwise, include the following option,
completed as appropriate:

[As at the date of these Final Terms, the Issuer has
not determined whether the Securities are Specified
Securities for purposes of Section 871(m) of the
U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986; however,
indicatively it considers that they will [not] be
Specified Securities for these purposes. This is
indicative information only subject to change
and if the Issuer's final determination is
different then it will give notice of such
determination. Please contact [give name(s) and
address(es) of Issuer contact] for further
information regarding the application of Section
871(m) to the Securities.]]

(The Securities will not be Specified Securities if
they (i) are issued prior to 1 January 2023 and
provide a return that differs significantly from the
return on an investment in the underlying (i.e. they
are not "delta-one™ securities for U.S. tax
purposes) or (ii) do not reference any U.S. equity
or any index that contains any component U.S.
equity or otherwise provide direct or indirect
exposure to U.S. equities. If the Securities reference
a U.S. equity or an index that contains a component
U.S. equity or otherwise provide direct or indirect
exposure to U.S. equities and (i) are issued prior to
1 January 2023 and provide a return that does not
differ significantly from the return on an investment
in the underlying, or (ii) are issued on or after 1
January 2023, further analysis would be required.)

[Payments on the Specified Securities are
calculated by reference to [Net Dividends/Net Total
Returns]. By purchasing a Specified Security, the
parties agree that in calculating the relevant
payment amount the Issuer has withheld, and the
purchaser is deemed to have received 30 per cent.
of any dividend equivalent payments (as defined in
Section 871(m) of the Code) in respect of the
relevant [U.S. securities/U.S. dividend paying
index components]. The Issuer will not pay any
additional amounts to the holder on account of the
Section 871(m) amount deemed withheld.

[For this purpose, "Net Dividends" means the
dividends paid by an issuer of a security net of 30
per cent. U.S. federal withholding tax.]

[For this purpose "Net Total Returns" means the
net total return of the U.S. source dividend paying
components, as calculated by the Index Sponsor, of
an index that reinvests U.S. source dividends paid
by an issuer of a security that is a component of the
index net of 30 per cent. U.S. withholding tax on
such U.S. source dividends.]]
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33.  TEFRA C or TEFRA Not Applicable:
34.  Non-exempt Offer:

(i) Offer Period:

(ii) Financial intermediaries
granted specific consent
to use the Base
Prospectus in accordance
with the Conditions in it:

(iii) General Consent:

(iv) Other Authorised
Offeror Terms:

35.  Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors:
@) Selling Restriction:
(b) Legend:

36.  Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail

Investors:

[TEFRA C/TEFRA Not Applicable]

[Applicable][Not applicable] (if not applicable,
delete the remaining placeholders of this
paragraph 34 and paragraph 8 of Part B)

[specify date and, if applicable, time] until [and
including] [specify date (and, if applicable, time)
or a formula such as "the Issue Date" or "the date
which falls [ @] Business Days thereafter"][subject
to any early closing]])/[From (and including) the
Issue Date until (and including) the date on which
the Securities are delisted].

[insert names and addresses of financial
intermediaries  receiving  consent  (specific
consent)]

[Not applicable]/[Applicable]

[Not Applicable] [add here any other Authorised
Offeror Terms]

(Authorised Offeror Terms should only be included
here where General Consent is applicable)

[Applicable]/[Not applicable]

[The Securities are only intended to be offered, sold
or otherwise made available to investors via the
Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange].?

[Applicable]/[Not applicable]

(If the Securities clearly do not constitute
"packaged" products or the Securities do constitute
"packaged" products and a key information
document will be prepared in the UK, "Not
Applicable” should be specified. If the Securities
may constitute "packaged" products and no key
information  document will be prepared,
"Applicable" should be specified)

[Applicable]/[Not applicable]

[For the purpose of the Securities the terms specified in these Final Terms are deemed to be incorporated
into the Terms and Conditions of the Securities as amended and/or supplemented by the provisions of
the Additional Terms and Conditions set out in the Annex specified in the Final Terms (the "Conditions")
and shall thereby complete the Conditions for the purpose of the Securities and these Final Terms may
be regarded as evidencing the complete Conditions.]

Responsibility

27

Include if the Securities are intended to be listed and admitted to trading the Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.
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The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms. To the best of the
knowledge of the Issuer, the information contained in these Final Terms is in accordance with the facts
and these Final Terms do not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

[THIRD PARTY INFORMATION

[The information included in [the Annex] (the "[ ®] Information™) consists of extracts from or
summaries of information that is publicly available in respect of [®]. The Issuer confirms that such
information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain from
information published by [®], no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced inaccurate
or misleading.] ]

[Signed on behalf of [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]

As Issuer:

By:

Duly authorised]
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PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

1. Listing and Admission to trading — [De-listing]

[The Securities are unlisted.]/[Application [has been/will be] made to list the Securities on [the Official
List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange] and to admit the Securities for trading on [[the professional
segment of] the Euro MTF] [[with effect from/on or around] [@]].]

[The de-listing of the Securities on the [exchange/market] specified above shall occur on [specify],
subject to any change to such [date/period] by such [exchange/market] or any competent authorities, for
which the Issuer [and the Guarantor] shall under no circumstances be liable].

[Estimate of total expenses related to admission to trading: [®]]%

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to indicate if original Securities are already admitted to

trading)
2. [Ratings

Ratings:

[The Securities to be issued [[have been]/[are expected to be]] rated [insert
details] by [insert credit rating agency name(s)].]

[The Securities have not been rated.]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has
previously been published by the rating provider:

[®]

(The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated to Securities of the
type being issued under the Programme generally or, where the issue has been
specifically rated, that rating.)]]

[[Insert credit rating agency] is established in the United Kingdom and has
applied for registration under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 on credit rating
agencies as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (as
amended, the "UK CRA Regulation"), although notification of the
corresponding registration decision has not yet been confirmed by the
Financial Conduct Authority.]

EITHER [[Insert the legal name of the relevant CRA entity] is established in
the United Kingdom and is registered under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009
on credit rating agencies as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the
EUWA (as amended, the "UK CRA Regulation"). [As such [insert the legal
name of the relevant CRA entity] is included in the list of credit rating agencies
published by the Financial Conduct Authority on its website in accordance
with such UK CRA Regulation]

OR [[Insert the legal name of the relevant CRA entity] is in the United
Kingdom, as the case may be, and has applied for registration under
Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 on credit rating agencies as it forms part of
UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (as amended, the "UK CRA
Regulation™), although notification of the corresponding registration decision
has not yet been provided by the European Securities and Markets Authority
[and [insert the legal name of the relevant CRA entity] is not included in the
list of credit rating agencies published by the Financial Conduct Authority on
its website in accordance with such UK CRA Regulation].]

B Delete if minimum Notional Amount is less than EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as of the Issue Date).
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[Interests of Natural and Legal Persons Involved in the [Issue/Offer]

[Need to include a description of any interest, including conflicting interest, that is material to
the issue/offer, detailing the persons involved and the nature of the interest. May be satisfied by
the inclusion of the following statement]:

"Save [for the fees [of [insert relevant fee disclosure]] payable to [insert name of Authorised
Offeror] and] as discussed[ in the "Potential Conflicts of Interest" paragraph in the "Risk
Factors" section in the Base Prospectus], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the
[issue/offer] of the Securities has an interest material to the [issue/offer]."]

[When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute "significant new factors” and consequently trigger the need for a
supplement to the Base Prospectus under Article 23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation.]

[Reasons for the [Issue/Offer], Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses

€)) Reasons for the [issue/offer]: [See "Use of Proceeds" in the Base Prospectus]/[give
details]

(See "Use of Proceeds™ wording in Base Prospectus.
If reasons for [issue/offer] are different from what is
disclosed in the Base Prospectus, give details.)

(b) Estimated net proceeds: [Up to] [@]

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will
need to split out and present in order of priority. If
proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state
amount and sources of other funding.)

(c) Estimated total expenses: [®] [Include breakdown of expenses]?® ]

Performance of Underlying/Formula/Other Variable and Other Information concerning
the Underlying Reference

[Need to include details of where past and further performance and volatility of the
index/formula/other variables can be obtained and whether or not such information can be
obtained free of charge.]

[Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and if the index is not
composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the information about the index can be
obtained]

[Where the underlying is a security need to include the name of the issuer of the security and
the ISIN (International Security Identification Number) or other such security identification
code]

[The Certificates relate to the Series [ @] Preference shares of the BNP Paribas Synergy Limited
relating to [insert reference asset].

The performance of the Preference Shares depends on the performance of the relevant
underlying asset(s) or basis of reference to which the Preference Shares are linked (the
"Preference Share Underlying"). The Preference Share Underlying is [insert reference asset].
Information on the Preference Share Underlying (including past and further performance and
volatility) is published [free of charge]/[at a cost] on Reuters page [®].

The Preference Share Value will be published on [each] Business Day on [Reuters] page [®].

Not required for debt securities with a denomination per unit of at least EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as of the
Issue Date).
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6.

7.

The lIssuer [intends to provide post-issuance information [specify what information will be
reported and where it can be obtained]] [does not intend to provide post-issuance information].

Operational Information

Relevant Clearing System(s):

If other than Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V.,
Clearstream Banking, S.A., include the
relevant identification number(s):

[N.B. Ensure all relevant entities have been
appointed and formalities complied with in
accordance with the rules and regulations of
the relevant clearing system]

[Index Disclaimer(s)

[e]]

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

[N.B. Ensure all relevant entities have been
appointed and formalities complied with in
accordance with the rules and regulations of
the relevant clearing system]

[Identification number(s):]

[Terms and Conditions of the Non-exempt Offer

[Offer Price:]

[Conditions to which the offer is subject:]

[Description of the application process:]

[Details of the minimum and/or maximum
amount of the application:]

[Description of possibility to reduce
subscriptions and manner for refunding
amounts paid in excess by applicants:]

[Details of the method and time limits for
paying up and delivering the Securities:]

[Manner in and date on which results of the
offer are to be made public:]

100

[Issue Price/Not applicable/specify]
[Not applicable/give details]

[The Issuer will determine the final amount
of Securities issued up to a limit of [@]. The
final amount that are issued on [®] will be
[listed/admitted to trading] on the [Official

List of the Luxembourg  Stock
Exchange]/[specify ~ other  exchange]].
Securities will be allotted subject to

availability in the order of receipt of
investors' applications. The final amount of
the Securities issued will be determined by
the Issuer in light of prevailing market
conditions, and depending on the number of
Securities which have been agreed to be
purchased as of [@].]

[Not applicable/give details]

[Not applicable/give details]

[Not applicable/give details]

[Not applicable/give details]

[Not applicable/give details]



9.

10.

[Procedure for exercise of any right of pre-
emption, negotiability of subscription rights
and treatment of subscription rights not
exercised:]

[Process for notification to applicants of the
amount allotted and indication whether
dealing may begin before notification is
made:]

[Amount of any expenses and taxes charged
to the subscriber or purchaser:]*°

[Not applicable/give details]

[Not applicable/give details]

[Not applicable/give details] [repeat as
necessary or insert necessary information in
a table]

[Series Issue Price | Expenses
Number per included in
Security the  Issue
Price
[®] [®] [®]

[Intermediaries with a firm commitment to act

[Name and address of the entities which
have a firm commitment to act as
intermediaries in  secondary trading,
providing liquidity through bid and offer
rates and a description of the main terms of
their commitment:]

[Placing and Underwriting

[Name(s) and address(es), to the extent
known to the Issuer, of the placers in the
various countries where the offer takes place:

Name and address of the co-ordinator(s) of
the global offer and of single parts of the
offer:3!

Name and address of any paying agents and
depository agents in each country (in
addition to the Principal Security Agent):

Entities agreeing to underwrite the issue on a
firm commitment basis, and entities agreeing
to place the issue without a firm commitment
or under "best efforts" arrangements:*

When the underwriting agreement has been
or will be reached:]

[None/give details (such as the maximum
bid/offer spread of the offer price and the
minimum unit amount per order)]]

[The Authorised Offerors identified in
Paragraph 34 of Part A and identifiable from
the Base Prospectus/None/give details]

[®]

[®]

[®]

[®]

If the Issuer is subject to Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA and/or Regulation
(EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (as amended, the "UK PRIIPs Regulation") such that
it is required to disclose information relating to costs and charges include that information.

Where not all of the issue is underwritten, a statement of the portion not covered.

See "Risk Factors relating to Securities — Potential Conflicts of Interest" in the Base Prospectus for further information.
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11.

12.

[UK Benchmarks Regulation

UK Benchmarks [Applicable: Amounts payable under the Securities are

Regulation: Article 29(2) calculated by reference to [[insert name[s] of

statement on benchmarks: Benchmark[s]]/[the [relevant] Benchmark], which [is/are]
provided by [[insert name[s] of the Administrator[s]]/[the
[relevant] Administrator][, as specified in the table below] (if
more than one, specify in relation to each relevant
Benchmark)].

[As at the date of these Final Terms, [[insert name[s] of the
Administrator[s]] / [the [relevant] Administrator[s]]
[appear[s]]/[[does]/[do] not appear] [, as the case may be,] on
the register of administrators and benchmarks established and
maintained by the United Kingdom Financial Conduct
Authority ("FCA") pursuant to Article 36 of the Benchmarks
Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/1011) as it forms part of
UK domestic law by virtue of the [European (Withdrawal) Act
2018 (as amended)][EUWA] (as amended, the "UK
Benchmarks Regulation™)] [, as specified in the table below].

[As far as the Issuer is aware, [[insert name[s] of
Administrator[s]])/[the [relevant] Administrator] [is/are] not
required to be registered by virtue of Article 2 of the UK
Benchmarks Regulation.]/[the transitional provisions in
Article 51 of the UK Benchmarks Regulation apply, such that
[[insert name[s] of Administrator[s]]/[the [relevant]
Administrator] [is/are] not currently required to obtain
authorisation/registration or, if located outside the United
Kingdom, recognition, endorsement or equivalence)[, as
specified in the table below].] [repeat as necessary or insert
necessary information in a table below]]

[Benchmark | Administrator | Register | Other
Information

[®] (®] (®] (®]

[Not applicable]]

[UK MIFIR product governance / Retail investors, professional investors and ECPs target
market

Solely for the purposes of [the/each] manufacturer's product approval process, the target market
assessment in respect of the Securities has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for
the Securities is retail clients, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No
2017/565 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act
2018 ("EUWA"), and eligible counterparties, as defined in the FCA Handbook Conduct of
Business Sourcebook ("COBS") and professional clients, as defined in Regulation (EU) No
600/2014 on markets in financial instruments as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the
EUWA ("UK MIFIR"); [and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate[,
including investment advice, portfolio management, non-advised sales and pure execution
services]]/[[(ii) all channels for distribution to eligible counterparties and professional clients
are appropriate; and (iii) the following channels for distribution of the Securities to retail clients
are appropriate — [investment advice][,/ and] [portfolio management][,/ and][ non-advised sales
1[and pure execution services][, subject to the distributor's suitability and appropriateness
obligations under COBS, as applicable]]. [Consider any negative target market]. Any person
subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a "distributor") should take into
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consideration the manufacturer[’s/s’] target market assessment; however, a distributor subject
to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance Sourcebook (the "UK
MIFIR Product Governance Rules") is responsible for undertaking its own target market
assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer['s/s']
target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels[, subject to the
distributor's suitability and appropriateness obligations under COBS, as applicable].

103



ANNEX - ISSUE SPECIFIC SUMMARY

[If required, append summary of the Securities]
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PROGRAMME MEMORANDUM

Pages 105 to 133 of this document comprise a programme memorandum (the '"‘Programme
Memorandum®) in respect of Securities for which no prospectus is required to be published under
Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union
(Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, the ""EUWA") and regulations made thereunder (as amended,
the ""UK Prospectus Regulation') (*"Exempt Securities"").

The Programme Memorandum does not constitute a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 8
of the UK Prospectus Regulation and does not form part of the Base Prospectus. The FCA has
neither approved nor reviewed information contained in the Programme Memorandum in
connection with Exempt Securities.

The Programme Memorandum is to be read in conjunction with the following sections of the Base
Prospectus:

Page

OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMMIE .......coiiii ettt 11
RISK FACTORS ...ttt st e e e e e s b e e s s b b e e s s sbee e e s sbbee s 17
INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS ...ttt st sabae e 35
USER'S GUIDE TO THE BASE PROSPECTUS ...ttt ettt 43
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ... .ottt ettt ettt et s st e e saaee s 47
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION ....ocviieiiie ettt 48
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE ........ooooiviieieeiee e 49
HOW THE RETURN ON YOUR INVESTMENT IS CALCULATED ......covevveeveieeeee, 56
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES ......oooiiiiee e 134
ANNEX 1 Additional Terms and Conditions for Payouts ..........c.cccccvveviveiviie e 173
ANNEX 2 Additional Terms and Conditions for Index SECUrities .........ccceevvvvveeivieeeeiinnenn. 191
ANNEX 3 Additional Terms and Conditions for Share SECUrItieS ..........cccceevvvvvreiiiveeeevinneen. 199
ANNEX 4 Additional Terms and Conditions for Commaodity Securities ..........ccccccevvverunnee. 213
ANNEX 5 Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund Securities ..........ccocevevvvveeiiienee i, 221
ANNEX 6 Additional Terms and Conditions for Preference Share Certificates................... 236
DESCRIPTION OF THE PREFERENCE SHARE ISSUER AND THE PREFERENCE
SHARES ... oo ettt et e et e e ettt e s e e e e e e e e e ea it e e s e — e e e e b aresaaareeraares 240
USE OF PROCEEDS ... ..ottt ettt st e s et e e et e e sttt e e s ettt e e s eteeeessaaeeas 242
FORM OF THE GUARANTEE ..ottt e e 243
FORM OF THE SECURITIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et e e eaan s saan e e s eaaee s 247
DESCRIPTION OF BNPP B.V. ...ttt ettt ettt 248
DESCRIPTION OF BNPP ...ttt ettt ettt s eatan e 251
BOOK-ENTRY CLEARANCE SYSTEMS ...ttt 252
TAXATION Lot e e st e e e s et b e e e e e b e e e s s bt e e s s abbeeessabeessssbbaeesssbaneens 253
OFFERING AND SALE ...ttt et e s eba e e eaees 269
GENERAL INFORMATION ..ottt sttt sttt s evt e s 281
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT .ottt ettt et e st e e s eae e e rerae e e s earee s 292
INDEX OF DEFINED TERMS ..ottt ettt et e st e e et e e st e e s sanenessnane e 293

Each of the above sections of the Base Prospectus shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference herein
and, for the purposes of Exempt Securities, shall be deemed amended as follows, in each case, to the
extent applicable:

@ any reference therein to "Final Terms" will be deemed to be a reference to "Pricing Supplement™,
and

(b) any reference therein to "Base Prospectus" will be deemed to be a reference to "Programme
Memorandum".

Any supplement(s) to the Base Prospectus published after the date hereof shall be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into this Programme Memorandum.

This Programme Memorandum has been approved by the Luxembourg Stock Exchange as a prospectus
for the purposes of Part IV of the Luxembourg Act dated 16 July 2019 on prospectuses for securities, as
amended (the "Prospectus Act") for Securities (including Exempt Securities) issued under the
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Programme to be admitted to the Official List and admitted to trading on the Euro MTF Market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the "Euro MTF") (including the professional segment of the Euro MTF)
during the twelve-month period after the date of approval by the Luxembourg Stock Exchange in respect
of this Programme Memorandum. This Programme Memorandum also constitutes a base listing
particulars for the purpose of the Prospectus Act. The Euro MTF is neither a "regulated market" for the
purposes of Directive 2014/65/EU on markets in financial instruments, as amended, nor a "UK regulated
market" for the purposes of UK MiFIR.

References in this Programme Memorandum to Securities being "listed” (and all related references) shall
mean that such Securities have been listed and admitted to trading on the Euro MTF or on such other or
further stock exchange(s) as the Issuer may decide. The Issuer may also issue unlisted Securities. The
applicable Pricing Supplement (as defined below) will specify whether or not Securities are to be listed
and admitted to trading and, if so, the relevant exchange(s).

The specific terms of each issuance of Exempt Securities, such as the aggregate nominal amount or
number, the type of the Securities, the issue date, the issue price, the underlying asset(s) to which the
Securities are linked, the redemption date, the applicable Conditions, the exchange on which the
Securities will be listed (if any) and certain other terms relating to the Securities (including any terms
and conditions not contained in Programme Memorandum) will be set out in a pricing supplement
document (the "Pricing Supplement"). In respect of each tranche of Exempt Securities to be admitted
to trading on the Euro MTF, the applicable Pricing Supplement will be delivered to the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange on or before the date of issue of the Exempt Securities of the relevant tranche and
published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu). The Pricing Supplement
in respect of each issuance of Exempt Securities will be available from the specified office of the
Principal Security Agent.

The contractual terms of any particular issuance of Securities will comprise the terms set out herein under
the section entitled "Terms and Conditions of the Securities" (the "Security Conditions" or the
"Conditions"), as completed by a separate Pricing Supplement, which is specific to that issuance of
Securities. Capitalised terms used in this Programme Memorandum shall, unless otherwise defined, have
the meanings set forth in the Conditions.

This Programme Memorandum is valid for one year from the date hereof and may be supplemented from
time to time at the absolute discretion of the Issuer. This Programme Memorandum, any supplement(s)
to the Programme Memorandum and any supplement(s) to the Base Prospectus (which is deemed
incorporated by reference into this Programme Memorandum) are published on the website of BNPP
(https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/public/LegalDocs.aspx).

Guarantee

The Securities are unsecured and will be guaranteed by BNPP (the "Guarantor™) pursuant to a Deed of
Guarantee (the "Guarantee"), the form of which is set out herein.

Substitution of the Issuer or Guarantor

Each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP has a right of substitution as set out herein. In the event that either BNPP
B.V. or BNPP exercises its right of substitution, a supplement to the Base Prospectus (which is deemed
incorporated by reference into this Programme Memorandum) will be published on the website of BNPP
(https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/public/LegalDocs.aspx).

Risk factors

Prospective purchasers of Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant
Securities and the extent of their exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the relevant
Securities as an investment in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition. Securities are
complex financial instruments and involve a high degree of risk and potential investors should be
prepared to sustain a total loss of the purchase price of their Securities. There are significant risks
associated with holding Securities, including risks in relation to the circumstances in which Securities
may be written down or converted to ordinary shares and the implications on prospective purchasers of
Securities (such as a substantial loss). The circumstances in which such prospective purchasers may
suffer loss as a result of holding Securities are difficult to predict and the quantum of any loss incurred
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by investors in such circumstances is also highly uncertain. For more information, see the section entitled
"Risk Factors" herein.

The Securities and the Guarantee have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or any other applicable state securities laws
and trading in the Securities has not been approved by the United States Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (the "CFTC") under the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended (the
"Commodity Exchange Act™). The Issuer has not been registered as an investment company pursuant to
the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company Act"). The
Securities are being offered and sold in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act ("Regulation
S"). No Securities, or interests therein, may at any time be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged,
exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, persons that are (i) a"U.S. person” as defined in Regulation S; or (ii) a person other
than a "Non-United States person" as defined in Rule 4.7 under the Commodity Exchange Act; or (iii) a
"U.S. person" as defined (a) in the Interpretive Guidance and Policy Statement Regarding Compliance
with Certain Swap Regulations promulgated by the CFTC or (b) the final rule relating to Cross-Border
Application of the Registration Thresholds and Certain Requirements Applicable to Swap Dealers and
Major Swap Participants promulgated by the CFTC, in each case as amended, modified or supplemented
from time to time, pursuant to the Commodity Exchange Act; or (iv) any other "U.S. person™ as such
term may be defined in Regulation S or in regulations or guidance adopted under the Commodity
Exchange Act (each such person, a "U.S. person™) Any offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge, exercise,
redemption, transfer or delivery made, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, a U.S. person will not be recognised. No Securities may be legally or beneficially
owned at any time by any U.S. person and accordingly Securities will only be offered and sold outside
the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on Regulation S and pursuant to CFTC regulations and
guidance.

Neither the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") nor any other applicable
state securities commission has approved or disapproved of any Securities or passed upon the accuracy
of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence.

IMPORTANT NOTICES
IMPORTANT - UK RETAIL INVESTORS

If the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail
Investors — Legend" as applicable, the Securities are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made
available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the
United Kingdom. If the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of
Sales to UK Retail Investors — Legend™ as not applicable, the Securities may be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to any retail investor in the United Kingdom, provided that, where a key information
document is required pursuant to the UK PRIIPs Regulation (as defined below), the Securities may only
be offered, sold or otherwise made available to retail investors in the United Kingdom if a key
information document will be made available. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who
is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565
as it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA,; (ii) a customer within the meaning of the
provisions of the FSMA and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU)
2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article
2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 on markets in financial instruments as it forms part of UK domestic
law by virtue of the EUWA,; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus
Regulation. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as
it forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (as amended, the "UK PRIIPs Regulation")
for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the United
Kingdom has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them
available to any retail investor in the United Kingdom may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.

IMPORTANT — EEA RETAIL INVESTORS

If the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail
Investors — Legend" as applicable, the Securities are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made
available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA
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other than in an EEA jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will be made available. If the
Pricing Supplement in respect of any Securities specifies the "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail
Investors — Legend" as not applicable, the Securities may be offered, sold or otherwise made available
to any retail investor in the EEA, provided that, where a key information document is required pursuant
to the EU PRIIPs Regulation (as defined below), the Securities may only be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to retail investors in an EEA jurisdiction(s) for which a key information document will
be made available. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a
retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MIiFID I1");
(ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the "Insurance Distribution Directive"),
where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of
MIiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in EU Prospectus Regulation. Consequently, no key
information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the "EU PRIIPs Regulation™) for
offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has
been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to any
retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the EU PRIIPs Regulation.

UK MIFIR PRODUCT GOVERNANCE / TARGET MARKET

The Pricing Supplement in respect of any Securities may include a legend entitled "UK MiFIR product
governance/target market assessment" which will outline the target market assessment in respect of the
Securities and which channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate. Any person subsequently
offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a "distributor™) should take into consideration the
target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and
Product Governance Sourcebook (the "UK MIiFIR Product Governance Rules") is responsible for
undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining
the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the UK MiFIR
Product Governance Rules, any Manager subscribing for any Securities is a manufacturer in respect of
such Securities, but otherwise none of the Managers nor any of their respective affiliates will be a
manufacturer for the purpose of the UK MIFIR Product Governance Rules.

NO INVESTMENT ADVICE

Neither the Programme Memorandum nor any Pricing Supplement is or purports to be investment advice.
Unless expressly agreed otherwise with a particular investor, neither the Issuer nor any Manager is acting
as an investment adviser, providing advice of any other nature, or assuming any fiduciary obligation to
any investor in Securities.

BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES LUXEMBOURG BRANCH

BNP Paribas Securities Services Luxembourg Branch, being part of a financial group providing client
services with a worldwide network covering different time zones, may entrust parts of its operational
processes to other BNP Paribas Group (as defined below) entities and/or third parties, whilst keeping
ultimate accountability and responsibility in Luxembourg.

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS CONCERNING THE BNP PARIBAS GROUP

In this Pricing Supplement, the terms "BNP Paribas" and "BNPP" shall refer to BNP Paribas SA, the
parent company of the BNP Paribas Group. The term "BNP Paribas Group" and "BNPP Group" shall
refer to BNP Paribas SA and its consolidated subsidiaries collectively.

108



SCHEDULE - FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT FOR CERTIFICATES

[The Issuer accepts responsibility for this document in PDF dated [date] and confirms that it is
the final version (*'[Series Number] — Final'") of the Pricing Supplement relating to the
Certificates with ISIN [ISIN] for the issuance [and listing] of the Certificates described herein.]

PRICING SUPPLEMENT DATED [@®]
[BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]

(incorporated in The Netherlands)
(as Issuer)
Legal entity identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48

BNP Paribas

(incorporated in France)
(as Guarantor)

Legal entity identifier (LEl): ROMUWSFPUSMPRO8K5P83
[insert title of Securities]

under the UK Certificate Programme
of BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. and BNP Paribas

[[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.][BNP Paribas]
(as Manager)]

Any person making or intending to make an offer of the Securities may only do so in circumstances in
which no obligation arises for the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Manager to publish a prospectus pursuant
to section 85 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA") or supplement a prospectus
pursuant to Article 23 of the UK Prospectus Regulation (as defined below), in each case, in relation to
such offer.

[Neither][None of] the Issuer [nor], the Guarantor [or] [any Manager] has authorised, nor do they
authorise, the making of any offer of Securities in any other circumstances.

PART A-CONTRACTUAL TERMS

[Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in
the Programme Memorandum dated 30 June 2021], [the][each] Supplement[s] to the Programme
Memorandum published and approved on or before the date of this Pricing Supplement (copies of which
are available as described below) and any other Supplement to the Programme Memorandum which may
have been published and approved before the issue of any additional amount of Securities (the
"Supplements") (provided that to the extent any such Supplement (i) is published and approved after the
date of this Pricing Supplement and (ii) provides for any change to the Conditions of the Securities such
changes shall have no effect with respect to the Conditions of the Securities to which this Pricing
Supplement relates)] ([together], the "Programme Memorandum™). The Programme Memorandum
does not constitute a base prospectus for the purposes of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of
UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended, the "EUWA")
and regulations made thereunder (as amended, the "UK Prospectus Regulation™) and this document
does not constitute the final terms of the Securities for the purposes of Article 8 of the UK Prospectus
Regulation. This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement of the Securities described herein and
must be read in conjunction with the Programme Memorandum to obtain all the relevant information.
The Financial Conduct Authority of the United Kingdom has neither approved nor reviewed the
information contained in this Pricing Supplement and the Programme Memorandum in
connection with the Securities. The Programme Memorandum [[and][,] any Supplement(s) to the
Programme Memorandum] and this Pricing Supplement 3 [is/are] available for viewing at

8 The Pricing Supplement for Securities listed on the Euro MTF of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange should be made available on its
website.
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[address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained free of charge at the specified offices of the
Security Agents.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not applicable". Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even if "Not applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub
paragraphs (in which case the sub-paragraphs of the paragraphs which are not applicable can be
deleted). Italics denote directions for completing the Pricing Supplement. However, such numbering may
change where individual paragraphs or sub-paragraphs are removed.]

References herein to numbered Conditions are to the terms and conditions of the relevant series of
Securities and words and expressions defined in such terms and conditions shall bear the same meaning
in this Pricing Supplement in so far as they relate to such series of Securities, save as where otherwise
expressly provided.

This Pricing Supplement relate to the series of Securities as set out in "Specific Provisions for each
Series" below. References herein to "Securities" shall be deemed to be references to the relevant
Securities that are the subject of this Pricing Supplement and references to "Security" shall be construed
accordingly.

SPECIFIC PROVISIONS FOR EACH SERIES

SERIES [TRANCHE NO. OF NO OF ISIN/[ ] [COMMON [CFI [FISN [TYPE OF
NUMBER NUMBER SECURITIES SECURITIES CODE INDEX
ISSUED
(@ (9] (9] (9] (9] (9] (9] (9] (9]
(9] (9] (9] (9] (9] [®] (9] (@] (@]
SERIES TRADING ISSUE PRICE®*  [[SCHEDULED]] [PARITY SPECIFIED [Insert other
NUMBER METHOD PER SECURITY REDEMPTION SECURITIES identifier code or
DATE PURSUANT TO variable]
SECTION
871(m)*
(@] [Nominal] [Units] [[insert gurrency] [ [®] [®] [Yes/No] [®]
1/ ®1% of
the Notional
Amount]
(9] insert gurrency] [ [®] [®] [Yes/No] [®]
1/ ®1% of
the Notional
Amount]

(Where the Pricing Supplement cover more than one series of Securities, the table above should be
completed for all variables which will differ across the different series of Securities. If a column is not
relevant it may be deleted and the table may be presented as a single set of rows, rather than split into
two sections, as above. The relevant line item for any such variable in the General Provisions below
should include the following language: "See the Specific Provisions for each Series above".)

34 For Preference Share Certificates, the Issue Price is required to be par.
3% Specify "Yes" if the Securities are Specified Securities for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986.
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GENERAL

PROVISIONS

The following terms apply to each series of Securities:

1.

2.

[Issuer:
[Guarantor:
Trade Date:

Issue Date [and Interest Commencement
Date] *:

Consolidation:

Type of Securities:

Form of Securities:

Business Day Centre(s):

[Settlement:

Rounding Convention for Cash Settlement
Amount:

Final Payout

In the case of Certificates which bear interest.

BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]

BNP Paribas]

[specify]

[specify]

(N.B. For Preference Share Certificates, the

relevant Preference Shares should be in issue on or
prior to the Issue Date)

The Securities are to be consolidated and form a
single series with the [insert title of relevant series
of Securities] issued on [insert issue date]/[Not
applicable]

@) Certificates

(b) The Securities are [Index Securities/Share
Securities/Commodity  Securities/Fund
Securities/Preference Share

Certificates/Hybrid Securities].

[The provisions of Annex 2 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Index Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 3 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Share Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 4 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Commaodity Securities) shall apply.]
[The provisions of Annex 5 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Fund Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 6 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Preference Share Certificates) shall

apply.]

[Unwind Costs: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]]
[(N.B. Not applicable for Preference Share
Certificates)]

[Waiver of Set-Off: Not applicable]

[Clearing System Global Security]/[Registered
Global Security]

The applicable Business Day Centre[s] for the
purposes of the definition of "Business Day" in
Condition 1 [is/are] [®].

Settlement will be by way of cash payment.]

[Rounding Convention 2]/[Not applicable]

[Preference Share Certificate Condition 6 applies]
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18.

19.

[SPS Payouts
[Reverse Convertible Securities:
[Reverse Convertible Standard Securities:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Payout Conditions.]]]

[Auto-Callable Products:
[Autocall Securities:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Payout Conditions.]]

[Autocall One Touch Securities:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Payout Conditions.]]]

[Indexation Products:
[Certi Plus: Generic Knock-out Securities:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Conditions.]]]

[Exchange Rate Not applicable.]

Settlement Currency: The settlement currency for the payment of the
Cash Settlement Amount is [@®].

Syndication: The Securities will be distributed on a [non-
]syndicated basis.

[if syndicated, specify names of the Managers]

Minimum Trading Size: [specify]/[Not applicable]

Principal Security Agent: [BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg
Branch]/ [BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.]/[specify
other]¥”

Registrar: [BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg

Branch] [address][Not applicable]®

Calculation Agent: [BNP Paribas]/[BNP Paribas Arbitrage
S.N.C.])/[specify other][address].

[Governing law: English law]

PRODUCT SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

20.

Hybrid Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]
[If applicable:
(@) The Securities are linked to each of the

types of Underlying Reference (each a

Any local agent shall be specified in Part B of the Pricing Supplement.
Include in the case of Registered Securities.
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21.

Index Securities:

(b) Index Currency:

(c) Exchange(s):

(b)

Sponsor(s):

"Type of Underlying Reference") set out
in the table below. The terms and
conditions of the Securities will be
construed on the basis that in respect of
each separate Type of Underlying
Reference, the relevant terms applicable to
each such separate Type of Underlying
Reference will apply, as the context
admits, separately and independently in
respect of the relevant Type of Underlying
Reference[, subject as provided in (b)
below].

[Include each Type of Underlying
Reference]

Type of Underlying Reference
[®] [See item [@]]
[®] [See item [®]]
[®] [See item [®]]

Hybrid Business Day [Applicable/Not
applicable]

[if applicable:

"Hybrid Business Day" means a day
which is a Scheduled Trading Day (as
defined in the relevant Annex and
completed in the applicable Pricing
Supplement) for each Type of Underlying
Reference specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement

[If Hybrid Business Day is applicable,
each date for valuation (e.g. valuation
date, averaging date, observation date
etc.) which is the subject of the Hybrid
Securities provisions should be expressed
to be "[ @] or if that is not a Hybrid
Business Day the immediately
[succeeding/preceding] Hybrid Business

Day"]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

@) Index/Basket of Indices/Index [specify name of Index/Indices]

[specify name of Index Sponsor(s)]

[The [®] Index is a [Component Security]/[Multi-
Exchange] Index.]%

39

[specify]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

Specify each Component Security Index and/or Multi-Exchange Index (if any).
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22.

(d) Related Exchange(s):

(e) Exchange Business Day:

{j] Scheduled Trading Day:

(9) Weighting:

(h) Settlement Price:

0] Specified Maximum Days of

Disruption:
) Valuation Time:
(k) Index Correction Period:

Share Securities:

@) Share(s)/Share Company/Basket
Company/GDR/ADR:

[specify]/[All Exchanges]/[Not applicable]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index
Basis]/[Not applicable]

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index
Basis]/[Not applicable]

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

(must match election made for Exchange Business
Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Indices to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [®]. Each such Weighting shall
be subject to adjustment in accordance with Annex
2]/[specify other].]/[Not applicable] (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Securities relating to a
Basket of Indices)

[Official ~ opening level]/[Official  closing
level]/[level at the Valuation Time]

[As defined in Condition 1]/[[specify] Scheduled
Trading Days]/[Not applicable]

[Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the
relevant time on the relevant Settlement Price Date
or Averaging Date, as the case may be, is [the
Valuation Time] each as defined in Condition 1.]

[specify] ]

(N.B. If no Valuation Time is specified, the
Valuation Time will be the Scheduled Closing Time
as defined in Condition 1).

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(In the case of Hybrid Securities which are Share
Securities, repeat sub-paragraphs (a) to (t) below

for Share Securities)

[insert type of Share(s) and Share Company/Basket
Companies]

[GDR/ADR applicable]
[Insert details of GDR/ADR]*

[Stapled Shares applicable]

Specify each GDR or ADR (if any). In the case of Share Securities relating to a GDR/ADR, complete Share Securities Pricing

Supplement as applicable for GDR/ADR reference asset(s).
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[Insert details of Stapled Shares and Stapled Share
Constituents]*

(b) Relative Performance Basket: [Not applicable/specify]

(c) Share Currency: [specify]

(d) ISIN of Share(s): [specify]

(e) Exchange(s): [specify]

f Related Exchange(s): [specify]/[All Exchanges]

(9) Exchange Business Day: [Single Share Basis/All Shares Basis/Per Share
Basis]

(h) Scheduled Trading Day: LSin_gie Share Basis/All Shares Basis/Per Share

asis

(must match election made for Exchange Business
Day)

() Weighting: [The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Shares to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [®]. Each such Weighting shall
be subject to adjustment [in accordance with Annex
3/[specify other].]/[Not applicable] (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Securities relating to a

Basket of Shares)]
{)) Settlement Price: [Official closing price]/[price at the Valuation
Time]]
(k) Specified Maximum Days of [As defined in Condition 1]/[[specify] Scheduled
Disruption: Trading Days].
() Valuation Time: [Continuous monitoring] / [specify other] and the

relevant time on the relevant Settlement Price Date
or Averaging Date, as the case may be, is the
Scheduled Closing Time as defined in Condition 1.]
[specify] (N.B. If no Valuation Time is specified, the
Valuation Time will be the Scheduled Closing Time
as defined in Condition 1)]

(m) Share Correction Period [As per Conditions/specify]

(n) [Dividend Payment: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(0) Listing Change: [Applicable/Not applicable]

(p) Listing Suspension: [Applicable/Not applicable]

(a) liquidity: [Applicable/Not applicable]

) Tender Offer: [Applicable/Not applicable]*?
(s) [CSR Event: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

“a Specify each Stapled Share Constituent comprising the Stapled Shares. In the case of Share Securities relating to Stapled Shares,

complete Share Securities Pricing Supplement as applicable for Stapled Shares reference asset(s).
a2 Only to be disapplied for Tokyo EQD Securities.
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23.

24.

(®)

Hedging Liquidity Event:

Commodity Securities:

(@)

(b)
(©
(d)
()

()
(9)
(h)
(i)
@)
(k)
0

(m)

(n)

(0)

Commodity/Commaodities/
Commodity  Index/Commaodity
Indices:

Pricing Date(s):
Initial Pricing Date:
Final Pricing Date:

Commodity Reference Price:

Delivery Date:

Nearby Month:

Specified Price:

Exchange:

Disruption Fallback(s):

Valuation Time:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

Weighting:

Rolling Futures Contract
Securities:

Futures Rollover [Date/Period]:

Fund Securities:

(@)

Fund/Fund Basket/Fund
Index/Fund Indices:

43

Delete if using automated Commodity Reference Prices.

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Maximum Hedging Liquidity Level: [[ ®] per
cent.]/[As per Conditions]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
[specify Commaodity/Commodities/Commodity

Index/Commaoadity Indices]

[The Sponsor[s] of the Commodity [Index/Indices]
[is/are] [®]]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

The Price Source is/are [®]*
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[As per Conditions]

[Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the
relevant time on [insert relevant date(s)].]/[specify]

[specify] [[®] Commodity Business Days]* /[As
per Conditions]

[The Weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the  Commodity  Basket s
[specify]]/[Not applicable]

[Yes/No]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[Dislocation Event: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]
Dislocation Level: [specify]/[As per Conditions]]
[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify Fund/Fund Basket/Fund Index/Fund
Indices]

Only applicable in respect of Commodity Securities linked to a single Commodity.
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(b)
(©
(d)

()
®
(9)
(h)

0)
(k)
0
(m)
(n)

(0)
(p)

(a)
n
(s)

(®)

Fund Share(s):
Fund Documents:

Fund Business Day:

Maximum Days of Disruption:
Fund Service Provider:
Calculation Date(s):

Initial Calculation Date:

Final Calculation Date:
Hedging Date:

AUM Level:

NAYV Trigger Percentage:
NAV Trigger Period:

Number
Days:

Basket Trigger Level:

Termination Amount:

Simple Interest Spread:
Termination Date:

Delayed Redemption

of NAV Publication

[The Fund Index Sponsor[s] of the Fund
[Index/Indices] [is/are] [®]]

[Strike Rate: [[specify set exchange rate],
expressed as the number of units (or part units) of
the Subject Currency for which one unit of the Base
Currency can be exchanged]]

[Fund Index Currency: [specify]]

[The [®] Fund is a Mutual Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Hedge Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Private Equity Fund]

[SC/FM Fund Events: Applicable]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[All Fund Share Basis/Per Fund Share Basis/Single
Fund Share Basis]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[Non-
Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[Specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

on [Applicable/Not applicable]

Occurrence of an Extraordinary

Fund Event:

Delayed Payment Cut-off Date:

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
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25.

26.

27.

(u) [Weighting:

v)

[Protected Amount:

Preference Share Certificates:

(@)

Preference Share:

Preference Share
Valuation Date:

(b)

Redemption
Illegality (Security Condition 7.1) and

Force Majeure (Security Condition 7.2):

Additional Disruption Events and Optional
Additional Disruption Events:

The Weighting to be applied to each Fund Share
comprising the Fund Basket is [specify]]

[If Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Fund Event and Principal Protected
Termination Amount are applicable: [specify] per
cent. of the Notional Amount]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[insert class, series number, ISIN and description
of preference shares]

[specify]
Illegality: redemption in accordance with Security
Condition 7.1

Force Majeure: redemption in accordance with
Security Condition 7.2

(@)

Additional Disruption Events:
[Applicable/Not applicable]/[[Change in
Law/Hedging Disruption] does not apply
to the Securities]

[Change in Law — Hedge Maintenance Cost: Not
applicable]

(b) [The following Optional Additional

Disruption Events apply to the Securities:
(Specify each of the following which
applies. N.B. Optional Additional
Disruption Events are applicable to

certain Index Securities, Share Securities
and Commodity Securities)

[Not applicable]
[Administrator/Benchmark Event]
[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]
[Insolvency Filing]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Share
Securities)

[Loss of Stock Borrow]
[Currency Event]
[Extraordinary External Event]
[Jurisdiction Event

Hedging Arrangements: Not applicable]
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28.

29.

Knock-in Event:*

@) SPS Knock-in Valuation:

(b) Knock-in Level:
(©) Knock-in Period Beginning Date:

(d) Knock-in Period Beginning Date
Day Convention:

(e) Knock-in Determination Period:

f Knock-in Determination Day(s):

(9) Knock-in Period Ending Date:

(h) Knock-in Period Ending Date Day

Convention:
(i) Knock-in Valuation Time:
) Disruption Consequences:

Knock-out Event:6

[Significant Alteration Event]

(c) [The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in
respect of [specify in relation to each
relevant Share/Security] is [@®].

(N.B. Only applicable if Loss of Stock
Borrow is applicable)]

[The Initial Stock Loan rate in respect of
[specify in relation to each relevant
Share/Security] is [@®].

(N.B. Only applicable if Increased Cost of
Stock Borrow is applicable)]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
[If applicable:

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal
to"/"less than"/"less than or equal to™/"within™]]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

Applicable

[If applicable insert relevant provisions from
Conditions]

[specify]
[specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Payout Condition 5.3]
[specify]/[Each  [Scheduled  Trading  Day/

Commodity Business Day] in the Knock-in
Determination Period]

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify/See definition in Payout Condition
5.3])/[Valuation Time]/[Any time on a Knock-in
Determination Day]/[Not applicable]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[If applicable:

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities and Commodity Securities.

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities and Commodity Securities.
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30.

(@)

(b)
(©

(d)

()

®

)
(h)

)

SPS Knock-out Valuation:

Knock-out Level:

Knock-out Period Beginning

Date:

Knock-out Period Beginning Date
Day Convention:

Knock-out Determination Period:

Knock-out Determination Day(s):

Knock-out Period Ending Date:

Knock-out Period Ending Date
Day Convention:

Knock-out Valuation Time:

Disruption Consequences:

VALUATION AND REDEMPTION

(@)

(b)

Notional Amount of each
Certificate:

Interest:

(i)
(i)

Interest Period(s):

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal
to"/"less than"/"less than or equal
to"]/["within"]/[[Knock-out Corridor Range]]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

Applicable

[If applicable insert relevant provisions from
Conditions]

[specify]
[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Payout Condition 5.3]
[specify]/[Each  [Scheduled  Trading Day/

Commodity Business Day] in the Knock-out
Determination Period]

[specify]
[Not applicable/Applicable]
[specify]/[See definition in Payout Condition 5.3]

[Any time on a Knock-out Determination
Day]/[Valuation Time]/[Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[[currency][amount]/[Not applicable]].
[Redenomination: Not applicable]

[FX Settlement Disruption Event Determination:
Applicable] [(N.B. Must not be specified as
applicable for Preference Share Certificates)]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs under this paragraph)

[insert relevant provisions from Conditions]]

[Linked Interest: [Digital Coupon]/[Snowball
Digital Coupon] (see items [specify] below)]

[specify]

Interest ~ Period  End [specify]
Date(s):
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(©

(d)

(iii)

Business Day Convention [Following/Modified
for Interest Period End Following/Preceding/FRN/None/Not applicable]
Date(s):

(iv) Interest Payment Date(s): [specify]
(v) Business Day Convention [Following/Modified
for Interest  Payment Following/Preceding/FRN/None/Not applicable]
Date(s):
(If a Business Day Convention is specified for
Interest Period End Date(s), unless Interest
Payment Date(s) is (are) expressed to be a number
of Business Days after the relevant Interest Period
End Final Date, Interest Payment Date(s) must be
subject to the same Business Day Convention)
(vi) Party  responsible  for [specify]
calculating the Rate(s) of
Interest and  Interest
Amount(s) (if not the
Calculation Agent):
(vii) Minimum Interest Rate:  [[specify] per cent. per annum/As per the
Conditions]
(viii)  Maximum Interest Rate: [[specify] per cent. per annum/Not applicable]
(ix) Day Count Fraction: [specify]/[unadjusted]
x) Accrual to Redemption:  [Applicable/Not applicable]
(xi) Rate of Interest: Linked Interest
(xii) Coupon Rate: [Applicable/Not applicable]
(Include one or more of [Digital Coupon applicable:
the following if
applicable): [Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other
related provisions from Payout Conditions.]]
[Snowball Digital Coupon applicable:
[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other
related provisions from Payout Conditions.]]
[Rate: [[®] per cent. [per annum]
(If more than one fixed rate is to be determined,
specify each such rate)]
Linked Interest Certificates: [Applicable — see [Index/Share/Commodity/Fund]
Linked Interest Certificates below/Not applicable]
Index Linked [Interest] [Applicable/Not applicable]

Certificates:

(i)

Index/Basket of [Specify name of Index/Indices]
Indices/Index
Sponsor(s): [specify name of Index Sponsor(s)]
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
(x)
(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Averaging:

[Interest] Valuation
Time:

[Interest] Valuation
Date(s):

Index Correction Period

Observation Dates:

Observation Period:

Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

Exchange(s):
Related Exchange(s):

Exchange Business Day:

Scheduled Trading Day:

Settlement Price:

Weighting:

47

[The [®] Index is a [Component Security]/[Multi-
Exchange] Index]*

Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The
Averaging Dates are [@®].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted
Day [Omission/  Postponement/  Modified
Postponement] [the provisions of Annex 2] will

apply.]
[specify]

[specify]

[As per Conditions/specify]
[specify]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a
Disrupted Day [Omission/  Postponement/
Modified Postponement] [the provisions of Annex
2] will apply.] [Observation Day Disruption
Consequences are not applicable.]

[specify]

[[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] [Scheduled
Trading Days]]

[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[All Exchanges]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index
Basis]

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index
Basis]

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

(must match election made for Exchange Business
Day)

[Official  opening level]/[Official  closing
level]/[level at the Valuation Time]

[The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Indices to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [®]. Each such Weighting shall
be subject to adjustment in accordance with Annex
2 [specify other]. (N.B. Only applicable in relation
to Securities relating to a Basket of Indices)/Not
applicable]

Specify each Component Security Index and/or Multi-Exchange Index (if any).
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(e) Share Linked [Interest]
Certificates:

M Share(s)/Share
Company/Basket
Company/GDR/ADR:

(ii) Relative  Performance
Basket:

(iii) Averaging:

(iv) [Interest] Valuation
Time:

(v) [Interest] Valuation
Date(s):

(vi) Observation Dates:

(vii) Observation Period:

(viii)  Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

(ix) Exchange(s):
(x) Related Exchange(s):

(xi) Exchange Business Day:

In the case of Share Linked Interest Certificates relating to a
as applicable for GDR/ADR references asset(s).

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(In the case of Hybrid Securities which are Share
Securities, repeat sub-paragraphs (i) to (xxii)
below for Share Securities)

[insert type of Share(s) and Share Company/Basket
Companies]

[ISIN][Screen Page][Exchange Code]
[GDR/ADR applicable]

[insert GDR/ADR]*

[Stapled Shares applicable]

[Insert details of Stapled Shares and Stapled Share
Constituents]*

[Not applicable/specify]]
Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The
Averaging Dates are [®].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted

Day [Omission/Postponement/Modified
Postponement] will apply.]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a
Disrupted Day [Omission/Postponement/Modified
Postponement] will apply.] [Observation Day
Disruption Consequences are not applicable.]

[specify]

[[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] [Scheduled
Trading Days]]

[specify]
[specify]/[All Exchanges]

[Single Share Basis/All Shares Basis/Per Share
Basis]

GDR/ADR, complete Share Linked Interest Certificates Pricing Supplement

Specify each Stapled Share Constituent comprising the Stapled Shares. In the case of Share Securities relating to Stapled Shares,
complete Share Securities Pricing Supplement as applicable for Stapled Shares reference asset(s).
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)
(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)
(xix)
(xx)
(xxi)

(xxii)

) Commodity Linked

Scheduled Trading Day:

Settlement Price:

Weighting:

Share Correction Period
[Dividend Payment:
Listing Change:

Listing Suspension:
Iliquidity:

Tender Offer:

[CSR Event:

Hedging
Event:

Liquidity

[Interest]

Certificates:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Commodity/
Commodities/Commodit
y Index/Commodity
Indices:

[Interest]
Date(s):

Pricing
Initial [Interest] Pricing
Date:

Final [Interest] Pricing
Date:

Commodity  Reference
Price:

Delivery Date:

Only to be disapplied for Tokyo EQD Securities.

Delete if using automated Commodity Reference Prices

[Single Share Basis/All Shares Basis/Per Share
Basis]

(must match election made for Exchange Business
Day)

[Official closing price] /[price at the Valuation
Time]

[The weighting to be applied to each item
comprising the Basket of Shares to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [specify]. Each such Weighting
shall be subject to adjustment in accordance with
Annex 3/[specify other].]/[Not Applicable] (N.B.
Only applicable in relation to Securities relating to
a Basket of Shares)

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]>°

[Applicable/Not applicable]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Maximum Hedging Liquidity Level: [[ ®] per
cent.]/[As per Conditions]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify Commaodity/Commodities/Commodity
Index/Commaodity Indices] [The Sponsor[s] of the
Commodity Index/Indices is [®]]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]
The Price Source is/are [®]>

[specify]/[Not applicable]
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(9)

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Fund

Nearby Month: [specify]/[Not applicable]

Specified Price: [specify]/[Not applicable]

Exchange: [specify]/[Not applicable]

Disruption Fallback(s):  [As per Conditions]/[specify]

[Interest] Valuation [specify]

Time:

Specified Maximum [As defined in Condition 1]/[specify]®?

Days of Disruption:

Weighting: [The Weighting to be applied to each item
comprising  the  Commodity  Basket s
[specify]]/[Not applicable]

Rolling Futures Contract [Yes/No]

Securities:
(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)
[Dislocation Event: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]
Dislocation Level: [specify]/[As per Conditions]]

Futures Rollover [Not applicable]/[specify]

[Date/Period]:

Linked [Interest] [Applicable/Not applicable]

Certificates:

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Fund/Fund Basket/Fund
Index/Fund Indices:

Fund Share(s):
Fund Documents:

Fund Business Day:

[specify Fund/Fund Basket/Fund Index/Fund
Indices]

[The Fund Index Sponsor[s] of the Fund
[Index/Indices] [is/are] [®]]

[Fund Index Currency: [specify]]

[The [@®] Fund is a Mutual Fund]

[The [®@] Fund is a Hedge Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Private Equity Fund]
[SC/FM Fund Events: Applicable]
[specify]

[As per Conditions][specify]

[All Fund share Basis] [Per Fund share
Basis][Single Fund share Basis]

Maximum  Days of [As per Conditions] [specify]

Disruption:

Fund Service Provider:

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

Only applicable in respect of Commodity Securities linked to a single Commodity.
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(h)

(vii)

(viii)
(ix)
()
(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)
(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

[Interest] Valuation
Date:

Calculation Date(s):
Initial Calculation Date:
Final Calculation Date:
Hedging Date:

AUM Level:

NAV Trigger
Percentage:

NAV Trigger Period:

Number of NAV
Publication Days:

Basket Trigger Level:

Termination Amount:

Simple Interest Spread:
Termination Date:

Weighting:

Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Fund
Event:

Delayed Payment Cut-
off Date:

[Protected Amount:

[Issuer Call Option:]

(i)

(i)

Optional ~ Redemption
Date(s):

Optional ~ Redemption
Valuation Date(s):

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[Non-
Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[The Weighting to be applied to each Fund Share
comprising the Fund/Fund Basket is [specify]]/[Not
applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[If Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Fund Event and Principal Protected
Termination Amount are applicable: [specify] per
cent. of the Notional Amount]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[specify]

[The day falling [five] Business Days following the
Optional Redemption Valuation Date]

[specify]

[The date designated as the Optional Redemption
Valuation Date by the Issuer in the notice of
redemption, being the day falling [15] Business
Days after the notice referred to in Payout
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(iii) Optional ~ Redemption
Amount(s):

(iv) Minimum Notice Period:

(v) Maximum Notice
Period:

(i) [Automatic Early Redemption:5®

(i Automatic Early
Redemption Event:

(ii) Automatic Early
Redemption Payoult:

(iii) Automatic Early
Redemption Date(s):

(iv) SPS AER Valuation:

(v) Automatic Early
Redemption Level:

(vi) Automatic Early
Redemption Percentage:

(vii) AER Exit Rate:

(viii)  Automatic Early

Redemption  Valuation
Date(s)/Period(s):

{)) [Strike Date:]

Condition 4 has been delivered to the Holders in
accordance with Security Condition 10]

[NA x [®] per cent.]

[specify]
[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

Single Standard Automatic Early Redemption:
"greater than"/"greater than or equal to"/"less
than"/"less than or equal to"

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and other related
provisions from Conditions.]

[SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payoult:

[Insert formula, relevant value(s) and related
provisions from Payout Conditions]]

[specify]

Applicable:
[SPS AER Value:

[insert relevant value(s) and related provisions
from Payout Conditions]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[[®] per cent.]/[Not applicable]

[Not applicable]

[AER Rate]

[Insert relevant provisions from Conditions]
[AER CSN Rate]

[Insert relevant provisions from Conditions]

[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities and Commodity Securities.
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32.

(k)
0]
(m)

(n)

(0)
(p)

[Strike Price:]
[Redemption Valuation Date:]

[Averaging:]

[Observation Dates:]

[Observation Period:]

Identification information  of
Holders as provided by Condition
20:

DISTRIBUTION AND U.S. SALES
ELIGIBILITY

U.S. Selling Restrictions:

Additional U.S. Federal income tax
considerations:

[specify] / [see item [®] above] / [Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the
Securities. [The Averaging Dates are [specify].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted
Day [Omission/Postponement/Modified
Postponement] (as defined in Condition 18) will
apply.] (N.B. Not applicable to Commodity
Securities)

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a
Disrupted Day [Omission/Postponement/Modified
Postponement] will apply.] [Observation Day
Disruption Consequences are not applicable.] (N.B.
Not applicable to Commodity Securities)

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Applicable / Not applicable]

The Securities may not be legally or beneficially
owned by or transferred to any U.S. person at any
time

[The Securities are [not] Specified Securities for the
purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986.] [The Securities may be
Specified Securities for the purpose of Section
871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as stated in "Specific Provisions for each Series"
above. If the Securities are Specified Securities,
then the following provisions will apply.]
[Additional information regarding the application
of Section 871(m) to the Securities will be available
at [give name(s) and address(es) of Issuer contact].
[The Issuer will arrange for withholding under
Section 871(m) to be imposed on any dividend
equivalent payment at a rate of 30 per cent.]]

(If the Securities are Specified Securities, include
the "Additional information" sentence and provide
the appropriate contact information at the Issuer.
N.B. Include the option above, completed as
appropriate, where (a) the Securities do not
reference any U.S. equity or any index that contains
any component U.S. equity or otherwise provide
direct or indirect exposure to U.S. equities or (b)
the Section 871(m) determination has been made by
the time the Pricing Supplement are finalised (in
which case, the determination will have been made
either (i) on the pricing date, if this falls 14 days or
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fewer before the issue date or (ii) on the issue date,
if the pricing date falls more than 14 days before
the issue date. Otherwise, include the following
option, completed as appropriate:

[As at the date of these Pricing Supplement, the
Issuer has not determined whether the Securities are
Specified Securities for purposes of Section 871(m)
of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986;
however, indicatively it considers that they will
[not] be Specified Securities for these purposes.
This is indicative information only subject to
change and if the Issuer's final determination is
different then it will give notice of such
determination. Please contact [give name(s) and
address(es) of Issuer contact] for further
information regarding the application of Section
871(m) to the Securities.]]

(The Securities will not be Specified Securities if
they (i) are issued prior to 1 January 2023 and
provide a return that differs significantly from the
return on an investment in the underlying (i.e. they
are not "delta-one™ securities for U.S. tax
purposes) or (ii) do not reference any U.S. equity
or any index that contains any component U.S.
equity or otherwise provide direct or indirect
exposure to U.S. equities. If the Securities reference
a U.S. equity or an index that contains a component
U.S. equity or otherwise provide direct or indirect
exposure to U.S. equities and (i) are issued prior to
1 January 2023 and provide a return that does not
differ significantly from the return on an investment
in the underlying, or (ii) are issued on or after 1
January 2023, further analysis would be required.)

[Payments on the Specified Securities are
calculated by reference to [Net Dividends/Net Total
Returns]. By purchasing a Specified Security, the
parties agree that in calculating the relevant
payment amount the Issuer has withheld, and the
purchaser is deemed to have received 30 per cent.
of any dividend equivalent payments (as defined in
Section 871(m) of the Code) in respect of the
relevant [U.S. securities/U.S. dividend paying
index components]. The Issuer will not pay any
additional amounts to the holder on account of the
Section 871(m) amount deemed withheld.

[For this purpose, "Net Dividends" means the
dividends paid by an issuer of a security net of 30
per cent. U.S. federal withholding tax.]

[For this purpose "Net Total Returns" means the
net total return of the U.S. source dividend paying
components, as calculated by the Index Sponsor, of
an index that reinvests U.S. source dividends paid
by an issuer of a security that is a component of the
index net of 30 per cent. U.S. withholding tax on
such U.S. source dividends.]]
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33. TEFRA Cor TEFRA Not Applicable: [TEFRA C/TEFRA Not Applicable]
34.  Non-exempt Offer: Not applicable
35.  Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors:

(@) Selling Restriction: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]

[The Securities are only intended to be offered, sold
or otherwise made available to investors via the
Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange].%*

(b) Legend: [Applicable]/[Not applicable]

(If the Securities clearly do not constitute
"packaged" products or the Securities do constitute
"packaged" products and a key information
document will be prepared in the UK, "Not
Applicable” should be specified. If the Securities
may constitute "packaged” products and no key
information  document  will be prepared,
"Applicable” should be specified)

36.  Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail [Applicable]/[Not applicable]
Investors:

[For the purpose of the Securities the terms specified in this Pricing Supplement are deemed to be
incorporated into the Terms and Conditions of the Securities as amended and/or supplemented by the
provisions of the Additional Terms and Conditions set out in the Annex specified in the Pricing
Supplement (the "Conditions") and shall thereby complete the Conditions for the purpose of the
Securities and this Pricing Supplement may be regarded as evidencing the complete Conditions.]

Responsibility

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing Supplement. To the best
of the knowledge of the Issuer, the information contained in this Pricing Supplement is in accordance
with the facts and this Pricing Supplement does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such
information.

[THIRD PARTY INFORMATION

[The information included in [the Annex] (the "[®] Information™) consists of extracts from or
summaries of information that is publicly available in respect of [®]. The Issuer confirms that such
information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain from
information published by [®], no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced inaccurate
or misleading.] ]

[Signed on behalf of [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]

As Issuer:

By:

Duly authorised]

54 Include if the Securities are intended to be listed and admitted to trading the Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.
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PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

1. Listing and Admission to trading — [De-listing]

[The Securities are unlisted.]/[Application [has been/will be] made to list the Securities on [the Official
List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange][specify relevant MTF/regulated market/third country
market/SME growth market] and to admit the Securities for trading on [[the professional segment of] the
Euro MTF][specify relevant MTF/ market] [[with effect from/on or around] [®]1].]

[The de-listing of the Securities on the [exchange/market] specified above shall occur on [specify],
subject to any change to such [date/period] by such [exchange/market] or any competent authorities, for
which the Issuer [and the Guarantor] shall under no circumstances be liable].

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to indicate if original Securities are already admitted to

trading)
2. [Ratings

Ratings:

[The Securities to be issued [[have been]/[are expected to be]] rated [insert
details] by [insert credit rating agency name(s)].]

[The Securities have not been rated.]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has
previously been published by the rating provider:

[®]

3. [Interests of Natural and Legal Persons Involved in the Issue

[Need to include a description of any interest, including conflicting interest, that is material to
the issue/offer, detailing the persons involved and the nature of the interest. May be satisfied by
the inclusion of the following statement]:

"Save [for the fees [of [insert relevant fee disclosure]] payable to the distributor(s) and] as
discussed[ in the "Potential Conflicts of Interest" paragraph in the "Risk Factors" section in the
Programme Memorandum], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the issue of the
Securities has an interest material to the issue."]

4, Reasons for the Issue, Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses

(@)

(b)

(©

Reasons for the issue:

Estimated net proceeds:

Estimated total expenses:

[See "Use of Proceeds" in the Programme
Memorandum]/[give details]/[Not applicable]

(See "Use of Proceeds" wording in Programme
Memorandum. If reasons for issue are different from
what is disclosed in the Programme Memorandum,
give details.)

[®@]/[Not applicable]

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will
need to split out and present in order of priority. If
proceeds insufficient to fund all proposed uses state
amount and sources of other funding.)

[ ® ] [Include breakdown of expenses]/[Not
applicable]
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5. Performance of Underlying/Formula/Other Variable and Other Information concerning
the Underlying Reference

[Need to include details of where past and further performance and volatility of the
index/formula/other variables can be obtained and whether or not such information can be
obtained free of charge.]

[Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and if the index is not
composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the information about the index can be
obtained]

[Where the underlying is a security need to include the name of the issuer of the security and
the ISIN (International Security Identification Number) or other such security identification
code]

[The Certificates relate to the Series [ @] Preference shares of the BNP Paribas Synergy Limited
relating to [insert reference asset].

The performance of the Preference Shares depends on the performance of the relevant
underlying asset(s) or basis of reference to which the Preference Shares are linked (the
"Preference Share Underlying"). The Preference Share Underlying is [insert reference asset].
Information on the Preference Share Underlying (including past and further performance and
volatility) is published [free of charge]/[at a cost] on Reuters page [ ®].

The Preference Share Value will be published on [each] Business Day on [Reuters] page [®].

The lIssuer [intends to provide post-issuance information [specify what information will be
reported and where it can be obtained]] [does not intend to provide post-issuance information].

6. Operational Information
Relevant Clearing System(s): Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

[N.B. Ensure all relevant entities have been
appointed and formalities complied with in
accordance with the rules and regulations of
the relevant clearing system]

If other than Euroclear Bank S.A.J/N.V., [ldentification number(s):]
Clearstream Banking, S.A., include the
relevant identification number(s):

[N.B. Ensure all relevant entities have been
appointed and formalities complied with in
accordance with the rules and regulations of
the relevant clearing system]

7. [Index Disclaimer(s)
[e]]
8. [Intermediaries with a firm commitment to act

[Name and address of the entities which [None/give details (such as the maximum
have a firm commitment to act as bid/offer spread of the offer price and the
intermediaries in  secondary trading, minimum unit amount per order)]]
providing liquidity through bid and offer

rates and a description of the main terms of

their commitment:]
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9.

10.

11.

[Placing and Underwriting

[Name(s) and address(es), to the extent [None]
known to the Issuer, of the placers in the
various countries where the offer takes place:

Name and address of the co-ordinator(s) of [None]
the global offer and of single parts of the
offer:®

Name and address of any paying agents and [None]
depository agents in each country (in
addition to the Principal Security Agent):

Entities agreeing to underwrite the issue ona [None]
firm commitment basis, and entities agreeing

to place the issue without a firm commitment

or under "best efforts" arrangements:>6

When the underwriting agreement has been [Not applicable]
or will be reached:]

[UK Benchmarks Regulation

UK Benchmarks Regulation: Not applicable.]
Article 29(2) statement on
benchmarks:

[UK MIFIR product governance / Retail investors, professional investors and ECPs target
market

Solely for the purposes of [the/each] manufacturer's product approval process, the target market
assessment in respect of the Securities has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for
the Securities is retail clients, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No
2017/565 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act
2018 ("EUWA"), and eligible counterparties, as defined in the FCA Handbook Conduct of
Business Sourcebook ("COBS") and professional clients, as defined in Regulation (EU) No
600/2014 on markets in financial instruments as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the
EUWA ("UK MiFIR"); [and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate[,
including investment advice, portfolio management, non-advised sales and pure execution
services]]/[[(ii) all channels for distribution to eligible counterparties and professional clients
are appropriate; and (iii) the following channels for distribution of the Securities to retail clients
are appropriate — [investment advice][,/ and] [portfolio management][,/ and][ non-advised sales
][and pure execution services][, subject to the distributor's suitability and appropriateness
obligations under COBS, as applicable]]. [Consider any negative target market]. Any person
subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a "distributor") should take into
consideration the manufacturer[’s/s’] target market assessment; however, a distributor subject
to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance Sourcebook (the "UK
MiFIR Product Governance Rules") is responsible for undertaking its own target market
assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer['s/s']
target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels[, subject to the
distributor's suitability and appropriateness obligations under COBS, as applicable].

Where not all of the issue is underwritten, a statement of the portion not covered.
See "Risk Factors relating to Securities — Potential Conflicts of Interest" in the Programme Memorandum for further information.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES

The following is the text of the terms and conditions of the Securities (the ""Terms and Conditions"")
which will include the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 1 on pages 173 to 190 in
relation to the payouts for Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 2 on
pages 191 to 198 in the case of Index Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in
Annex 3 on pages 199 to 212 in the case of Share Securities, the additional terms and conditions
contained in Annex 4 on pages 213 to 220 in the case of Commaodity Securities, the additional terms
and conditions contained in Annex 5 on pages 221 to 235 in the case of Fund Securities, and the
additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 6 on pages 236 to 238 in the case of Preference
Share Certificates (each, an ""Annex" and, together the ""Annexes') which will be incorporated by
reference into each Clearing System Global Security or Registered Global Security (each as defined
below), will apply to such Securities. The applicable Final Terms will be attached to each Clearing
System Global Security or Registered Global Security, as the case may be.

The series of Securities described in the applicable Final Terms (in so far as it relates to such series of
Securities) (such Securities being hereinafter referred to as the "Securities") are issued by BNP Paribas
Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V." or the "lIssuer"). The Securities are certificates ("Certificates"), and
references in these Terms and Conditions to "Security", "Securities", "Certificate" and "Certificates" will
be construed accordingly.

As used herein, "Tranche™ means Securities which are identical in all respects (including as to listing
and admission to trading) and "Series" means a Tranche of Securities together with any further Tranche
or Tranches of Securities which (i) are expressed to be consolidated and form a single series, and (ii)
have the same terms and conditions or terms and conditions which are the same in all respects save for
the Issue Date and Issue Price, the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon (if any) and/or
the date from which interest starts to accrue (if any), as applicable.

The Securities are issued pursuant to an Agency Agreement dated on or around 28 June 2021 (as amended
and/or supplemented from time to time, the "Agency Agreement") between BNPP B.V. as issuer, BNP
Paribas as guarantor ("BNPP", and when acting in such capacity, the "Guarantor") and either of BNP
Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch or BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. as principal agent (if
specified in the applicable Final Terms as Agent in respect of the Securities, the "Principal Security
Agent" or "Security Agent") and BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch as registrar (if
specified in the applicable Final Terms as Registrar in respect of the Registered Securities, the
"Registrar").

BNP Paribas or BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) shall
undertake the duties of calculation agent (the "Calculation Agent") in respect of the Securities as set out
below and in the applicable Final Terms unless another entity is so specified as calculation agent in the
applicable Final Terms. The expression "Calculation Agent" shall, in relation to the relevant Securities,
include such other specified calculation agent.

The Agency Agreement will be governed by English Law.

The applicable Final Terms for the Securities supplements these Terms and Conditions for the purposes
of the Securities. The applicable Final Terms for the Securities will be attached to each Global Security
and any Registered Certificates in definitive form.

References herein to the "applicable Final Terms" are to the Final Terms or two or more sets of Final
Terms (in the case of any further Securities issued pursuant to Condition 12 and forming a single series
with the Securities) (which, for the avoidance of doubt, may be issued in respect of more than one series
of Securities) insofar as they relate to the Securities.

Subject as provided in Condition 4 and in the Guarantee (as defined in Condition 1), the obligations of
the Issuer with respect to the payment of amounts payable by the Issuer are guaranteed by the Guarantor
pursuant to the Guarantee. The original of the Guarantee is held by BNP Paribas Securities Services,
Luxembourg Branch on behalf of the Holders at its specified office.

Copies of the Agency Agreement, the Guarantee and the applicable Final Terms may be (i) obtained
from the specified office of the Security Agent and the Registrar (in the case of Registered Securities) or
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(ii) provided by email to a Holder following their prior written request to the Security Agent and the
Registrar (in the case of Registered Securities) and provision of proof of holding and identity (in a form
satisfactory to the Security Agent and the Registrar (in the case of Registered Securities)), save that if
the Securities are unlisted, the applicable Final Terms will only be obtainable by a Holder and such
Holder must produce evidence satisfactory to the Security Agent as to identity.

Words and expressions defined in the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable Final Terms shall
have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless the context otherwise requires
or unless otherwise stated.

The Holders are entitled to the benefit of and are deemed to have notice of and are bound by all the
provisions of the Agency Agreement (insofar as they relate to the Securities) and the applicable Final
Terms, which are binding on them.

1. DEFINITIONS
For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the following general definitions will apply:
"Additional Disruption Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Adjustment Date" is as defined in Condition 16(b));

"Affected Component Security™ is as defined in Condition 1 under the definition of Strike
Date and in Condition 18 under the definition of Valuation Date;

"Affected Item" is as defined in this Condition 1 under the definition of Strike Date and in
Condition 18 under the definition of Valuation Date and Averaging Date;

"Affected Share" is as defined in Condition 15.2(d);

"Affiliate" means in relation to any entity (the "First Entity"), any entity controlled, directly or
indirectly, by the First Entity, any entity that controls, directly or indirectly, the First Entity or
any entity directly or indirectly under common control with the First Entity. For these purposes
"control" means ownership of a majority of the voting power of an entity;

"Agency Agreement" is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms and
Conditions;

"Annex" is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms and Conditions;
"Averaging Date" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Basket Company" is as defined in Condition 15.2(d);

"BNPP" is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms and Conditions;
"BNPP B.V." is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms and Conditions;

"Business Day" means (a) a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks
are open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency
deposits) in the relevant Business Day Centre(s) (other than TARGET2 System), (b) if
TARGET?2 System is specified as a Business Day Centre in the applicable Final Terms, a day
on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer
(TARGET?2) System (the "TARGET2 System") is open (a "TARGET?2 Settlement Day"), (c)
for the purposes of making payments in euro, any TARGET2 Settlement Day, and (d) where
the Securities are Clearing System Securities or Registered Certificates, a day on which the
relevant Clearing System is open for business;

"Calculation Agent" is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms and
Conditions;

"Cash Settlement Amount” is as defined in Condition 18;
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"Certificates" is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms and Conditions;
"CFTC" is as defined in Condition 2.1;
"Change in Law" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Clearing System" means Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear and/or any additional or
alternative clearing system approved by the Issuer and the relevant Security Agent(s) from time
to time and specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Clearing System Certificate" is as defined in Condition 19;
"Clearing System Global Certificate" is as defined in Condition 19;

"Clearing System Global Security" means the Clearing System Global Certificate representing
an issue of Certificates;

"Clearing System Securities" means Clearing System Certificates;
"Clearstream, Luxembourg" is as defined in Condition 19;
"Commodity Exchange Act" is as defined in Condition 2.1;
"Commodity Securities™ is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Common Depositary" is as defined in Condition 19;

"Currency Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Cut-off Date" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Designated Account" is as defined in Condition 23;

"Designated Bank" is as defined in Condition 23;

"Disrupted Amount" is as defined in Condition 5(vi);

"Disrupted Settlement Date" is as defined in Condition 5(vi);
"Documents" is as defined in Condition 13.4(b);

"Established Rate" is as defined in Condition 16(b);

"euro" is as defined in Condition 16(b);

"Euroclear" is as defined in Condition 19;

"Exchange Event" is as defined in Condition 19;

"Expenses" is as defined in Condition 11.2;

"Extraordinary External Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Fund Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"FX Settlement Disruption Currency" is as defined in Condition 5(vi);
"FX Settlement Disruption Cut-off Date" is as defined in Condition 5(ii)(A);
"FX Settlement Disruption Event" is as defined in Condition 5(vi);
"FX Settlement Disruption Exchange Rate" is as defined in Condition 5(vi);

"FX Settlement Disruption Expenses" is as defined in Condition 5(vi);
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"FX Settlement Disruption Notice" is as defined in Condition 5(i);
"GDR/ADR" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Global Certificate" is as defined in Condition 19;

"Global Security" means Global Certificate;

"Government Authority" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Guarantee" means a deed of guarantee dated on or around 25 June 2021 executed by BNPP
in respect of the Securities issued by BNPP B.V_;

"Guarantor" means BNPP;

"Hedge" is as defined in Condition 15.1(a);

"Hedging Disruption™ is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Hedging Shares" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Holder" is as defined in Condition 2.2 and Condition 20;

"holder of Certificates" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Holder of Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.2;

"Hybrid Business Day" has the meaning given to such term in the applicable Final Terms;
"Hybrid Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Increased Cost of Hedging" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Increased Cost of Stock Borrow" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Index Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Initial Stock Loan Rate" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Insolvency Filing" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Interest Amount" is as defined in Condition 21(a)(iii);

"Interest Determination Date" is as defined in Condition 21(a)(iii);
"Interest Period End Date" is as defined in Condition 21(a)(i);

"Interest Period End Final Date" is as defined in Condition 21(a)(i);
"Issuer" is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms and Conditions;
"Jurisdiction Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Linked Interest Certificates" is as defined in Condition 21;

"Local Currency" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Local Time" means local time in the city of the relevant Clearing System;
"Loss of Stock Borrow" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Maximum Stock Loan Rate" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
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"Modified Postponement” is as defined in Condition 18(a)(iii) under the definition of
Averaging Date;

"National Currency Unit" is as defined in Condition 16(b);

"Notice Period" is as defined in Payout Condition 4 (Issuer Call Option);
"Observation Date" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Observation Period" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Omission" is as defined in Condition 18(a)(i) under the definition of Averaging Date;
"Optional Additional Disruption Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Optional Redemption Amount" is as defined in Payout Condition 4 (Issuer Call Option);
"Optional Redemption Date" is as defined in Payout Condition 4;

"Optional Redemption Valuation Date" is as defined in Payout Condition 4;
"Original Currency" is as defined in Condition 16(a)(ii);

"Paris Business Day" is as defined in Security Condition 21(c);

"Postponement” is as defined in Condition 18 under the definition of Averaging Date;

"Principal Security Agent" is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms
and Conditions;

"Record" is as defined in Condition 2.2;

"Record Date" is as defined in Condition 23;

"Redemption Date" is as defined in Condition 22;

"Registered Certificates™ is as defined in Condition 19;

"Registered Global Certificate" is as defined in Condition 19;
"Registered Global Security" means a Registered Global Certificate;
"Registered Securities” means Registered Certificates;

"Registrar" is as defined above in the introductory paragraphs of these Terms and Conditions;
"Regulation S" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Related Expenses" is as defined in Condition 11.2;

"Relevant Adjustment Provisions" is as defined in Payout Condition 5.1;
"Relevant Currency" is as defined in Condition 5(vi);

"Rolling Futures Contract Securities" means a Security that is specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms;

"Scheduled Averaging Date" is as defined in Condition 18(a)(iii)(C) under the definition of
Averaging Date;

"Scheduled Closing Time" means, in respect of an Exchange or Related Exchange and a
Scheduled Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such Exchange or Related
Exchange on such Scheduled Trading Day, without regard to after hours or any other trading
outside of the regular trading session hours subject, in respect of Index Securities, to
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subparagraphs (a) and (b) of the definition of Valuation Time, and subject, in respect of Share
Securities, to subparagraph (c) of the definition of Valuation Time;

"Scheduled Strike Date" means any original date that, but for the occurrence of an event
causing a Disrupted Day, would have been the Strike Date;

"Scheduled Valuation Date" means any original date that, but for the occurrence of an event
causing a Disrupted Day, would have been a Valuation Date;

"Securities Act" means Securities Act of 1933, as amended;

"Security Agent" and "Security Agents" are as defined above in the introductory paragraphs
of these Terms and Conditions;

"Security Expenses" is as defined in Condition 11.1;

"Share" is as defined in Condition 15.2(d);

"Share Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Significant Alteration Event” is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Specified Maximum Days of Disruption” means (other than with respect to Commodity
Securities and Currency Securities) eight Scheduled Trading Days or such other number of
Scheduled Trading Days specified in the applicable Final Terms, with respect to Currency
Securities, five Scheduled Trading Days and with respect to Commodity Securities, five
Commodity Business Days;

"Strike Date" means, in the case of Index Securities or Share Securities, the Strike Date
specified in the applicable Final Terms, or, if such date is not a Scheduled Trading Day, the next
following Scheduled Trading Day unless, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent such day is a
Disrupted Day. If any such day is a Disrupted Day, then:

(a)  where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a single Index (other than a
Component Security Index) or Share Securities relating to a single Share, the Strike Date
shall be the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is not a Disrupted Day, unless
each of the number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified
Maximum Days of Disruption immediately following the Scheduled Strike Date is a
Disrupted Day. In that case, (A) the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall
be deemed to be the Strike Date, notwithstanding the fact that such day is a Disrupted
Day and (B) the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant level or price:

0] in the case of Index Securities, by determining the level of the Index as of the
Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day in
accordance with the formula for and method of calculating the Index last in effect
prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day using the Exchange traded or
quoted price as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled
Trading Day of each security comprised in the Index (or, if an event giving rise
to a Disrupted Day has occurred in respect of the relevant security on the last such
Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith estimate of the value for the relevant
security as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading
Day); or

(if)  in the case of Share Securities, in accordance with its good faith estimate of the
relevant price as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled
Trading Day; or

(b)  where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a single Component Security Index,
the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant level for such Component Security
Index using the formula for and method of calculating such Component Security Index
last in effect prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day using:
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(©)

(d)

(M in respect of each Component Security not affected by a Market Disruption Event
on the Scheduled Strike Date, the exchange traded or quoted price of such
Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the Scheduled Strike Date; and

(i) inrespect of each Component Security affected (each, an "Affected Component
Security") by a Market Disruption Event on the Scheduled Strike Date, the
exchange traded or quoted price for each Affected Component Security on the
first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day on which no Market Disruption Event
occurs or is continuing with respect to the Affected Component Security, unless
each of the number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified
Maximum Days of Disruption immediately following the Scheduled Strike Date
is a day on which a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respect
to the Affected Component Security, in which case, the Calculation Agent shall
determine the value, amount, level or price of the Affected Component Security
using its good faith estimate of the value, amount, level or price of the relevant
Affected Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day; and

the Strike Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation Agent
determines the level of the Component Security Index in accordance with the above
provisions.

where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Indices (other than a
Basket of Component Security Indices) or Share Securities relating to a Basket of Shares,
the Strike Date for each Index or Share, as the case may be, not affected by the occurrence
of a Disrupted Day shall be the Scheduled Strike Date and the Strike Date for each Index
or Share affected, as the case may be (each an "Affected Item"), by the occurrence of a
Disrupted Day shall be the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is not a
Disrupted Day relating to the Affected Item unless each of the number of consecutive
Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption
immediately following the Scheduled Strike Date is a Disrupted Day relating to the
Affected Item. In that case, (i) the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall be
deemed to be the Strike Date for the Affected Item, notwithstanding the fact that such
day is a Disrupted Day, and (ii) the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant value,
level, price or amount using, in relation to the Affected Item:

(i) in the case of an Index, the level of that Index as of the Valuation Time on the last
such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day in accordance with the formula for and
method of calculating that Index last in effect prior to the occurrence of the first
Disrupted Day using the Exchange traded or quoted price as of the Valuation
Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day of each security
comprised in that Index (or, if an event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has
occurred in respect of the relevant security on the last such consecutive Scheduled
Trading Day, its good faith estimate of the value for the relevant security as of the
Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day); or

(if)  inthe case of a Share, its good faith estimate of the price for the Affected Item as
of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day; or

where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Component Security
Indices, the Strike Date for each Component Security Index not affected by the
occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the Scheduled Strike Date, and for each
Component Security Index affected (an "Affected Item") by the occurrence of a
Disrupted Day, the Calculation Agent shall determine the level of that Component
Security Index using the formula for and method of calculating that Component Security
Index last in effect prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day, using:

M in respect of each Component Security not affected by a Market Disruption Event
on the Scheduled Strike Date, the exchange traded or quoted price of such
Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the Scheduled Strike Date; and
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2.1

(if)  in respect of each Component Security affected (each, an "Affected Component
Security") by a Market Disruption Event on the Scheduled Strike Date, the
exchange traded or quoted price for each Affected Component Security on the
first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day on which no Market Disruption Event
occurs or is continuing with respect to the Affected Component Security, unless
each of the number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified
Maximum Days of Disruption immediately following the Scheduled Strike Date
is a day on which a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing with respect
to the Affected Component Security, in which case, the Calculation Agent shall
determine the value, amount, level or price of such Affected Component Security
using its good faith estimate of the value, amount, level or price of the relevant
Affected Component Security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day; and

the Strike Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation Agent
can determine the level of the Component Security Index in accordance with the above
provisions; or

(e)  inthe case of Commodity Securities, the Initial Pricing Date;

"Strike Day" means each date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms and, if Averaging
Date Consequences are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the provisions
contained in the definition of "Averaging Date" shall apply mutatis mutandis as if references in
such provisions to "Averaging Date™ were to "Strike Day";

"Strike Period" means the period specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;
"Substitute Guarantee” is as defined in Condition 13.4(b);
"Substitute Guarantor" is as defined in Condition 13.4;
"Substitute Share" is as defined in Condition 15.2(d);
"Substitution Date" is as defined in Condition 15.2(d);

"Taxes" is as defined in Condition 11.2;

"Treaty" is as defined in Condition 16(b);

"Underlying Reference" is as defined in Payout Condition 5.10;
"Underlying Share" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"U.S. person" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Valid Date" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Valuation Date" is as defined in Condition 18;

"Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 18;

TYPE, TITLE AND TRANSFER

Type

The Securities may relate to a specified index or basket of indices or futures or options contracts
related to a specified index or basket of indices ("Index Securities™), a specified share or basket
of shares (including Stapled Shares (as defined in Share Security Condition 1)) or a specified
depositary receipt (a "GDR/ADR") referencing a share (an "Underlying Share™) or basket of
GDRs and/or ADRs ("Share Securities"), a specified commodity or commodity index or basket
of commodities and/or commodity indices ("Commodity Securities"), a specified fund share
or unit or fund index or basket of fund shares or units or fund indices ("Fund Securities") a
specified preference share issued by BNP Paribas Synergy Limited ("Preference Share
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2.2

2.3

24

Certificates™) and/or Securities which relate to any combination of such indices, shares,
commodities, commodity indices and/or fund shares or units or fund indices ("Hybrid
Securities").

If the Securities are Hybrid Securities and Hybrid Securities is specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, the terms and conditions of the Securities will be construed on the basis
that in respect of each separate type of underlying reference asset or basis, the relevant terms
applicable to each such separate type of underlying reference asset or basis will apply, as the
context admits, separately and independently in respect of the relevant type of underlying
reference asset or basis, except as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Securities related to a specified commodity or commodity index or basket of commodities
and/or commaodity indices, a specified fund share or unit or fund index or basket of fund shares
or units or fund indices or Hybrid Securities related to any of these asset classes may not at any
time be offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, settled or redeemed, transferred
or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, by or for the account or benefit of,
persons that are (i) a "U.S. person” as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act
("Regulation S"); or (ii) a person other than a "Non-United States person" as defined in Rule
4.7 under the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended (the "Commodity
Exchange Act"); or (iii) a "U.S. person" as defined in (a) the Interpretive Guidance and Policy
Statement Regarding Compliance with Certain Swap Regulations promulgated by the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC") or (b) the final rule relating to Cross-
Border Application of the Registration Thresholds and Certain Requirements Applicable to
Swap Dealers and Major Swap Participants promulgated by the CFTC, in each case as amended,
modified or supplemented from time to time, pursuant to the Commaodity Exchange Act; or (iv)
any other "U.S. person” as such term may be defined in Regulation S or in regulations or
guidance adopted under the Commaodity Exchange Act (each such person, a "U.S. person™)
unless expressly provided for in the applicable Final Terms.

If Averaging is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, the applicable Final Terms
will state the relevant Averaging Dates and, if an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day, whether
Omission, Postponement or Modified Postponement (each as defined in Condition 18) applies.

Title to Securities other than Registered Securities

In the case of Securities represented by a Clearing System Global Security held by a Common
Depository on behalf of a relevant Clearing System or held by a relevant Clearing System, each
person who is for the time being shown in the records of the relevant Clearing System as the
holder of a particular amount of such Securities (in which regard any certificate or other
document issued by the relevant Clearing System as to the amount of Securities standing to the
account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of
manifest error) shall (except as otherwise required by law) be treated by the Issuer, the
Guarantor and the Security Agent as the holder of such amount of Securities for all purposes
(and the expressions "Holder" and "Holder of Securities" and related expressions shall be
construed accordingly).

Provisions relating to title to Registered Certificates are set out in Condition 20.
Transfers of Interests in Clearing System Securities

Transfers of Certificates may not be effected after the redemption of such Certificates pursuant
to Condition 22.

Subject as set forth in this Condition 2.4, all transactions (including permitted transfers of
Securities) in the open market or otherwise must be effected, in the case of Securities
represented by a Clearing System Global Security held by a Common Depository on behalf of
Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear and/or any other relevant Clearing System, subject to
and in accordance with the rules and procedures for the time being of the relevant Clearing
System(s). Title will pass upon registration of the transfer in the books of the relevant Clearing
System.
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2.5

Any reference herein to Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear and/or any other relevant
Clearing System shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to
any additional or alternative clearing system approved by the Issuer and the Principal Security
Agent from time to time and notified to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

Provisions relating to the transfer of Registered Certificates are set out in Condition 20.
STATUS OF THE SECURITIES AND GUARANTEE

The Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu
among themselves.

The Guarantee is a senior preferred obligation (within the meaning of Article L.613-30-3-1-3°
of the French Code monétaire et financier) and an unsecured obligation of BNPP and will rank
pari passu with all its other present and future senior preferred and unsecured obligations subject
to such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory under French law.

Unless Waiver of Set-Off is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, no Holder
may exercise or claim any Waived Set-Off Rights against any right, claim, or liability the Issuer
(or, if applicable, the Guarantor) has or may have or acquire against such holder, directly or
indirectly, howsoever arising (and, for the avoidance of doubt, including all such rights, claims
and liabilities arising under or in relation to any and all agreements or other instruments of any
sort or any non-contractual obligations, in each case whether or not relating to the relevant
Securities) and each such holder shall be deemed to have waived all Waived Set-Off Rights to
the fullest extent permitted by applicable law in relation to all such actual and potential rights,
claims and liabilities.

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Condition 3 is intended to provide or shall be
construed as acknowledging any right of deduction, set-off, netting, compensation, retention or
counterclaim or that any such right is or would be available to any holder of any Security but
for this Condition 3.

For the purposes of this Condition 3, "Waived Set-Off Rights" means any and all rights of or
claims of any holder of any Security for deduction, set-off, netting, compensation, retention or
counterclaim arising directly or indirectly under or in connection with any such Security.

The potential impact on the Securities and on the Guarantee in the event of the resolution of
BNPP is detailed in Condition 25 (Recognition of Bail-in and Loss Absorption).

GUARANTEE

The Guarantor has unconditionally and irrevocably (a) guaranteed to each Holder all obligations
of the Issuer in respect of such Holder's Securities as and when such obligations become due
and (b) agreed that if and each time that the Issuer fails to satisfy any obligations under such
Securities as and when such obligations become due, the Guarantor will after a demand has been
made on the Guarantor pursuant thereto (without requiring the relevant Holder first to take steps
against the Issuer or any other person) make or cause to be made such payment or satisfy or
cause to be satisfied such obligations as though the Guarantor were the principal obligor in
respect of such obligations.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO FX SETTLEMENT DISRUPTION IN RESPECT OF
SECURITIES

If (a) FX Settlement Disruption Event Determination is specified as applicable in the applicable
Final Terms and the Calculation Agent determines that the FX Settlement Disruption Event is
not attributable to the Issuer, but substantially alters the economics of the Securities compared
to the economics as of the Issue Date and the Settlement Currency specified in the applicable
Final Terms is a Relevant Currency or (b) if FX Settlement Disruption Event Determination is
not specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and the Settlement Currency specified
in the applicable Final Terms is a Relevant Currency, "FX Settlement Disruption” will apply,
and:
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

If on the second Business Day prior to the Disrupted Settlement Date, the Calculation
Agent (acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner) determines that a
FX Settlement Disruption Event has occurred and is subsisting, the Issuer shall give
notice (a "FX Settlement Disruption Notice") to the Holders in accordance with
Condition 10 as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter and, in any event, prior to the
due date for payment of the relevant Disrupted Amount as the case may be.

Following the occurrence of a FX Settlement Disruption Event:

(A) the date for payment of the relevant Disrupted Amount will be postponed to (i)
the second Business Day following the date on which the Calculation Agent
determines that a FX Settlement Disruption Event is no longer subsisting or if
earlier (ii) the date falling thirty calendar days following the Redemption Date or
other scheduled date for payment, as applicable, of the relevant Disrupted
Amount (the "FX Settlement Disruption Cut-off Date") which, for the
avoidance of doubt, may be later than the scheduled Redemption Date; and

(B) (i) in the case of (A)(i) above, the Issuer will pay or cause to be paid the relevant
Disrupted Amount, less FX Settlement Disruption Expenses (if any), in the
Settlement Currency or (ii) in the case of (A)(ii) above, in lieu of paying the
relevant Disrupted Amount in the Settlement Currency, the Issuer will, subject to
sub-paragraph (iii) below, convert the relevant Disrupted Amount into the FX
Settlement Disruption Currency (using the FX Settlement Disruption Exchange
Rate determined by the Calculation Agent for the relevant Disrupted Settlement
Date) and will pay or cause to be paid the relevant Disrupted Amount, less FX
Settlement Disruption Expenses (if any), in the FX Settlement Disruption
Currency on the FX Settlement Disruption Cut-off Date;

If sub-paragraph (ii)(A)(ii) applies, the Calculation Agent will determine the FX
Settlement Disruption Exchange Rate acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner in accordance with the following procedures:

(A) the FX Settlement Disruption Exchange Rate shall be the arithmetic mean
(rounded, if necessary, to four decimal places (with 0.00005 being rounded
upwards)) as determined by or on behalf of the Calculation Agent of the bid and
offer Settlement Currency/FX Settlement Disruption Currency exchange rates
provided by two or more leading dealers on a foreign exchange market (as
selected by the Calculation Agent) on such day; or

(B) if fewer than two leading dealers provide the Calculation Agent with bid and offer
Settlement Currency/FX Settlement Disruption Currency exchange rates on such
day, the Calculation Agent shall determine the FX Settlement Disruption
Exchange Rate acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

For the avoidance of doubt:

(A)  No Interest Period will be adjusted as a result of the postponement of any interest
payment pursuant to this Condition 5(iv); and

(B)  No additional interest amount will be payable in respect of any postponement of
the relevant due date for payment.

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing contained in this Condition 5 shall prevent the Issuer
from determining that an Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional
Disruption Event has occurred, in which case, the provisions of Condition 15 shall
prevail in the event of any conflict between this Condition 5 and Condition 15.

For these purposes:

"Disrupted Amount" means any Cash Settlement Amount, Interest Amount or other
amount payable;
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"Disrupted Settlement Date" means the Redemption Date or any other due date for
payment;

"FX Settlement Disruption Currency" means USD;

"FX Settlement Disruption Event" means the occurrence of an event which makes it
unlawful, impossible or otherwise impracticable to pay the relevant Disrupted Amount
in the Settlement Currency on the scheduled Redemption Date or other date for payment;

"FX Settlement Disruption Exchange Rate" means the rate of exchange between the
Settlement Currency (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) and the FX Settlement
Disruption Currency, determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the
provisions of sub-paragraph (iii) above;

"FX Settlement Disruption Expenses" means the sum of (i) the cost to the Issuer and/or
its affiliates of unwinding any hedging arrangements related to the Securities and (ii) any
transaction, settlement or other costs and expenses arising directly out of the occurrence
of a FX Settlement Disruption Event or the related payment of the Disrupted Amount,
all as determined by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner; and

"Relevant Currency" means each of Emirati Dirhams ("AED"), Argentinian Pesos
("ARS"), Australian Dollars ("AUD"), Bermudan Dollars ("BMD"), Bulgarian Leva
("BGN™), Bahraini Dinars ("BHD"), Botswana Pula ("BWP"), Brazilian Reais ("BRL"),
Canadian Dollars ("CAD"), Swiss Francs ("CHF"), Chilean Pesos ("CLP"), Chinese
Yuan ("CNY"), Czech Koruna ("CZK"), Danish Kroner ("DKK"), Great British Pounds
("GBP"), Ghanian Cedis ("GHS"), Hong Kong Dollars ("HKD™), Croatian Kuna
("KRJ™), Hungarian Forints ("HUF"), Indonesian Rupiah ("IDR"), Israeli Shekels
("ILS™), Icelandic Krénur ("ISK™), Jordanian Dinars (*JOD"), Japanese Yen ("JPY"),
Kenyan Shillings ("KES"), Kuwaiti Dinars ("KWD"), Kazakhstani Tenges ("KZT"),
Lebanese Pounds ("LBP"), Moroccan Dirhams ("MAD"), Mauritian Rupees ("MUR"),
Mexican Pesos ("MXN"), Malaysian Ringgits ("MYR"), Namibian Dollars ("NAD"),
Nigerian Naira ("NGN"), Norwegian Kroner ("NOK"), New Zealand Dollars ("NZD"),
Omani Riyals ("OMR"), Peruvian Nuevos Soles ("PEN"), Philippine Pesos ("PHP"),
Polish Zloty ("PLN"), Qatari Riyals ("QAR"), Romanian Lei ("RON"), Russian Roubles
("RUB"), Saudi Riyals ("SAR™), Swedish Kronor ("SEK"), Singaporean Dollars
("SGD"), Thai Baht ("THB"), Tunisian Dinars ("TND"), Turkish Lire ("TRY") and
South African Rand ("ZAR").

GENERAL

None of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Calculation Agent, the Registrar and the Security Agent,
as applicable, shall have any responsibility for any errors or omissions (to the extent permitted
by any applicable law) in the calculation of any Cash Settlement Amount.

The purchase of Securities does not confer on any Holder of such Securities any rights (whether
in respect of voting, distributions or otherwise) attaching to any Underlying Reference.

In making any election, modification, determination or adjustment, the Issuer or the Calculation
Agent, as applicable, will act in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, to preserve
or restore the economics of the agreed terms, as far as reasonably practicable. Any such election,
modification, determination or adjustment shall not create a significant imbalance between the
rights and obligations of the Issuer compared to the Holders, to the detriment of the Holders.

ILLEGALITY AND FORCE MAJEURE
Illegality

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the Securities has become
illegal in whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may redeem all but not some only of the
Securities by giving notice to Holders in accordance with Condition 10, provided that, if such
illegality also constitutes a force majeure, the provisions of Condition 7.2 will apply.
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If the Issuer redeems the Securities then, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, the
Issuer will pay an amount to each Holder in respect of each Security held by such Holder, which
amount shall be equal to the fair market value of a Security notwithstanding such illegality less,
except if Unwind Costs are specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the cost to
the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all
as determined by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner, payment being made in such manner as shall be notified to the Holders in accordance
with Condition 10.

Should any one or more of the provisions contained in these Terms and Conditions be or become
invalid, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected thereby.

Force Majeure

If the Issuer determines that by reason of force majeure or act of state occurring after the Trade
Date it becomes impossible to perform its obligations under the Securities, the Issuer may either
(i) take the action described in Condition 15.2(a), or if applicable, (d) (save that references to
"Additional Disruption Event" and/or "Optional Additional Disruption Event", as applicable,
will be deemed to be references to “force majeure™), or (ii) redeem all, but not some only, of the
Securities by giving notice to Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

If the Issuer redeems the Securities then the Issuer will, if and to the extent possible or
practicable, pay an amount (if any) to each Holder in respect of each Security held by such
Holder, which amount shall be equal to the fair market value (if any) of a Security taking into
account such force majeure or act of state less, except in the case of if Unwind Costs are
specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the cost to the Issuer and/or its
Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the
Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

Any payment will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Holders in accordance with
Condition 10.

PURCHASES

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase Securities at any price in the open
market or by tender or private treaty. Securities so purchased may be held or resold or
surrendered for cancellation, provided however, that Securities so purchased may only be resold
pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act under
Regulation S or otherwise thereunder.

SECURITY AGENT, REGISTRAR, DETERMINATIONS, MEETINGS PROVISIONS
AND MODIFICATIONS

Security Agent and Registrar

The specified office of the Security Agent and the Registrar is as set out at the end of these
Terms and Conditions.

Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the
appointment of the Security Agent or the Registrar and to appoint a further or additional Security
Agent or Registrar, provided that no termination of appointment of the Security Agent or the
Registrar, as the case may be, shall become effective until a replacement Security Agent or a
replacement Registrar, as the case may be, shall have been appointed and provided that, so long
as any of the Securities are listed on a stock exchange or are admitted to trading by another
relevant authority, there shall be a Security Agent having a specified office in each location
required by the rules and regulations of the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority
and, if the Securities are Registered Securities, there shall be a Registrar. Notice of any
termination of appointment and of any changes in the specified office of the Security Agent or
the Registrar will be given to Holders in accordance with Condition 10. In acting under the
Agency Agreement, the Security Agent and the Registrar act solely as agents of the Issuer and
the Guarantor and do not assume any obligation or duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust
for or with, the Holders and any determinations and calculations made in respect of the
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Securities by the Security Agent or the Registrar shall (save in the case of manifest error) be
final, conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor and the respective Holders.

Calculation Agent

In relation to each issue of Securities, the Calculation Agent (whether it be BNP Paribas, BNP
Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. or another entity) acts solely as agent of the Issuer and the Guarantor
and does not assume any obligation or duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust for or with,
the Holders. All calculations and determinations made in respect of the Securities by the
Calculation Agent shall (save in the case of manifest error) be final, conclusive and binding on
the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Holders. Because the Calculation Agent may be an Affiliate
of the Issuer and the Guarantor or the Guarantor itself, potential conflicts of interest may exist
between the Calculation Agent and the Holders, including with respect to certain determinations
and judgments that the Calculation Agent must make.

The Calculation Agent may, with the consent of the Issuer, delegate any of its obligations and
functions to a third party as it deems appropriate.

Determinations by the Issuer and the Guarantor

Any determination made by the Issuer or the Guarantor pursuant to these Terms and Conditions
shall, to the extent permitted by applicable law, (save in the case of manifest error) be final,
conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Holders.

Meetings of Holders

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings (including by way of
conference call or by use of a video conference platform) of the Holders of Securities to consider
any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution (as
defined in the Agency Agreement) of a modification of the Terms and Conditions or the Agency
Agreement. At least 21 days' notice (exclusive of the day on which the notice is given and of
the day on which the meeting is held) specifying the date, time and place of the meeting shall
be given to Holders. Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer, the Guarantor or Holders
holding not less than 5 per cent. (by number) of the Securities for the time being remaining
outstanding. The quorum at a meeting of the Holders (except for the purpose of passing an
Extraordinary Resolution) will be two or more persons holding or representing not less than 20
per cent. (by number) of Securities for the time being remaining outstanding, or at any adjourned
meeting two or more persons being or representing Holders whatever the number of Securities
so held or represented. The quorum at a meeting of Holders for the purpose of passing an
Extraordinary Resolution will be two or more persons holding or representing not less than 50
per cent. (by number) of the Securities for the time being remaining outstanding, or at any
adjourned meeting two or more persons being holding or representing not less than 10 per cent.
(by number) of the Securities for the time being remaining outstanding. A resolution will be an
Extraordinary Resolution when it has been passed at either (i) a duly convened meeting by not
less than three fourths of the votes cast by Holders at such meeting who, being entitled to do so,
vote in person or by proxy or (ii) consent given by way of electronic consents through the
relevant clearing system(s) (in a form satisfactory to the Principal Security Agent or Registrar,
as applicable) by or on behalf of persons representing not less than 75 per cent. (by number) of
the Securities for the time being remaining outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution passed by
the Holders will be binding on all the Holders, whether or not they are present at any meeting
and whether or not they voted on the resolution. Resolutions can be passed in writing if passed
unanimously.

Modifications

The Issuer may modify these Terms and Conditions and/or the Agency Agreement without the
consent of the Holders in any manner which the Issuer may deem necessary or desirable
provided that such modification is not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Holders or
such modification is of a formal, minor or technical nature or to cure, correct or supplement a
manifest or proven error or to cure, correct or supplement any defective provision contained
herein and/or therein or to comply with mandatory provisions of the law of the jurisdiction in
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which the Issuer is incorporated. Notice of any such modification will be given to the Holders
in accordance with Condition 10 but failure to give, or non-receipt of, such notice will not affect
the validity of any such modification.

NOTICES
All notices to Holders shall be valid if:

@ () in the case of Clearing System Securities and Registered Certificates represented
by a Registered Global Certificate, delivered to the relevant Clearing System for
communication by them to the Holders; or

(if)  in the case of Registered Certificates in definitive form, mailed to their registered
addresses appearing in the Register; and

(by  for so long as the Securities are listed on a stock exchange or are admitted to trading by
another relevant authority, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the relevant
stock exchange or other relevant authority. If the Securities are listed and admitted to
trading on the Euro MTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, and so long as the
rules of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange so require, notices shall be made available on
the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu). Any such notice shall
be deemed to have been given on the second Business Day following such delivery or,
if earlier, the date of such publication or, if published more than once, on the date of the
first such publication.

EXPENSES AND TAXATION

A Holder must pay all taxes, duties and/or expenses, including any applicable depository
charges, transaction or exercise charges, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, issue, registration,
securities transfer and/or other taxes or duties arising from the exercise and settlement or
redemption of the Securities pursuant to the terms of such Securities ("Security Expenses")
relating to such Securities as provided above.

The Issuer shall deduct from amounts payable to Holders all Related Expenses, not previously
deducted from amounts paid to Holders, as the Calculation Agent shall acting in good faith and
in a commercially reasonable manner determine are attributable to the Securities.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Issuer shall not be liable for any Related Expenses and Holders
shall be liable to pay the Related Expenses attributable to their Securities.

"Expenses" means Security Expenses and any Related Expenses.

"Related Expenses"” means (a) all present, future, prospective, contingent or anticipated Taxes
which are (or may be) or were (or may have been) withheld or payable under the laws,
regulations or administrative practices of any state (or any political sub-division or authority
thereof or therein) and (b) any other present, future, or contingent expenses (including without
limitation, any applicable depositary charges, transaction charges, issue registration, securities
transfer or other expenses) which are (or may be) or were (or may have been) payable, in each
case in respect of or in connection with:

(a)  the issue, transfer or enforcement of the Securities;
(b)  any payment to Holders;

(c)  aperson or its agent's assets or any rights, distributions of dividends appertaining to such
assets (had such an investor (or agent) purchased, owned, held, realised, sold or otherwise
disposed of assets) in such a number as the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and
in a commercially reasonable manner, may determine to be appropriate as a hedge or
related trading position in connection with the Securities; or

(dy  any of the Issuer's (or any Affiliates") other hedging arrangements in connection with the
Securities.
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"Taxes" means taxes, levies, imposts, duties, deductions, withholdings, assessments or other
charges (including any stamp, registration or transfer tax, duty or other charge or tax on income,
payments, profits, capital gains (including, for the avoidance of doubt, (i) any withholding or
deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through
1474 of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations thereof,
or any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto and (ii) any withholding or
deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m) of the Code) together with any interest, additions
to tax or penalties.

In addition, if the Securities are specified to be Specified Securities in the applicable Final Terms
for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the Code, in determining the amount of withholding or
deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m) of the Code imposed with respect to any amounts
to be paid on the Securities, the Issuer shall be entitled to withhold on any "dividend equivalent"
payment (as defined for purposes of Section 871(m) of the Code) at a rate of 30 per cent.

Payments on the Securities that reference U.S. securities or an index that includes U.S. securities
may be calculated by reference to the net dividends payable on such U.S. securities or net total
returns of the U.S. components of such index. In calculating the relevant payment amount, the
Issuer may withhold, and the holder will be deemed to have received 30 per cent. of any
"dividend equivalent™ payments (as defined in Section 871(m) of the Code) in respect of the
relevant U.S. securities or U.S. dividend paying index components, as the case may be. The
Issuer will not pay any additional amounts to the holder on account of the Section 871(m)
amount deemed withheld.

FURTHER ISSUES

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of Holders to create and
issue further Securities having terms and conditions the same as the Securities or terms and
conditions which are the same in all respects save for the Issue Date and the Issue Price, the
amount and date of the first interest payment thereon (if any) and/or the date from which interest
(if any) starts to accrue, such further Securities being consolidated and forming a single series
with the outstanding Securities.

SUBSTITUTION OF THE ISSUER OR THE GUARANTOR
Substitution Event

The occurrence of any of the following events, in respect of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the
case may be, shall constitute a "Substitution Event":

(a)  adivestment in respect of the Issuer;

(by  the cancellation, suspension or revocation of any relevant authorisation or licence of the
Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, by any governmental, legal or regulatory
authority;

(¢c)  aconsolidation, amalgamation, merger or binding share exchange in respect of the Issuer
or the Guarantor, as the case may be, with or into another entity or person;

(dy  atakeover offer, tender offer, exchange offer, solicitation proposal or other event by any
entity or person to purchase or otherwise obtain a controlling stake in the Issuer or the
Guarantor, as the case may be; or

(e)  any other event affecting the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, pursuant to
which substitution is permissible in accordance with the regulations of any stock
exchange, any applicable law or regulation in force in the jurisdiction of the Issuer or the
Guarantor, as the case may be or any applicable law or regulation in force in the
jurisdiction in which the securities are offered.
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Substitution Conditions

A substitution of the Issuer pursuant to Conditions 13.3 below may only occur if the following
conditions (the "Substitution Conditions") are satisfied:

(a)  the creditworthiness of the Substitute at such time being at least equal to the
creditworthiness of the Issuer (or of any previous substitute), as determined by the
Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner by
reference to, inter alia, the long term senior debt ratings (if any) assigned by S&P Global
Ratings Europe Limited, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., Moody's
Investors Service Ltd. and/or Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited, or any successor rating
agency or agencies thereto, or such other rating agency as the Calculation Agent
determines to the Substitute or, as the case may be, to the Issuer (or to any previous
substitute);

(b}  the Issuer confirms that there are no payment arrears in respect of the Securities and that
there is no indication that payments will imminently be in arrears or that there may be
any issues in making any payments in respect of the Securities;

(¢)  all actions, conditions and things required to be taken, fulfilled and done to ensure that
the Securities represent legal, valid and binding obligations of the Substitute having been
taken, fulfilled and done and being in full force and effect;

(d)  the Substitute becomes party to the Agency Agreement (unless the Substitute is already
a party to the Agency Agreement) with any appropriate consequential amendments, as if
it had been an original party to it;

(e)  each stock exchange on which the Securities are listed has confirmed that, following the
proposed substitution of the Substitute, the Securities will continue to be listed on such
stock exchange;

() if appropriate, the Substitute has appointed a process agent as its agent in England to
receive service of process on its behalf in relation to any legal action or proceedings
arising out of or in connection with the Securities; and

(g)  the Issuer has given at least 30 days' prior notice of the date of such substitution to the
Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

Securities issued by BNPP B.V.

Following the occurrence of a Substitution Event, BNPP B.V. or any previously substituted
company may, but is not obliged to, without the consent of the Holders, substitute for itself as
principal obligor under the Securities a Substitute, being BNPP B.V. (where BNPP B.V. has
previously been substituted as Issuer) or any other company in the BNP Paribas Group, subject
to:

(a)  BNPP unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteeing in favour of each Holder the
performance of all obligations by the Substitute under the Securities on substantially the
same terms as the relevant Guarantee;

(b)  BNPP B.V. having obtained from the Substitute an undertaking that the substitution will
not have a material impact on the interests of the Holders and that it will not deduct any
costs relating to the substitution from amounts due to the Holder; and

(¢)  the Substitution Conditions having been satisfied.
Securities guaranteed by BNPP

Following the occurrence of a Substitution Event, BNPP or any previously substituted company
may, but is not obliged to, without the consent of the Holders, substitute for itself as guarantor
in respect of the Securities any company (the "Substitute Guarantor™), being BNPP (where
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(a)

(b)

BNPP has previously been substituted as Guarantor) or another company in the BNP Paribas
Group subject to:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

)

(g)

(h)

the creditworthiness of the Substitute Guarantor at such time being at least equal to the
creditworthiness of BNPP (or of any previous substitute under this Condition), as
determined by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner by reference to, inter alia, the long term senior debt ratings (if any)
assigned by S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited, a division of The McGraw-Hill
Companies, Inc. and/or Moody's Investors Service Ltd. and/or Fitch Ratings Ireland
Limited, or any successor rating agency or agencies thereto, or such other rating agency
as the Calculation Agent determines to the Substitute Guarantor or, as the case may be,
to BNPP (or to any previous substitute under this Condition);

the Substitute Guarantor having entered into a guarantee (the "Substitute Guarantee™)
in respect of the Securities in substantially the same form as the Guarantee and such other
documents (if any) as may be necessary to give full effect to the substitution (the
"Documents™) and (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) pursuant to which
the Substitute Guarantor shall undertake in favour of each Holder to be bound by these
Terms and Conditions, the provisions of the Agency Agreement as fully as if the
Substitute Guarantor had been named in these Terms and Conditions, the Documents,
the Agency Agreement as the guarantor in respect of the Securities in place of BNPP (or
of any previous substitute under this Condition);

the Substitute Guarantee and the Documents having been delivered to BNP Paribas
Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch to be held by BNP Paribas Securities Services,
Luxembourg Branch for so long as any Securities remain outstanding and for so long as
any claim made against the Substitute Guarantor or the Issuer by any Holder in relation
to the Securities, the Substitute Guarantee or the Documents shall not have been finally
adjudicated, settled or discharged;

each stock exchange on which the Securities are listed having confirmed that following
the proposed substitution of the Substitute Guarantor (or of any previous substitute under
this Condition) it will continue to list the Securities;

if appropriate, the Substitute Guarantor having appointed a process agent as its agent in
England to receive service of process on its behalf in relation to any legal action or
proceedings arising out of or in connection with the Securities or the Substitute
Guarantee;

BNPP (or any previous substitute under this Condition) having given at least 30 days'
prior notice of the date of such substitution to the Holders in accordance with Condition
10;

BNPP confirming that there are no payment arrears in respect of the Securities and that
there is no indication that payments will imminently be in arrears or that there may be
any issues in making any payments in respect of the Securities; and

BNPP having obtained from the Substitute Guarantor an undertaking that the substitution
will not have a material impact on the interests of the Holders and that it will not deduct
any costs relating to the substitution from amounts due to the Holder.

GOVERNING LAW AND SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION

The Securities, the Agency Agreement and the Guarantee and any non-contractual obligations
arising out of or in connection with the Securities, the Agency Agreement and the Guarantee
are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.

The courts of England shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle all disputes which may, directly
or indirectly, arise out of or in connection with the Securities, the Agency Agreement and the
Guarantee including any disputes relating to any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in
connection with the Securities, the Agency Agreement and the Guarantee (a "Dispute™) and
each of the Issuer and the Guarantor submits and each Holder (by its acquisition of a Security)
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is deemed to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts. For the purposes of this
Condition, each of the Issuer and the Guarantor waives and each Holder (by its acquisition of a
Security) is deemed to waive any objection to the English courts on the grounds that they are an
inconvenient or inappropriate forum to settle any Dispute.

Each Issuer and Guarantor hereby appoints BNP Paribas, London branch, currently of 10
Harewood Avenue, London NW1 6AA (Attention: the Loan Administration Department), as its
agent in England to receive service of process in any proceedings in England relating to the
Securities and the Guarantee, as the case may be. If for any reason such process agent ceases to
act as such or no longer has an address in England, each Issuer and Guarantor agrees to appoint
a substitute process agent and to notify the Holders of Securities of such appointment. Nothing
in these provisions shall affect the right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.

WITHOUT PREJUDICE TO CONDITION 14(b) ABOVE, THE ISSUER WAIVES ANY
RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SECURITIES. THESE CONDITIONS MAY BE FILED AS A
WRITTEN CONSENT TO A BENCH TRIAL.

ADDITIONAL DISRUPTION EVENTS AND OPTIONAL ADDITIONAL
DISRUPTION EVENTS

For the purposes of this Condition 15.1:

"Additional Disruption Event" means each of Change in Law and Hedging Disruption, unless
otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Administrator/Benchmark Event" means the Calculation Agent determines that:
() a Benchmark Modification or Cessation Event has occurred or will occur;

(i)  any authorisation, registration, recognition, endorsement, equivalence decision, approval
or inclusion in any official register in respect of a relevant Benchmark or the
administrator or sponsor of a relevant Benchmark has not been, or will not be, obtained
or has been, or will be, rejected, refused, suspended or withdrawn by the relevant
competent authority or other relevant official body, in each case with the effect that the
Issuer or the Calculation Agent or any other entity is not, or will not be, permitted under
any applicable law or regulation to use the relevant Benchmark to perform its or their
respective obligations under the Securities; or

(iii) it is not commercially reasonable to continue the use of a relevant Benchmark in
connection with the Securities from the perspective of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent
or the Issuer or the Calculation Agent suffers or will suffer an increased cost, in each
case, as a result of any applicable licensing restrictions or changes in the cost of obtaining
or maintaining any relevant licence (including, without limitation, where the Issuer, the
Calculation Agent or any other entity is required to hold a valid licence in order to issue
or perform its obligations in respect of the Securities and for any reason such licence is
either not obtained, not renewed or is revoked or there is a material change in the cost of
obtaining or renewing such licence);

"Benchmark" means any figure, value, level or rate which is a benchmark as defined in BMR
and where any amount payable or deliverable under the Securities, or the value of the Securities,
is determined, in whole or in part, by reference to such figure, value, level or rate, all as
determined by the Calculation Agent;

"Benchmark Modification or Cessation Event" means, in respect of the Benchmark any of
the following has occurred or will occur:

(i) any material change in such Benchmark; or

(i) the permanent or indefinite cancellation or cessation in the provision of such Benchmark;
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"BMR" means the EU Benchmarks Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/1011) or the UK
Benchmarks Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 as it forms part of UK domestic law by
virtue of the EUWA and regulations made thereunder), as applicable in respect of the Securities;

"Change in Law" means that, on or after the Trade Date (a) due to the adoption of or any change
in any applicable law or regulation (including, without limitation, in respect of any tax law,
solvency or capital requirements), or (b) due to the promulgation of or any change in the
interpretation or application of any law or regulation by any court, tribunal or regulatory or other
supervisory authority with competent jurisdiction (including any action taken by a taxing or
financial authority or any supervisory authority) or the combined effect thereof if occurring
more than once, the Issuer determines acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner that:

(a) it has become illegal for it or any of its Affiliates to hold, acquire or dispose of any
relevant hedge position relating to an Index (in the case of Index Securities), any relevant
hedge position relating to a Share (in the case of Share Securities), any relevant hedge
position relating to a Commodity or Commodity Index (in the case of Commodity
Securities) or any relevant hedge position relating to a Fund Share (in the case of Fund
Securities) (each a "Hedge™); or

(by it or any of its Affiliates would incur a materially increased cost (including, without
limitation, in respect of any tax, solvency, regulatory or capital requirements) in
maintaining the Securities in issue or, unless Hedge Maintenance Cost is specified as not
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, in holding, acquiring or disposing of any
Hedge;

"Currency Event" means that, on or after the Trade Date, it has become impracticable, illegal
or impossible for the Issuer or any of its Affiliates (a) to convert the relevant currency (" Local
Currency") in which the Index or the Shares or any options or futures contracts or other hedging
arrangement in relation to the Index or the Shares (for the purposes of hedging the Issuer's
obligations under the Securities) are denominated, into the Settlement Currency, or exchange or
repatriate any funds in the Local Currency or the Settlement Currency outside of the country in
which the Index or the Shares or any options or futures contracts in relation to the Index or the
Shares respectively are traded due to the adoption of, or any change in, any applicable law, rule,
regulation, judgment, order, directive or decree of any Government Authority or otherwise, or
(b) for the Calculation Agent to determine a rate or (in the determination of the Calculation
Agent) a commercially reasonable rate at which the Local Currency can be exchanged for the
Settlement Currency for payment under the Securities;

"Extraordinary External Event" means that, on or after the Trade Date, the performance of
the Issuer's obligations under the Securities is prevented or materially hindered or delayed due
to:

(a)  any act (other than a Market Disruption Event), law, rule, regulation, judgment, order,
directive, interpretation, decree or material legislative or administrative interference of
any Government Authority or otherwise; or

(by  the occurrence of civil war, disruption, military action, unrest, political insurrection,
terrorist activity of any kind, riot, public demonstration and/or protest, or any other
financial or economic reasons or any other causes or impediments beyond such party's
control; or

(¢c)  any expropriation, confiscation, requisition, nationalisation or other action taken or
threatened by any Government Authority that deprives the Issuer or any of its Affiliates,
of all or substantially all of its assets in the Local Currency jurisdiction;

"Government Authority" means any nation, state or government, any province or other
political subdivision thereof, any body, agency or ministry, any taxing, monetary, foreign
exchange or other authority, court, tribunal or other instrumentality and any other entity
exercising, executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of or
pertaining to government;
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"Hedging Disruption” means that the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates is unable, after using
commercially reasonable efforts, to (a) acquire, establish, re-establish, substitute, maintain,
unwind or dispose of any transaction(s) or asset(s) or any futures or option contracts it deems
necessary to hedge the equity price risk or any other relevant price risk including but not limited
to the currency risk of the Issuer issuing and performing its obligations with respect to the
Securities, or (b) freely realise, recover, remit, receive, repatriate or transfer the proceeds of any
such transaction(s), asset(s) or futures or options contract(s) or any relevant hedge positions
relating to the Securities;

"Hedging Party Default" means any hedging counterparty in respect of the Securities
announces its inability to meet its financial obligations, ceases its payments or a court in its
jurisdiction of incorporation opens insolvency proceedings against it and the Issuer or the
Guarantor is unable to replace such hedging counterparty on terms acceptable to the Issuer or
the Guarantor, as the case may be;

"Hedging Shares" means the number of components comprised in an Index (in the case of
Index Securities) or the number of Shares (in the case of Share Securities) that the Issuer and/or
any of its Affiliates deems necessary to hedge the equity or other price risk of entering into and
performing its obligations with respect to the Securities;

"Increased Cost of Hedging" means that the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates would incur a
materially increased (as compared with circumstances existing on the Trade Date) amount of
tax, duty, expense or fee (other than brokerage commissions) to (a) acquire, establish, re-
establish, substitute, maintain, unwind or dispose of any transaction(s) or asset(s) or any futures
or options contract on any Commaodity or, in the case of a Commodity Index, Index Component
(in the case of Commodity Securities) it deems necessary to hedge the market risk (including,
without limitation, equity price risk, foreign exchange risk and interest risk) of the Issuer issuing
and performing its obligations with respect to the Securities, or (b) realise, recover or remit the
proceeds of any such transaction(s) or asset(s) or any such futures or options contract(s),
provided that any such materially increased amount that is incurred solely due to the
deterioration of the creditworthiness of the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates shall not be deemed
an Increased Cost of Hedging;

"Increased Cost of Stock Borrow" means that the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates would
incur a rate to borrow any component security comprised in an Index (in the case of Index
Securities) or any Share (in the case of Share Securities) that is greater than the Initial Stock
Loan Rate;

"Initial Stock Loan Rate™ means, in respect of a component security comprised in an Index (in
the case of Index Securities) or a Share (in the case of Share Securities), the initial stock loan
rate specified in relation to such Share, security, component or commodity in the applicable
Final Terms;

"Insolvency Filing" means that a Share Company or Basket Company institutes or has instituted
against it by a regulator, supervisor or any similar official with primary insolvency,
rehabilitative or regulatory jurisdiction over it in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or
organisation or the jurisdiction of its head or home office, or it consents to a proceeding seeking
a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency
law or other similar law affecting creditors' rights, or a petition is presented for its winding-up
or liquidation by it or such regulator, supervisor or similar official or it consents to such a
petition, provided that proceedings instituted or petitions presented by creditors and not
consented to by the Share Company or Basket Company shall not be deemed an Insolvency
Filing;

"Jurisdiction Event" means that, on or after the Trade Date, it has become impracticable, illegal
or impossible for the Issuer or any of its Affiliates to purchase, sell, hold or otherwise deal (or
to continue to do so in the future) in the Index or the Shares or, unless Hedging Arrangements
is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, any options or futures contracts in
relation to the Index or the Shares in order for the Issuer to perform its obligations:

(i) under the Securities; or
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15.2

(if)  unless Hedging Arrangements is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, in respect of any relevant hedging arrangements in connection with the Securities
(including, without limitation, any purchase, sale or entry into or holding of one or more
securities positions, currency paositions, stock loan transactions, derivatives position,
commaodity position or other instruments or arrangements (however described) by the
Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates in order to hedge, either individually or on a portfolio
basis, the Securities),

or the costs of so doing would (in the determination of the Calculation Agent acting in good
faith and in a commercially reasonable manner) be materially increased under the restriction or
limitation of the existing or future law, rule, regulation, judgment, order, interpretation, directive
or decree of any Government Authority or otherwise;

"Loss of Stock Borrow" means that the Issuer and/or any Affiliate is unable, after using
commercially reasonable efforts, to borrow (or maintain a borrowing of) any component
security comprised in an Index (in the case of Index Securities) or any Share (in the case of
Share Securities) in an amount equal to the Hedging Shares at a rate equal to or less than the
Maximum Stock Loan Rate;

"Maximum Stock Loan Rate™ means in respect of a component security comprised in an Index
(in the case of Index Securities) or a Share (in the case of Share Securities), the Maximum Stock
Loan Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Optional Additional Disruption Event" means any of Administrator/Benchmark Event,
Currency Event, Extraordinary External Event, Hedging Party Default, Increased Cost of
Hedging, Increased Cost of Stock Borrow, Jurisdiction Event, Insolvency Filing, Loss of Stock
Borrow and/or Significant Alteration Event, in each case if specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Protected Amount" means the amount specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"Significant Alteration Event" means any event or circumstance or combination of events or
circumstances occurring after the Trade Date that is not attributable to the Issuer but which in
the determination of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner, significantly alters the economics of the Securities as at the
Trade Date where such event renders the performance of the Issuer's obligations under the
Securities unduly onerous or results in a material increase in costs incurred by the Issuer
associated with the Securities as a consequence of a change in any applicable law or regulation
(including, without limitation, in respect of any tax laws, solvency or regulatory capital
requirements), nationalisation, or regulatory action but, in each case, where such event does not
constitute a force majeure pursuant to Condition 7.2 (Force Majeure), or, to the extent permitted
by applicable law, in other similar events or circumstances that would in the determination of
the Issuer or the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner, significantly alter the economics of the Securities as at the Trade Date;

"Trade Date" has the meaning given to it in the applicable Final Terms.

If Additional Disruption Events are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and an
Additional Disruption Event and/or an Optional Additional Disruption Event occurs, the Issuer
may take the action described in (a) or, if applicable, (b) or (c), as the case may be, below:

(a)  require the Calculation Agent to determine acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner the appropriate adjustment, if any, to be made to any one or more of
the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of these Terms and Conditions and/or the
applicable Final Terms to account for the Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional
Additional Disruption Event and determine the effective date of that adjustment. In the
case of an Administrator/Benchmark Event, such adjustment may (a) consist of one or
more amendments and/or be made on one or more dates, (b) be determined by reference
to any adjustment(s) in respect of the relevant event or circumstance in relation to any
hedging arrangements in respect of the Securities and (c) include, without limitation,
selecting a successor benchmark(s) and making related adjustments to the Conditions of
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(b)

(©)

(d)

the Securities including, where applicable, and unless Unwind Costs is specified as not
applicable, to reflect any increased costs of the Issuer providing such exposure to the
successor benchmark(s) and, in the case of more than one successor benchmark, making
provision for allocation of exposure as between the successor benchmarks;

unless "Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of Additional Disruption Event and/or
Optional Additional Disruption Event" is specified to be applicable in the applicable
Final Terms, on giving notice to Holders in accordance with Condition 10, redeem all
but not some only of the Certificates, each Certificate being redeemed by payment of an
amount equal to the fair market value of a Certificate taking into account the Additional
Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption Event less, except if Unwind
Costs are specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the cost to the Issuer
and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as
determined by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner, payment being made in such manner as shall be notified to the
Holders in accordance with Condition 10;

if "Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional
Additional Disruption Event" is specified to be applicable in the applicable Final Terms,
the Calculation Agent shall calculate the fair market value of a Certificate taking into
account the Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption Event
less, except if Unwind Costs are specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms,
the cost to the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging
arrangements (the "Calculated Additional Disruption Amount") as soon as practicable
following the occurrence of the Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional
Disruption Event (the "Calculated Additional Disruption Amount Determination
Date") and on the Redemption Date shall redeem each Certificate at an amount
calculated by the Calculation Agent equal to (x) the Calculated Additional Disruption
Amount plus interest accrued from and including the Calculated Additional Disruption
Amount Determination Date to but excluding the Redemption Date at a rate equal to the
Issuer's funding cost at such time or (y) if Principal Protected Termination Amount is
specified as being applicable in the applicable Final Terms and if greater, the Protected
Amount (specified in the applicable Final Terms); or

in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, the Calculation Agent may
adjust the Basket of Shares to include a Share selected by it in accordance with the
criteria for Share selection set out below (each a "Substitute Share") for each Share
(each an "Affected Share") which is affected by the Additional Disruption Event and/or
Optional Additional Disruption Event and the Substitute Share will be deemed to be a
"Share" and the relevant issuer of such shares a "Basket Company" for the purposes of
the Securities, and the Calculation Agent will make such adjustment, if any, to any one
or more of the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of these Terms and Conditions
and/or the applicable Final Terms as the Calculation Agent acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner determines appropriate, provided that in the event that
any amount payable under the Securities was to be determined by reference to the Initial
Price of the Affected Share, the Initial Price of each Substitute Share will be determined
by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the following formula:

Initial Price = A X (B/C)
where:

"A" is the official closing price of the relevant Substitute Share on the relevant Exchange
on the Substitution Date;

"B" is the Initial Price of the relevant Affected Share; and

"C" is the official closing price of the relevant Affected Share on the relevant Exchange
on the Substitution Date.
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15.3

16.

Such substitution and the relevant adjustment to the Basket of Shares will be deemed to
be effective as of the date selected by the Calculation Agent (the "Substitution Date")
acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner and specified in the notice
referred to below which may, but need not, be the relevant date of the Additional
Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption Event.

The Weighting of each Substitute Share in the Basket of Shares will be equal to the
Weighting of the relevant Affected Share.

In order to be selected as a Substitute Share, the relevant share must be a share which the
Calculation Agent determines, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner:

(i) is not already included in the Basket of Shares;

(i)  the relevant issuer of such share belongs to the same economic sector as the
Basket Company in respect of the Affected Share; and

(iif)  the relevant issuer of such share has a comparable market capitalisation,
international standing and exposure as the Basket Company in respect of the
Affected Share.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the Calculation Agent will adjust any relevant terms of the
Securities as it determines appropriate to preserve the economic equivalent of the obligations of
the Issuer under the Securities.

Upon the occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption
Event, if the Calculation Agent determines that an adjustment in accordance with the above
provisions is necessary it shall notify the Issuer thereof as soon as practicable and the Issuer
shall give notice as soon as practicable to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10 stating
the occurrence of the Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption Event,
as the case may be, giving details thereof and the action proposed to be taken in relation thereto.

ADJUSTMENTS FOR EUROPEAN MONETARY UNION

Unless Redenomination is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer
may, without the consent of the Holders, on giving notice to the Holders in accordance with
Condition 10:

(a)  elect that, with effect from the Adjustment Date specified in the notice, certain terms of
the Securities shall be redenominated in euro.

The election will have effect as follows:

Q) where the Settlement Currency of the Securities is the National Currency Unit of
a country which is participating in the third stage of European Economic and
Monetary Union, such Settlement Currency shall be deemed to be an amount of
euro converted from the original Settlement Currency into euro at the Established
Rate, subject to such provisions (if any) as to rounding as the Issuer may decide,
after consultation with the Calculation Agent, and as may be specified in the
notice, and after the Adjustment Date, all payments of the Cash Settlement
Amount in respect of the Securities will be made solely in euro as though
references in the Securities to the Settlement Currency were to euro;

(i) where the Exchange Rate and/or any other terms of these Terms and Conditions
are expressed in or, in the case of the Exchange Rate, contemplate the exchange
from or into, the currency (the "Original Currency") of a country which is
participating in the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union, such
Exchange Rate and/or any other terms of these Terms and Conditions shall be
deemed to be expressed in or, in the case of the Exchange Rate, converted from
or, as the case may be into, euro at the Established Rate; and
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17.

18.

(b)

(iif)  such other changes shall be made to these Terms and Conditions as the Issuer may
decide, after consultation with the Calculation Agent to conform them to
conventions then applicable to instruments expressed in euro; and/or

require that the Calculation Agent make such adjustments to the Weighting and/or the
Settlement Price and/or any other terms of these Terms and Conditions and/or the Final
Terms as the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner, may determine to be appropriate to account for the effect of the third stage of
European Economic and Monetary Union on the Weighting and/or the Settlement Price
and/or such other terms of these Terms and Conditions.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, none of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Calculation Agent,
the Euroclear Registrar, if applicable, and the Security Agents shall be liable to any
Holder or other person for any commissions, costs, losses or expenses in relation to or
resulting from the transfer of euro or any currency conversion or rounding effected in
connection therewith.

In this Condition, the following expressions have the following meanings:

"Adjustment Date" means a date specified by the Issuer in the notice given to the
Holders pursuant to this Condition which falls on or after the date on which the country
of the Original Currency first participates in the third stage of European Economic and
Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty;

"Established Rate" means the rate for the conversion of the Original Currency
(including compliance with rules relating to rounding in accordance with applicable
European Union regulations) into euro established by the Council of the European Union
pursuant to Article 140 of the Treaty;

"euro" means the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European
Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty;

"National Currency Unit" means the unit of the currency of a country, as those units
are defined on the day before the date on which the country of the Original Currency first
participates in the third stage of European Economic and Monetary Union; and

"Treaty" means the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended.

CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

The Securities do not confer on a third party any right under the Contracts (Rights of Third
Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of such Securities but this does not affect any right or
remedy of a third party which exists or is available apart from that Act.

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS RELATING TO EXERCISE, VALUATION AND
REDEMPTION

"Averaging Date" means:

(a)

in the case of Index Securities or Share Securities, each date specified as an Averaging
Date in the applicable Final Terms or, if any such date is not a Scheduled Trading Day,
the immediately following Scheduled Trading Day unless, in the opinion of the
Calculation Agent, any such day is a Disrupted Day. If any such day is a Disrupted Day,
then:

(i) if "Omission™ is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, then such
date will be deemed not to be an Averaging Date for the purposes of determining
the relevant value, level, price or amount provided that, if through the operation
of this provision no Averaging Date would occur, then the provisions of the
definition of "Valuation Date" will apply for the purposes of determining the
relevant level, price, value or amount on the final Averaging Date as if such
Averaging Date were a Valuation Date that was a Disrupted Day; or
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(i)

(iii)

if "Postponement” is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, then
the provisions of the definition of "Valuation Date" will apply for the purposes of
determining the relevant level, price, value or amount on that Averaging Date as
if such Averaging Date were a Valuation Date that was a Disrupted Day
irrespective of whether, pursuant to such determination, that deferred Averaging
Date would fall on a day that already is or is deemed to be an Averaging Date; or

if "Modified Postponement” is specified as applying in the applicable Final
Terms, then:

(A)

(B)

©)

(D)

where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a single Index (other
than a Component Security Index) or Share Securities relating to a single
Share, the Averaging Date shall be the first succeeding Valid Date (as
defined below). If the first succeeding Valid Date has not occurred for a
number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified
Maximum Days of Disruption immediately following the original date
that, but for the occurrence of another Averaging Date or Disrupted Day,
would have been the final Averaging Date, then (I) that last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall be deemed to be the Averaging
Date (irrespective of whether that last such consecutive Scheduled Trading
Day is already an Averaging Date), and (Il) the Calculation Agent shall
determine the relevant level, value, price or amount for that Averaging
Date in accordance with sub-paragraph (a)(i) of the definition of
"Valuation Date" below; and

where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a single Component
Security Index, the Calculation Agent shall determine the level of the
Component Security Index for the Averaging Date in accordance with sub-
paragraph (a)(ii) of the definition of "Valuation Date" below and the
Averaging Date shall be deemed to be the earliest date on which the
Calculation Agent determines the level of the Component Security Index
in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (a)(ii) of the definition
of "Valuation Date" below;

where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Indices
(other than a Basket of Component Security Indices) or Share Securities
relating to a Basket of Shares, the Averaging Date for each Index or Share
not affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the originally
designated Averaging Date (the "Scheduled Averaging Date") and the
Averaging Date for each Index or Share affected by the occurrence of a
Disrupted Day shall be the first succeeding Valid Date (as defined below)
in relation to such Index or Share. If the first succeeding Valid Date in
relation to such Index or Share has not occurred for a number of
consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption immediately following the original date that, but for
the occurrence of another Averaging Date or Disrupted Day, would have
been the final Averaging Date, then (I) that last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day shall be deemed the Averaging Date (irrespective
of whether that last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day is already an
Averaging Date) in respect of such Index or Share, and (1) the Calculation
Agent shall determine the relevant level, price, value or amount for that
Averaging Date in accordance with subparagraph (a)(iii) of the definition
of "Valuation Date" below; and

where the Certificates are Index Securities relating to a Basket of
Component Security Indices, the Averaging Date for each Component
Security Index not affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be
the Scheduled Averaging Date, and for each Component Security Index
affected (an "Affected Item™) by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day, the
Calculation Agent shall determine the level of the Component Security
Index in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (a)(iv) of the
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definition of "Valuation Date" below and the Averaging Date shall be
deemed to be the earliest date on which the Calculation Agent determines
the level of the Component Security Index in accordance with the
provisions of sub-paragraph (a)(iv) of the definition of "Valuation Date"
below; or

(by  in the case of Commodity Securities, each date specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms or, if any such date is not a Commaodity Business Day, the immediately following
Commodity Business Day unless, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, any such day
is a day on which a Market Disruption Event has occurred or is continuing, in which case
the provisions of Commodity Security Condition 3 (Consequences of a Market
Disruption Event and Disruption Fallbacks) shall apply;

"Cash Settlement Amount" means the amount (which may never be less than zero) to which
the Holder is entitled in the Settlement Currency in relation to each such Certificate equal to the
Final Payout specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Cash Settlement Amount (if any) shall be rounded to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant
Settlement Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in
accordance with applicable market convention, provided that if Rounding Convention 2 is
specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Cash Settlement Amount shall not be
subject to rounding but Securities of the same Series held by the same Holder will be aggregated
for the purpose of determining the aggregate Cash Settlement Amount in respect of such
Certificates and the aggregate of such Cash Settlement Amounts will be rounded down to the
nearest whole sub-unit of the Settlement Currency in such manner as the Calculation Agent shall
determine, provided that if the product of the Final Payout is zero, no amount shall be payable
in respect of the relevant Certificate.

If the Cash Settlement Amount is not an amount in the Settlement Currency, if specified in the
applicable Final Terms it will be converted into the Settlement Currency at the Exchange Rate
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Cut-off Date" means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or if not so set
out, the third Business Day immediately preceding the Redemption Date;

"Observation Date" means each date specified as an Observation Date in the applicable Final
Terms or if any such date is not a Scheduled Trading Day (in the case of Index Securities or
Share Securities) or Commodity Business Day (in the case of Commodity Securities), the
immediately following Scheduled Trading Day or Commaodity Business Day, as applicable. The
provisions contained in the definition of "Averaging Date" shall apply if any such day is a
Disrupted Day or, in the case of Commodity Securities, a day on which a Market Disruption
Event has occurred or is continuing, mutatis mutandis as if references in such provisions to
"Averaging Date" were to "Observation Date" unless Observation Day Disruption
Consequences is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, in which case such
date will be an Observation Date notwithstanding the occurrence of a Disrupted Day and (i) in
the case of Index Securities or Share Securities, the provisions of (a)(i)(B), (a)(ii), (a)(iii)(B) or
(a)(iv), as applicable, of the definition of "Valuation Date" will apply for the purposes of
determining the relevant level, price or amount on such Observation Date as if such Observation
Date were a Valuation Date that was a Disrupted Day or (ii) in the case of Commaodity Securities
the provisions of Commaodity Security Condition 3 (Consequences of a Market Disruption Event
and Disruption Fallbacks) will apply;

"Observation Period" means the period specified as the Observation Period in the applic